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ALLEGED IMPROPER PRACTICES IN CUSTOMS HOUSE
AT DENVER, COLO.

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 23, 1975

U.S. SENATE
SUBCOMMiTrEE ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE

OF THE CoMriirTr ON FINANCE,
Wa8hington, D.O.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in room
2221, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Abraham Ribicoff
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senators Ribicoff and Haskell.
Senator RmicoFF. The committee will be in order. This meeting has

really been called as a result of the deep concern that Senator Haskell
has involving a problem in his constituency.

Senator Haskell talked to me about the problems that have been de-
veloping in the Denver Customs House. Frankly, I was not aware of
it until Senator Haskell called it to my attention.

But, as he went over the problem with me, it became very apparent
that this matter should be aired. And this is of course a Senator doing
his job and doing it well, especially in a matter involving the Finance
Committee's jurisdiction and also the jurisdiction covering the State
of Colorado.

[The Committee on Finance press release announcing this hearingfollows:]
[Press Release]

For immediate release.
October 21, 1975.
Committee on Finance, Subcommittee on International Trade, U.S. Senate.

FINANCE SUBCOMMIT ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE SETS HEARINGS ON ALLEGED
IMPROPER PRACTICES IN CUSTOMS HOUSE AT DENvER, COLO.

Senator Abe Ribicoff (D., Conn.), Chairman, and Senator Floyd Haskell (D.,
Colo.) of the Subcommittee on International Trade of the Senate Committee
on Finance, today announced that the Subcommittee will conduct public hearings
on certain practices which have allegedly taken place within the Customs House
of Denver, Colorado.

The hearings will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, October 28, 1975, In
Room 2221 of the Dirksen Senate Office Building.

These hearings are concerned with certain practices which have allegedly
taken place within the Denver Customs House throughout the last five years
including: (1) the alleged acceptance of certain gratuities by Customs employees
from importers and brokers utilizing the Denver port, (2) the use of overtime
by Customs employees in this port, and (3) certain directives regarding the
entry of persons and products from Chile during the period of office of former
President Allende.

(1)



2

The following witnesses have been scheduled to testify before the subcom-
mittee on Thursday, October 23, 1975:
Customs officials:

Vernon D. Acree, Commissioner of Customs.
Clebnfrne M. Maier, Regional Commissioner of Customs for Houston.
Jay Bruton, Port Director of Customs for Denver.
Joseph Grubach, Deputy District Director of Customs for Detroit.
William A. Magee, Jr., Chief C6unsel.
Roland Raymond, Assistalt Commissioner (administration).

Private individuals:
Bruce Brower, Former Regional Import Specialist for Customs.

- Larry Turrill, Employee for Ports of Call (Travel, .ervice).
Mrs. Francis Sorden, Broker for REA Express.

The Chairman stated that the Subcommittee would be pleased to receive
written testimony .from those persons or organizations who wish to suLmit
statements for the Record. Statements submitted for inclusion In the Record
should be typewritten, not more than 25 double spaced pages in length, and
mailed with five (5) copies by October 31, 1975 to Michael Stern, Staff Director,
Committee on Finance, Room 2227, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Washington,
D.C. 20510.

Senator RIBICOFF. Senator Haskell, did you want to make an opening
comment?

'Senator HASKELL. I have a brief statement.
Mr. Chairman, I am very pleased to participate in these hearings as

they concern the practices and alleged abuses of the U.S. Customs
Service, as you mentioned, with particular reference to the Denver Port
and Stapleton International Airport.

As you are well aware, for several months my office has been investi-
gating the Denver Customs Port's practices, some of which were
detailed in investigative reports prepared by the Customs Service's
own Office of Security and Audit.

The abuses reported by Security and Audit covered a period from
1971 through the past summer. Included in the reported abuses were
two points we will be discussing today: The alleged acceptance of
gratuities by customs employees from importers and brokers and the
use of overtime by customs employees in Denver.Since obtaining the Security and Audit report this summer, after a
6-month effort, we have had further complaints of continued abuses
within the Denver Customs.

Charges also have been made that the customs officers were in-
structed to harass Chilean citizens and delay Chilean goods during the
presidency of President Allende of Chile.

Of course, the problem is of Particular concern to me because. of the
reported abuses at the Denver Port. But it is possible that the Denver
experience is not an isolated one and abuses may occur throughout the
region and the Nation and that, as a matter of fact. from a General
Accounting Office report it would seem that this is highly likely.

Therefore it would seem, Mr. Chairman, it is vital that we learn
what safeguards, if any, have been instituted to prevent reoccurrence.

Mr. Chairman, serious charges have been made about customs opera-
tions. including the fact that the internal investigation failed to cor-
rect the abuses in Denver.

I am hopeful that the hearings you have called, with the possibility
of hearings later in Denver, will clear ip all of our questions concern-
iny Customs Service operations.

If not, we may have to seek further investigative assistance from
some other agency.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Rimicorr. Thank you, Senator Haskell.
Our first witness is Mr. Bruce Brower.
You may be seated there, sir. Mr. Brower, you may proceed as you

will. Do you have a prepared statement or would you rather just-
Mr. BROWER. No, sir, Ido not have a prepared statement.
Senator RnmicoF. You may proceed, then, with your position.

STATEMENT OF BRUCE BROWER, FORMER REGIONAL IMPORT
SPECIALIST FOR CUSTOMS

Mr. BROWER. I was formerly employed by the Bureau of Customs. I
had approximately 11/. years experience with Customs. I worked in
various phases. I began in Detroit, Mich., in 1963 under Mr. Grubach,
who is in the audience today, as an examiner. Later, I was a customs
inspector and for the last 4 years of my service, I was an import spe-
cialist at the Port of Denver.

I resigned in September of 1974 from that position due to the pres-
sures, the harassment brought upon me by Customs management.

I resigned for a number of reasons: for the pressure brought upon me
and also for my very sincere feelings that a problem existed and, as an
employee, I could not fight the problem because of the harassment Cus-
toms could give me as an employee. I felt I had to leave the service to
continue my efforts against Customs.

In March of 1974 1 went to Senator Haskell's office and presented my
problem. And his office has investigated it since that time.

The background of the situation in Denver is probably best outlined
in the investigative reports that you have in your possession made by
Security and Audit Division of Customs.

It was common knowledge to everyone, employees, importing public,
brokers, anyone who had any contact with Customs, of the abuses that
were occurring. It was common knowledge. The public had to fight
and face this problem every day.

In 1971, Customs did begin their investigations in Denver, the inter-
nal investigations by Security and Audit. After a period of time,
approximately 1 year, I believe, the investigations were completed. The
results were never made public; rather, everyone was kept in the dark
regarding the matter.

I can only say that subsequent to the investigative reports, the pub-
lic became very disillusioned with Customs having any real intent to
solve their problems at the Port of Denver.

It seemed as if, initially, the whole matter was swept under the car-
pet, if you know what I mean. Customs had investigated itself. It was
an internal investigation. No one outside the Bureau of Customs was
supposedly knowledgeable in the results of that investigation.

As an example, one of the persons named in the investigative reports
as being the prime instigator of the false overtime and acceptance of
gratuities, that man I know personally from an investigator who told
me off the record that he, the man so named, was to be dismissed from
the Customs Service. That man's name is Perry Martin. He is now, as
far as I know, with the U.S. Customs Service, having left-the Houston
region for reasons that may be very apparent.



4

The man named in this report as being the instigator of the false
overtime was not only retained at the Port of Denver; subsequently, he
was promoted from inspector to supervisory inspector. And after that,
tefnp.rarily as supervisory inspector, and then within a year after the
investigation, was made permanent supervisory inspector, thereby con-
trolling all inspectors under him. 4.

This *as a man that was a prime target of the investigation in
1971-

SenatofRmicopr. Did all tlis come to you by hearsay or from your
own personal knowledge ?

Mr. BROWER. As an employee at the Port, viewing what transpired
daily, yes, it vods very evident from personal experience.

Senator Rnicol-. You have personal knowledge of what you are
talking about, the charges?

Mr. BROWER. In regard to this particular gentleman?
Senator RiBTCOFF. Yes; and the wrongdoings.
Mr. BRowEn. Yes, sir.
This is just one example of how the Customs investigative reports

served no purpose. I believe it was just a matter of trying to impress
the ptiblic that Customs was, in fact, doing something, while it was
my opinion that the real intent was only a show for public's sake.

Senator HASKErL. Let me ask you, Mr. Brower, a couple of questions.
I have an article here from the Rocky Mountain News. Unfortunately,
it is not dated, but I think it is in early July. The article details the
findings of the Sectirity and Audit Division of the Customs Office
which says the wrongdoings were roughly as follows: "Investigators
purposefully delayed examining imported goods until after 5:00 p.m.
and in that way they could charge owners overtime."

Now, that is one of the findings, I gather, of the Internal Inspeetion
Division of Customs. Do you have any personal knowledge that that
was' so?

Mr. B RowFR. I have personal knowledge. I have no written records.
Senator HASKELL. I do not. care about written records. I mean you

were there. Would you or wouldyou not confirm that as a finding of the
Security and Audit Division of the Customs Office?

fr. BREOWER. Yes, sir; I would confirm it.
My personal knowledge of the incident came through an inspector

working at Stapleton Airport in Denver.
Senator TIASXEIr. What is his-name?
Mr. BROfWR. Jack Rowe. He is currently employed as an inspector

at Denver. And from my statement that I have just made, I will expect
he will receive retaliation from the Bureau of Customs.

Senator HASKELL. What did he tell you ?
Mr. BRowE. Mr. Rowe compiled records, he was able to obtain rec-

ords from the airlines who handled most of the shipments regarding
false 6v6itime, obtained records frwinthe airlhies showing the time
of arfiival, et cetera, records from the Customs Hotsm brokers who
cleared the shipments acting as expediters.

Mr. Rowe obtained these records and gave them to Security and
Audit for conducting their investigation in 1971.

Senator HASKELL. Another allegation mentioned in the newspaper
article says, "Customs officers regularly had accepted gratuities from
importers, primarily liquor companies who wanted their goods cleared
through Customs fast."
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Now that is a finding as reported in the report of the Internal Audit
Division. Do you have any personal knowledge of that situation, one

way or the other I
Mr. BROWER. lot anything I would consider real conclusive. To be

perfectly frank, it was rumored, naturally, among the employees that
certain inspectors were accepting these gratuities. .

Senator HAsKELL. Have you seen the report of the Internal Audit
of the Customs ?

Mr. BROWER. Yes, sir; it was -
Senator HASKELL. IS this newspaper account accurate in that regard?
Mr. BROWER. Yes, sir.
Senqtor HASKELL. Then you mentioned that there was false over-

time. You said somebody originated the false overtime. Can you tell
me the name of the man and-how it was done?

Mr. BROWER. I can tell you the name of the man, or the rmei. The two
men tbhat were involved in 1971 were the supervisory inspector, Mr.
Tim Angelo and Mr. Charles Miller, a subordinate inspector under
him. I believe that some of the other inspectors subor inmate to Mr.-
Angelo were forced to participate in the program, if you may call it
such, the false overtime program.

Senator HASKELL. All right. t

Now, the newspaper report indicates the two gentlemen you have
just mentioned were accused of doing the various things that I have
read that are contained in this newspaper report. Can you tell me what
happened to those people? .

Mr. BROWER. The investigation was begun in 1971 with Mr. Angelo
as the initial target. At that time, Mr. Rowe, an inspector with the
Customs Service, was compiling the records to substantiate false over-
time that I mentioned before.

Also, in 1971, there was an inspector by the name of Doug Stanley.
Mr. Stanley had worked with thedistrict attorney's officein Adams
County. I mention that only in that I think it might have had some
effect on how he viewed the situation of false overtime that he saw
before him in Customs.

Mr. Stanley decided to participate. Mr. Stanley and then Mr. Rowe
went to Security and Audit and asked that they begin this investiga-
tion into the alleged mispractices by these inspectors.

Senator HASKELL. Let me ask you this. Were Mr. Miller and Mr.

Angelo named in this investigation as having done these improper
things.

Mr. BROWER. Yes, I did not answer your question. Mr. Miller and
Mr. Angelo were named in that report. To say the report was never
made public, Mr. Martin, who was an investigator on that force in
1971 told me personally that both men were to be fired.

You must understand that the Security and Audit Division of Cus-
toms reports to no one but the Commissioner. Their findings in the
investigative report are not relayed through chain of command
through the regional commissioner or anything of this nature. It
goes directly to the Commissioner's Offie. a a

It was apparently before the reports arrived in the Commissioners
office that Mr. Martinjfold me that both Mr. Miller and Mr. Angelo
would be taken from the Customs Service.

62-086--75---2
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Mr. Martin told me this -off the record. And apparently after the
investigative reports reached the Commissioner's office, some other-
something else transpired to change that because the actual results
of the investigation were this: Mr. Angelo who was supervisory in-
spector at a Grade GS-11 was demoted two grades to G8-9 inspector.

Senator HAsKu, . This is who now
Mr. BROWER. Mr. Angelo. He remained at the Port of Denver. Mr.

Miller was retained at the Port of Denver. He received no demotion.
Within 1 year after the investigation, Mr. Miller was promoted from
inspector to supervisory inspector.

Senator HASKELL. Okay.
Mr. BRowER. He received a promotion subsequent to the investiga-

tion that brought these charges against him.
Senator HASKELL. I understand that. Just one more question. Then

I will stop aiid you may go ahead. I Reading from this, again, the
newspaper account of the investigation by the Customs Service, it
says here, "in one case an irate person berated the supervisory inspec-
tor at; Stapleton, calling hlim a name. The inspector grabbed him by
the shirt, ripping off button, threw him against the wall and then
physically ejected him from the office.

Do you know who that inspector was?
Mr. BROWER. That was Mr. Angelo.
Senator HASKELL Thank you. You may go ahead.
Mr. BROWER. The impact on the importing public, and when I say

importing public, I mean not only the importers in the Denver area,
but the Custom House brokers, thie impact on these people after this
investigation was quite bad, to say the least.

They had seen these wrongdoings being perpetuated in front of
their eyes. They had seen Customs come in with apparent good intent
on correcting the situation. The result, which they finally saw was
that nothing transpired as a result of the investigation. But rather the
men were allowed to remain, even put in positions of control.

Public sentiment. I think, reached a low ebb after that point. I
know that personally I tried for 31/2 years to reach the bottom of
this problem myself and much to the disliking of Customs, I have
gone to the imiporting public in Denver and the brokers trying to
seek reasons and the bottom of the problems and support.

And their feeling right now, the, importing public in Denver, is
that even these subcommittee hearings are useless. They have seen
the investigations with no results. They have received retaliation from
Customs. after having given evidence and supported the investiga-
tions and really they are very reluctant to say anything to become
involved. They have been disillusioned by the Bureau of Customs
practices.

Senator H-ASKELL. As I understand it. there is an allegation that a
certain directive was given to harass Chilean imports. Are you at all
familiar with that situation.

Mr. BRowE. Yes, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Would you please describe what you know aboutit

Mr. BROWER. In the summer. of 1971, I believe July, I was an im.
port specialist at Denver. The port director at Denver was a man by
the name of Mr. Kelly Tipps, now retired. Mr. Tipps summoned Mr.
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Al Ehret and myself into an office and said that Mr. Roland Raymond,
then district of Customs at El Paso, Tex., wanted to talk with us.

Mr. Raymond came I, the door was closed, four of us were at the
meetings: Mr. Tipps, MVr. Ehret, myself, and Mr. Raymond. Basi-
cally what happened was that Mr. Raymond gave a very brief back-
ground on what was happening in Chile at that time, the Communist
takeover of U.S. corporations in Chile, and he gave us a; directive
which, he said would be implemented at the Port of Denver and was
also to be carried out nationwide.

He said that this directive was not written. There was no written
form of it. It would be verbal only. We would discuss it with no one.
It Was entirely internal. If ever anyone chose to bring this up outside
the customs service, the customs service would deny that it existed.

The essence of that directive was clearly stated in a Rocky Mountain
news article of July 23, which I am sure you have. The essence of the
article was that regarding Cliileai citizens and imports from the
country of Chile the U&S. customs service at Denver would harass the
people, cause delay in the deliverance of the shipments. We would,
in his own words, "stretch the regulations and use our own imagina-
tions, step outside the customs law and regulation if possible in causing
inconvenience to these people."

Senator RnIcoFr. Who gave that order?
Mr. BROWER. That was given to me by Mr. Roland Raymond.
Senator RIBIcoFF. Who
Mr. BROWER. Roland Raymond.
Senator RIBiCOFF. What was his job?
Mr. BROWER. District director of customs in El Paso, Tex. Denver

was under their power so
Senator RIBICOFF. And he told you to harass and delay passengers

and make goods coming from Chile hard and inconvenient for them
to get?

Mr. BROWER. Yes, sir.
Senator RmIcoFF. Let me ask you, you say you worked for about

111/2 years for the Customs Bureau and you resigned September 1974.
What happened to the workload at the Denver airport during that

11-year period?
Mr. BROWE Well. siir, I did not spend all 11 years at Denver.
Senator RIBICOFF. How many years did you spend?
When did you come to Denver first?
Mr. BROWER. In 1970.
Senator RIBICOFF. 1970. In the 4 years from 1970 to 1974, had there

been a large increase in the workload at Denver ?
Mr. BROWER. A substantial increase,. yes, sir. Denver is a growing

port. There was an increased workload and additional employees put
on to, hopefully, meet that workload.

Senator RIBICOFF. In the 4 years that you were there between 1970
and 1974, how many new employees were brought into the Denver
customs service?

Mr. Bk6wER. Speaking of clerical persons, all personnel?
Senator RiBIoF. All'personnel.
fr. BnOWE. Well. it wold just be an estimate, a guess. I would sa,

between 1970 and 1974-it is just a guess--I would. say probably
three or four.
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Senator RiBcoir. Three or four.
And how about the -
Mr. BRowER. The bigger increase in employM ea.. -n , eccuise

me. There would be more than that. In late 1974, I thin, some were
brought on and then additional employees added within the last year
or so. It is just a guess; add two or three more to it. Four, five, or six.

Senator Rmicor.. How many inspectors? How many more inspec-
tors were brought in during -that 4-year period, that you know of?

Mr. BROWER. I am referring to a roster of personnel at Denver now.
I think four additional inspectors were added.

Senator RmIicOFF. And what increase in the percentage of business
was brought into Denver during that 4-year period?

Mr. BROWER. I do not have the figures in front of me.
Senator RmIcoF. Substantial .
Senator HASKELL. Just roughly, what would you think?
Mr. BROWER. It is hard to gauge the volume of business. There are

so many ways you caf judge it, either by dollars collected, revenue
brought in.

Senator RmzoonF. Well, I just happened to notice-
Mr. BROwER. Let me pay this. There were numerous additional inter.

national flights added with customs clearance necessary in Denver.
Usually, this necessitated just the clearance of incoming passengers,
not a great increase of customs product. Mexicana Airlines brought in
flights from Mexico, Western from Canada. A rough guess would be,
say, 25 percent, a quarter to a third increase.

"Senator RiBicOFF. What was that again?
Mr. BROWER. One-quarter to one-third increase in man-hours

consumed.
Senator RIBrCOFF. But there were only four additional men brought

in to handle all that?
Mr. BROWER. Yes, sir, to the best of my knowledge, by looking at

this roster.
Senator RmIcoFF. I am just curious. I have some figures here sub-

mitted by Mr. Acree, indicating that the number of formal entries
filed at the Port of Denver has risen dramatically from 2,591 in 1965
to 8.353 in 1975. Customs collections in the same period, from $3.1
million to $12.2 million; airport arrivals from 358 to 1,340; passengers
cleared from 27,207 to 97,392. And during the period from 1965 to
1975, only seven new, full-time employees have been brought in, an
increase of seven to take care of all of that additional work.

Mr. BROWER. That is from 1965.
Senator RmicoFF. 1965 to 1975, in that decade.
Vould that sound correct, those figures, to you?

Mr. BRowEn. Yes; I believe so.
Senator RiexcorF. Thank you.
Senator HASKELL. You were saying that a Mr. Raymond gave you

a directive to harass Chilean imports.
Was that directive carried out?
Mr. BRowER. It struck me rather funny at the time of his issuing

this directive in Denver. As an import specialist, I handled commercial
shipments and was not involved with actual passengers, people coming
into the country. But to my recollection, at the time he gave that direc-
tive, I think I had handled one, possibly two shipments4 of goods from
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Chile. So as far as carrying out that directive, I had no opportunity
to carry it out. I never had a shipment from Chile after that. I thought
it strange that it be given at Denver, an internal port.

Senator HASKELL. Do you know whether anybody carried out the
directive?

Mr. BROWER. No; I actually do not. I know that-
Senator HASKELL. Let me ask you this: What was the reason given

for the directive?
Why did they tell you to harass Chileans, or did they not give yor

a reason?
Mr. BROWER. Initially, Mr. Raymond gave a background of what

was happening in Chile at the time of Allende's takeover, and it was
impliedthat this would be retaliation against the Communist harass-
ment of U.S. corporations.

Senator HASKELL. Thank you.
Go ahead, sir.
Mr. BROWER. The article of July 23, in the Rocky Mountain News,

said I had no knowledge whether or not anyone at Stapleton Airport,
any of the inspectors, had received this directive. I now know that some
of the inspectors at Stapleton received this same information, this
same directive. Mr. Rowe has admitted receiving the directive. He was
a subordinate at the time to Mr. Angelo, so I can only assume-

Senator RIBICOFF. Mr. Raymond, is he in the room?
Mr. RAYmOND. Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Senator RmBiCOFF. Mr. Raymond, would you come forward?
Mr. AcREp. I might also, Mr. Chairman, suggest that you ask our

Assistant Commissioner for Internal Affairs, Mr. Magee, who has
investigated this matter, to provide testimony on this point, sir. And
I might also suggest, sir, if it is deemed relevant, it might be in order
that all three of the gentlemen be placed under oath.

Senator RiBiCOFF. Gentlemen, will you stand, all three of you.
Do you solemnly swear the testimony you give before this committee

will be the truth, the whole truth, andl nothing but the truth, so help
you God?

Mr. MAGEE. I do.
Mr. RAYMOND. I do.
Mr. BROwER. I do.

TESTIMONY OF BRUCE BROWER, FORMER REGIONAL. IMPORT
SPECIALIST FOR CUSTOMS; ROLAND RAYMOND, ASSISTANT
COMMISSIONER FOR OPERATIONS; AND WILLIAM A. MAGEE,
JR., ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER FOR INTERNAL AFFAIRS

Senator RIBICOFF. Mr. Raymond, you have heard the charges by
Mr. Brower.

Did you give anyone a directive to harass people and goods coming
in from Chile ?

Mir. RAYMOND. Senator, I have absolutely- no recollection of ever
issuing such a directive.

Senator RIBICOFF. -It is not a question of recollection.
Did you or did you not?
Mr. lRAYM6ND. I did not.
Senator' RiBioFF. Now, Mr.-what is your name, sir?1
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What is your name?
Mr. RAYMOND. Raymond.
Mr. MAOEs. William Magee.
Senator RIBxcoFF. You investigated this charge?
Mr. MAGFE. Yes, sir I did.
Senator RIBICOFF. *Vhere areyou located, Mr. Magee?
Mr. MAGFX. I am Assistant Commissioner, Internal Affairs, Wash-

ingto, D.C.
Senator RIBICOFF. Would you tell us what your investigation

disclosed?
Mr. MAGFE. All right.
If I may be totally candid with the committee, sir, when this was first

brought to our attention, we were at a complete loss to understand
the source of such an allegation. During this period of time-we're
speaking of some 30 days ago-Chile was very much in the news media.
We wanted to be absolutely certain that perhaps we may not have
done something in behalf of some other agency.

I personally made an indepth inquiry in those areas, in those depart-
ments that may have had a political interest in South America. And
I was assured that absolutely no such request had been made to the
customs service to assist anyone in any action against any foreign
nationals.

I pursued it even further. You must recall that since the period of
time that the allegation covers, that U.S. Customs Service has under-
gone a reorganization and that we lost some of our drug enforce-
ment functions to DEA. We transferred several hundred of our crimi-
nal investigators, literally thousands and thousands of our files that
contained narcotic information.

We went back through those files. And we now find that in the
period, specifically September 16, 1970, all of the Government agen-
cies interested in and involved in the combating of narcotic drugs
were tasked to form an interagency task force to investigate a Chilean
smuggling operation. This,, involved customs and other agencies.

Senator RmiccoFF. Were there substantial amounts of smuggling of
drugs coming in from Chile during this period?

Mr. MAGEE. There were, sir. There were from 100 to 300 kilograms
of cocaine coming directly from a Chilean-based operation. There
was a French-based organization routing heroin through South
America. Chile was the source of the narcotic system that I am
addressing.

At that time the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs was
deeply involved in a system of drug enforcement, identifying a given
system, such as Corsical or other areas. Them was a Chilean system.
Customs. was tasked by the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous
Drugs to-and I quote for the record:

Customs shall insure that alerts are placed at all Customs points in the
United States regarding the current methods of operations.

Those current methods of operations were body carries of drugs
,on passengers coming from Chile and concealment in cargo destined
from Chile.

. Senator RmiicoFF. So during this period you were very careful in
-combing both the passengers and the cargoes coming from Chile?

Mr. MAGm: I have no personal knowledge of how this was
implemented.



11

Senator 1Riico. But there was a directive to do so, nationally I
Mr. MAGQE. There was a request or alert or lookout for the modus

operandi of this Chilean organization. I have not been able to recapture
the documentation, which would have been nothing more than a tele-
type and perhaps--and I am certain, if we had done our job well and
had been supportive of this interagency activity, then Denver was most'
certainly asked to look at Chileans and Chilean car o, but absolutely
for no political motive. It was in furtherance of this established
system of drug smuging. .

Senator Rmiwcon'. -During this period, did you obtain any seizures
of drugs in goods or on the person of people coming in from Chile
at the Denver Customs Port?

Mr. MAOf~oE. Mr. Chairman, as I say, we were an interagency par-
ticipant. The source agency happens to be another agency of the
Government, and I do not have available the results of those lookouts
or would be most reluctant-some of these systems are still active.

Senator RmicoFF. I know, they may be still active. But you could
relate from the records whether there were actually seizures of drugs
coming into Denver. There is nothing i any way that would hurt the
system in place now, if you just said or gave us the results of your
seizure.

Mr. MAGEE. During the period of time
Senator RIBICOFF. During the period of time discussed by Mr.

Brower.
Mr. MAGEE. We shall attempt to recapture the seizure statistics, if

you care, sir.
Senator ImICOFF. I think it should go in the record. I think it may

have a great bearing on whether these people were being harassed or
whether they were being treated in the ordinary course of your duties
to get drugs coming into tfie United States, especially at the Denver
Customs Port.

Mr. MAGEE. Well, the instructions to go out were as I quoted, to pay
particular attention to products, shipments coming from Chile and
Chilean passengers. We most certainly did not instruct anyone to
harass.

Senator RimicoF. Mr. Brower, were you aware, as a customs in-
spector, that one of your jobs was to try to uncover drugs coming in
from any foreign country?

Mr. BROWER. Certainly.
Senator RIBICOFF. Being carried in by person or by cargo.
Was that part of your task?
Mr. BROWER. Yes. But at the time we are speaking of, I was not an

inspector. I was an import specialist dealing with the commercial ship-
ments rather than people.

Senator RIBiCOFF. Well, an import specialist-sometimes drugs do
come in in goods ;do they not?

Mr. BROweR. Yes. But the goods are actually inspected by an in-
spector. He sees the goods on the dock or airport, wherever it may be.
And it would be the inspector's job to ferret out these drugs.

Senator RiBicoFF. Well, would there be some basis to the report that
what you consider harassment might have been trying to uncover drugscoming in1

Mr.-BRomru. The directive as given to me and the other three people
I mentioned, did not mention'drugs.
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To answer your question, as an import specialist, I can see no bearing
on the impact of my job on commercial shipments in drugs. I wouil
have no knowledge of the drugs, because the shipment would have
been inspected by the inspector.

No; I cannot see the bearing that this would have on an import spe-
cialist. If, in fact, drugs were the important issue, why was the order
given to an import specialist? s w s

Senator HASKELL. Let me, if I may, Mr. Chairman, ask a question
of the gentleman on Mr. Raymond's right. What is his name?

Mr. MAoE. Mr. Magee.
Senator IIASKMLL. Mr. Magee, you, I gather, investigated this charge,

as you indicate, and found out that Chile was the source of a great
many drugs.

Now, do you know whether an order went out to tell inspectors to be
on the lookout for drugs?

Mr. MAOER. I have not been able to find the notice of alert or the
bulletin for implementing this.

Senator HASKEMLL: Even if you have not found anything in writing,
have you found out whether or not a directive went out to be on the
lookout for drugs coming from Chile?

Eve rything does not have to be in writing.
Mr. MSoAW.. I don't believe I really get the point.
Senator HASKrr. The Customs Service was very concerned about

drugs comirtg from Chile; I gather inspectors were instructed to be
on the lookout.

Now, that is my question. Were inspectors told to be on the lookout
for drugs coming from Chile?

Mr. MAGE. If I may confer just a moment.
Normally, our procedure would be to put out an administrative no-

tice on our TEPGS, which is Treasury enforcement communications
service, which is a print out notice to each region. We would be able to
recap that; we are able to recap such a lookout today.

M'r. Raymond, Assistant Commissioner for Operations, advises me
that was not in effect in the period of time we are talking about. It
would have been an FTS.

Senator HASRKEL. Mr. Magee, you made an investigation and you
say that Customs people were told to be on the lookout for drugs, and
I am trying to find out whether the word was disseminated through the
Customs Service, either in verbal or written form, to be on the lookout

POW - for drugs coming from Chile.
Do you or do you notknow whether that was done?
Mr. MAGEE. f do not know. There would be a presumption it was

done. I have no documentation to establish that.
In 1971, you remember-this is, again, prior to the reorganization

of customs-it would have been handled by the Office of Investigations,
in conjt tion with the Office of Operations. Today I could answer
that question if given such a request; 1971, there is no way to---

Senator HASKELL. So, really, then, you do not know whether or not
the personnel of the Customs Service were told to be on the lookout for
drugs, I gather.

Mr. Bitowm. Sir, may I interrupt?
Senator H\sKEr,. No, please. Mr. Magee.
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Mr. MAGE." I cannot say that some Customs employee did not, per-
haps, infer that we should harass or perhaps look at cargo. I don't
know what any employee may have said.

[The following material was subsequently supplied by Mr. Magee:]

MEMORANDUM

Mr. George M. Belk, Chief, Criminal Investigations Division
Mr. Lawrence J. Strickler, Staff Coordinator
Intragency Investigation of Chilean Smuggling Organization T3-70-0O05, 73-70-

0010, A2-69-0012, M1-70-0051, C1-69-0389, C1-70-0167-AS 00099, C1-70-
0211-AS 00105, 01-70-0212, C1-70-0219-AS 00120, C1-70-0243-AS00119.

THE ORGANIZATION AND METHOD OF OPERATIONS

A Joint BXDD-Customs Investigation of Chilean traffickers has revealed the
existence of a well organized, highly sophisticated International narcotics smug-
gling organization. This organization is responsible for smuggling vast amounts
of French heroin and Chilean cocaine to United States recipients. The upper
echelon of the organization is made up primarily of a hard-core of Chilean and
Argentinean nationals;-.however, the heroin is furnished to the group by one
or more traffickers of French origin.

Based on current intelligence, it is estimated that the organization is smuggling
from 100 to 300 plus kilograms of cocaine and heroin into the United States
each month. The New York City Police Department's Special Investigative Unit
seized approximately 100 kilograms of heroin and cocaine from this group In
April 1070, and approximately 200 pounds of cocaine were seized in July, from
the same organization, by Region 5 BNDD Agents. During the past 12 months,
the arrest of many of the organization's couriers by U.S. Customs Agents has
also resulted in seizures of impressive quantities of heroin and cocaine. This
same organization Is allegedly supplying a single Cuban trafficker in New York,
with 40 to 60 kilograms of cocaine each month.

In order to maintain their high level of activity, the organization utilizes
three primary means of transporting the narcotics from their Chilean base of
'activity to the United States. These three methods are:

(1) Smuggling via seamen couriers-Heroin is smuggled in large quantities
from Marseilles, France to various port cities In Chile. This heroin allegedly Is
smuggled via merchant ships of the Italmar line.

Seamen couriers, recruited from among the crew members of several Chilean
.vessels, are paid to transport the narcotics to various United States port cities.
Key cities in the United States Include Miami, Savannah, Norfolk, Baltimore,
Philadelphia and New York.

(2) Smuggling via commercial Airlines-Individual couriers are recruited
to transport cocaine from Chile to major United States, Mexican, or Canadian
cities. When deliveries are made to Mexico and Canada, additional couriers are
utilized to smuggle the narcotics across the border and into the United States.
Couriers are usually paid $1,500 per kilogram for United States deliveries and
$500 per kilogram for deliveries to Mexican and Canadian cities.

When couriers use commercial airlines to smuggle heroin, they usually fly
from various South American cities to Madrid, Spain. From Madrid they travel
to Marseilles to pick up the heroin. After securing the heroin in Marseilles, they
generally return to Madrid 'before continuing on to the United States, Mexico,
or Canada.

(8) Smuggling via Air Freight-Several air freight lines are used to transport
bulk shipments of narcotics from Chile to Miami, via Panama. These same air
freight lines are also used by Chilean smugglers to smuggle electronic equipment
from Panama's free zone to Chile.

When the narcotics arrive In Miami, they are generally rerouted, via truck,
to recipients in the New York area.

This smuggling organization Is especially innovative and, although the three
smuggling procedures mentioned above are the ones most used, the principals
are continually devising and trying new smuggling methods.

62-088--75-3
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IMMOilIZA"ON PONT OV IIS. OROANXIZAMOI

Since this organizatlon is highly developed and structured, and because it. con-
tinues to operate despite courier arrests and volume seizures, the principals are
particularly susceptible to, immobilization through the development of a con-
spiracy. On September 15, ARD Anthony Pohl submitted a proposed plan of action
which should be particularly effective in developing this conspiracy. His pro-'
posed plan is as follows:

"Pursuant to the various conferences held between Staff Coordinator Strickler
and Assistant Regional Director Anthony Pohl, the following suggestions are
being submitted for inclusion in the plan of operation in this case

OVERALL OBJECTIVES

BNDD will, through, the most expeditious methods possible immobilize this
International drug trafficking organization by striking_at the heads of this or-
ganization wherever located.

BNDD will jointly develop with U.S. Customs a conspiracy aimed at involving
members of this international drug trafficking organization. If these individuals
-cannot be apprehended within the United States, BNDD will attempt to cause the
extradition of the principals of this conspiracy from their foreign country of
residence.

AREAS 01? OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITY, UNITED STATES CUSTOMS

All couriers arrested in the future in connection with this investigation should
be thoroughly questioned by a single joint Customs/BNDD team regarding their
overseas sources of supply, intended recipients, methods of payment, etc.

All couriers presently incarcerated should be reinterviewed by a single joint
Customs/BNDD team regarding their overseas sources of supply, intended re-
cipients, methods of payment, etc.

U.S. Customs should insure that alerts have been placed at all points of entry
into the United States regarding the current method of operations used by this
international drug trafficking organization in order to stop the' flow of narcotics
smuggled into the U.S. by this organization.

U.S. Customs should concentrate on identifying all couriers and suspected
couriers with the assistance of BNDD foreign offices.

BNDD

Because of the magnitude of the operations of -this international drug traf-
ficking organization they are identified as a major system and assigned identifier
AM 00010.

BNDD Headquarters Will insure that the information available in all regions
and other agencies is properly coordinated and will resolve all operational
conflicts.

13NDD will set up direct and speedy lines of communications from Buenos
Aires, Argentina and other central and South American points to Regions .2 and
17 with Information copies of all reports to the Regional Office Region 15, Head-
quarters and other interested Regions or District Offices.

BNDD will supply selected foreign police officials with the necessary technical
equipment and investigative support needed to develop the instant investigation.

All BNDD informants in Domestic and Foreign Regions will be debriefed by a
single Joint BNDD/Customs team in connection with this investigation, particu-
larly, S-C1-0-0047 whose services will be retained for the furtherance, of this
investigation outside of Argentina.

BNDD will attempt to Identify the sources of supply in foreign countries and/or
their representatives, such as John Doe @ MStdrcel, by interviewing all possible
sources of information and reviewing all pertinent files.'

All suspected recipients of drugs residing in the United States will be investi-
gated and placed under surveillance by" Joint BNDD/Customs teams.

BNDD will obtain telephone listing and toll calls on all telephone numbers
in the United States which are called from overseas locations, with a view
towards the initlaton of Joint Title in operations with U.S. Customs.

BNDD will obtain telephone listings and toll calls on all telephone numbers
in foreign countries which are called from the United States with a view
towards the initiation of electronic surveillances by foreign authorities.
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As New York is the final destination of drugs handled by this organization,
Region 2, Enforcement Division III is designated as the spearhead of this in-
vestigation and will centralize all related activities.

All Regional Offices, District Offices and BNDD Strike Force Representatives
will supply the spearhead with copies of all reports pertaining to this investiga.tion.0

PROBLEMS ENCOUNTERED IN DEVELOPING THIS INVESTIGATION

To date, several specific problems have been encountered which have kept this
BNDD-Customs venture from achieving maximum results.

One problem stems from the fact that our Customs counter-parts have not
furnished us with complete written reports on their investigational activities
and/or informant debriefings. This has placed us at a disadvantage since we
are not aware of all of their Investigational accomplishments. This problem
has been particularly noted by our personnel in Regions 2 and 5.

Another problem relates to two conspiracy investigations conducted by our
Strike Force Representative in the Eastern District of New York. Both of
these conspiracies involve key principals in our joint investigation with Customs.
One conspiracy investigation was initiated in May; however, no written reports
were prepared until August 14. The other conspiracy was initiated in July and
the first written report was dated August 24. Had written reports been furnished
in a more timely fashion, investigative leads would have been uncovered which
were important to our joint investigation. Although, BNDD was not aware of
the important intelligence uncovered through these investigations; Customs
was made aware of the details by their Strike Force Representative.

The most significant problem arises from a lack of agreement, between BNDD
and Customs, as to how this- investigation should be conducted. An example of
this occurred on September 15, when Region 2's Assistant Regional Director
Anthony Pohl was discussing the investigation with Senior Special Agent Albert
W. Seeley, who is in charge of the Customs Task Force. Agent Seeley advised
Assistant Regional Director Pohl that he was recommending to his superiors
that Customs send an Agent to Buenos Aires to further this investigation. He was
also recommending that Customs Agents be dispatched to France and Spain
to identify European principals in the organization. Since BNDD has Agent
personnel stationed In these foreign countries, there does not appear to be any
valid reason for sending additional personnel to these areas.

Although, this investigation has been conducted as a joint BNDD-Customs
effort: operational control has not been delegated to either Bureau. As a result,
the total investigation has suffered from a lack of direction, coordination and
correlation. In some areas there has been much duplication of effort, while In
other areas basic leads have been ignored. In order to effectively immobilize this
highly significant international drug traffiking organization, control and direc-
tion for the further development of this investigation should be vested in one
Bureau. Since the sources of supply' and key principals are located abroad, sub-
sequent investigative efforts should be under the direction of BNDD.

THE DEPARTMENT OF THE TRFASURY,
BuaEvu OF CUSTOMS,"W'asI~agton, D.C., March ft., 1970.

Refer to Inv. 6-9949 NY

COMMISSIONER OF CUSTOMS,
Office of Investigations, Bureau of Oustoms,
Washington, D.C.

DICA Sm: The following report will acquaint the Bureau with the progress
of this case since December 1969. The information related is based on the facts
developed by extensive investigation which indicates that the members of this
international smuggling organization are well entrenched in their narcotic
trafficking between Buenos Aires. Argentine; Santiago, Chile; Mexico City, Mex-
ico; Madrid, Spain; Marseille, France; and the United States. Their trafficking
is known to be through the ports of New York, Miami, San Ysidro, Laredo and
San Juan.

The Chileans involved in this smuggling organization are unique, fn that they
seemed to have gained access to a steady source of supply for both cocaine from'
South America and pure heroin from Europe. They are able to dispatch both
heroin and cocaine directly into the U.S. from Argentina or Chile. In addition,
Mexico City is being utilized in their trafficking as a base to and from Europe,
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- as well as enabling them to make direct entry into the U.S. through the Mexi-
can Border.

The modis-operandi employed by this organization includes narcotics secreted
on the body of a courier; the false bottom suitcase carried by a courier; the con-
cealment of narcotics in cartons of well-known brands of cigarettes carried by a
courier; and the use of a five litre wine-Jug Imported from Argentina or Chile.
The couriers used predominantly are Chileans routed from Santiago to Miami;
Santiago to New York; Santiago to Mexico City to Tijuana through San Ysidro,
where the courier then flies to LaGuardia Airport in New 'York.

The exposure of this international narcotic trafficking began on December 0,
1969, in New York with the arrest of three Chileans and one Argentine by the
New York City Police Narcotic Bureau for possession of a large quantity of
heroin and cocaine. This investigation revealed that one of the Chileans had
just arrived the same day in New York at the JFK International Airport from
Santiago, in possession of two five-litre wine bottles, and that both of these
bottles had narcotics concealed in the false bottom. An immediate Customs alert
for similar couriers en route brought about the arrest of Arsenio Augusto Arraya-
Murchio at JFK Airport on December 8, 1969, In possession of two wine bottles
containing a total of 6 kilos of heroin. Subsequest investigation disclosed the
trafficking of the above named organization.

Your attention is invited to the enclosed charts. To date, a total of thirty.
one (31) kilos of heroin and six (6) kilos of cocaine have been seized from
this smuggling group. We have estimated the amount of narcotics smuggled
by the persons named, based on their past foreign arrivals, and on amounts
seized from known associates. In adding this estimate to the total amount
seized, we arrive at a figure of 203 kilos of narcotics, all of which no doubt was
destined for the New York City illicit market.

Sincerely yours,
ALBERT W. SEELEY,

- -Senior Special Agent.

Senator HASKELL. I am getting a little mixed up. I think you testi-
fied that Chile was a large source of drugs coming into the United
States?

Mr. MAGEE. Yes, sir.
Senator HASKELL. I think you further testified that the customs

service was told to be on the lookout.
Now, am I correct so far?
Mr. MAGEE. Exactly.
Senator HASKELL. 0(.
Now, tell me what the customs service did to implement the situa-

tion?
Mr. MAGEE. I have no way to find out exactly what we did to im-

plement it, sir.
Senator HASKELL. OK.
Thank you.
Mr. MAGEE. I suspect it was FTS-itis during that period of time.
Senator RIBICOIFF. I do not understLnd; if you made this inspec.

tion ald drugs were involved in the charge of harassment, that in the
records of the overall agency, even if it was in another subdivision,
you would not be. able to get that information to us or for yourself.

Mr. MAGEE. I believe I said I would furnish or do everything to
find exactly the quantities of the seizures that were made during that
period of time. But in addressing Senator Haskell's question, I can-
not say with any certainty how, or if, in fact, indeed, we did carry
out our interagency activity.
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Senator RIBICOFF. But, Mr. Raymond, you deny giving any order
whatsoever to be more careful and meticulous in inspections of
Chileans?

lr. RAYMOND. Mr. Chairman, the reason why my initial response
to you was that I could not recall--I now know of this. I cannot recall
that I was instructed, even with respect to this lookout for drugs
coming from Chile. However, I have been a supervisor of customs
officers for 13 of the last 20 years. I have passed on information ver-
bally to groups of employees, probably on the average of once a week
in the course of these 13 years, having to do with special lookouts on
drugs and other contraband coming from countries, from many coun-
tries. So it is very difficult for me to recall, even if I had the infor-
mation to which Mr. Magee-which Mr. Magee hs talked about-
that I specifically talked about drugs to any particular group of
employees.

Senator RICOFF. If you passed on specific directions concerning
drugs or contraband, then you could have given orders to your various
inspectors in Denver to be on the lookout for Chilean connections for
drugs on the persons or in the goods?

Mr. RAYMOND. Yes, sir.
Senator RimcoF. And if that were the case, then, the inspection

of the person or of the goods- would be more thorough and complete
and take a much longer tifme than it would 'be for the ordinary traveler,
the ordinary goods coming from a location which- did not concern
the interests of our Nation?

Mr. RAYMOND. Yes, sir, I would say that is right.
Senator RIBIcoF. So it could well be, as Mr. Brower says, that

orders had gone out to keep a sharp eye on goods and people coming
from Chile?

Mr. RAYMOND. Could well be, Mr. Chairman.
Senator RxBICOF.. You do not recall?
Mr. RAYMOND. I don't recall.
Senator RtIIcoF. But you would not deny that you could have

given such an order?
Mr. RAYMOND. I would not deny that I would have given an order

to be more careful about goods entering the country from Chile and
drugs on the persons of people arriving from Chile.

Senator RmrcoFF. I would like you to get the information on the
interagency basis throughout the Nation as to how much contraband
or drugs have been seized in shipments coming from Chile in the last
5 years.

fr. MAoEF.. I will try to. Very good.
[The information referred to follows :]

CHLAiN AnUsT DATA

Between December 1969 and March 1970, at least seven Chilean Nationals
were known to be arrested in New York. The arrests resulted in the confiscation
of 13.2 pounds of cocaine and 68.2 pounds of heroin.

The number of Chileans arrested between FY 1971 and PY 1975 totalled 48
with the most arrests (16) occurring in PY 1973. Forty arrests or 83 percent
of the total were the result of cocaine seizures. Seventy percent (28 arrests) of
all cocaine-related arrests were made in either Miami or New York.

48.8 pounds of cocaine were seized from the arrestees in FY 1971. No informa-
tion by substance is availablefor FY 1972 to FY 1975. These figures were devel-
oped as indicated on the attached chart.
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NUMBER OF CHILEANS ARRESTED BY FISCAL-YEAR AND TYPE OF DRUG

Fiscal year-
Drug type 1971 t 1972' 1973' 19743 19758 Total

Cocaine ................ 11 4 14 4 7 40
Heroin .................. . 0 0 1 0 0 1
Marihuana ............. 0 2 1 0 0 3
Other drugs ............ 0 4 0 0 0 4

Total ............ 11 10 16 4 7 48

I Figures taken from "I intelligence Review."
SFigures taken from ASAN reports.*Figures from DEA and BNDO figuree not kept before fiscal year 1975).

COCAINE RELATED ARRESTS BY FISCAL YEAR AND SAC

Fiscal year-
SAC 19721 1972' 19738 19743 19752 Total

Miami ................. 3 2 6 0 1 12
New York .............. 1 2 .. 3 4 6 16
Los Angeles ............ 0 0 2 0 0 2
San Francisco ........... 0 0 1 0 0 1
Norfolk ................ 2 0 0 0 0 2
Baltmore .............. 5 0 0 0 0 5
Unknown .............. 0 0 2 0 0 2.

Total ............ 11 4 14 $4 7 40

1 Figures taken from "Intelligence Review."
1 Figures taken from ASAN Reports.
3 Figures from DEA and BNDD (figures not kept before fiscal year 1975).

Senator HASKELL. Mr. Brower, would you mind repeating what your
recollection of the directive from Mr. Raymond was?

Mr. BROWEB. Well, as I previously stated, Mr. Raymond gave us
a brief background on the political situation in Chile at that time and,
mainly, it involved the Communist takeover of the U.S. corporations.
The United States was having a very bad time in Chile and pulling
out fast. And then the dilative that I have stated was issued.

It was said that it was very secret in nature, that it would not be
passed on. We would implement it and not make any mention of it
to anyone at any time.

Senator HASKELL. Wererugs mentioned?
Mfr. BRowER. No, sir.
I wish to add that I recall-it does not come out in the newspaper

article--but I also remember that it was stated that this directive
would only be given to a few select people.

Now, Mr. Ehret and myself were import specialists, what they
call team leaders. We had, theoretically at least, people underneath
us, subordinates. It was told to us that we would implement this order
ourselves and relay as little information as necessary to our subordi-
nates. We would carry it out without involving more people.

If this were the normal type of drug activity that Mr. Magee speaks
of, I am sure that customs would want each and every employee fully
aware and alert to do his job. I believe it was in 1968-I stand cor-
rected; it may have been 196--that customs was involved in a very
close scrutiny of drugs coming out of Mexico. There were written
directives by the tons at that time regarding the Mexican connection
or whatever you wish to call it. At that time, I think it strictly was
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a drug-oriented program, hopefully, to stop the flow of marihuana
from Mexico.

But the orders and the manner in which those directives were give-
differ greatly from the secretive nature that was carried out in the
Chilean incident in 1971.

Senator HASKzLL. Thank you, Mr. Brower.
Perhaps, Mr. Chairman, it would be helpful to have for the record

the directives that went out on the Mexican drug situation.
Senator RmIco r. Will those be procured for the committee, too?
Mr. RAYMoND. I beg your pardon, sir?
Senator RmICOFF. Mr. Magee, would you get for the committee di-

rectives during this period covering drugs from Mexico?.
Mr. MAOEE. Drugs from Mexico?
Senator RmICOFF. Or drugs from any place?
LUt us see-how you handled that.
Mr. MAOEE. Very good, sir.
Senator HASKELL. For the decade 1965-75.*
Mr. BRowEit. I left the customs service, resigned in September of

1974. It is unsubstantiated, but it has been brought to my attention
that after my departure from the customs service, there was a similar
directive issued against the Arab nations. I bring to your attention
the oil crisis of the past year.

That is only rumor, but that is what I have been led to believe.
Senator RmrcoFF. Do you have anything else that you want to

- tell us, Mr. Brower?
Mr. Bnowm. Very frankly, I could probably take up the entire

day speaking of other matters. It would probably be in the best in-
teist of these hearings, if you have any other specific questions you
would like to ask me-

Senator HAsKE. Why do you not just stay around ?
Would that not be a good idea, Mr. Chairman?
Senator Rmicorr. Yes; but we do not want to close you off, sir.

You have made these charges. I believe that you are the basis for the
charges being initiated. I would not in any way want to restrict you
in what you would want to tell the committee.

Mr. Biowi.. I think that perhaps in the audience we have other
people involving the Chilean incident that may be able to give testi-
mony to the fact that they do not believe drugs were involved.

Senator RiBICoFF. Well, while we have this problem, we might as
well clear it up.

Is there anybody else in this room that is aware of the Chilean
episodes?

Yes, sir. Do you want to come forward?
Is there anybody else who has an awareness of the Chilean-what

is your name, sir?
. Jr. GntrnAcI, Joseph Orubach.
Senator RmicoF?. And what is your position now?
Mr. GIMBACH. Deputy District Director of Customs for the Detroit

District.
Senator RmycoFF. Would you raise your right hand?

*The information referred to was not provided.
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Do you solemnly swear that the evidence you will give before this
committee will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God I

Mr. GRumACH. I do. h
Senator RmIcoiT. You have heard the testimony so far.
Would you want to comment, sir, on the question of Chile, harass-

ment of goods or persons, and the problems of drugs from your own
personal knowledge t

TESTIMONY OF JOSEPH GRUBACH, DEPUTY DISTRICT DIRECTOR
FOR' CUSTOMS FOR DETROIT

Mr. GRUBACH. My knowledge of the question of harassment of
Chileans is very limited. At Detroit, we usually hear of these things
through the newspaper and so forth. And in order to determine
whether there is anything to it or any truth to it, I usually pick up the
phone and call somebody that I know.

In this case, I called Harry Kelly, who is district director at
Houston. And I talked to Harry, as well as his chief inspector down
%there, as to whether there is any truth in this, because I am in my
49th year in the Customs Service, and I get pretty concerned when
things of this type come up. And I talked to Harry quite a long time.

And in talking about the newspaper clipping that I saw this in,
I mentioned that Bruce Brower has charged tat he was given in-
structions to delay the shipments coming from Chile, also to delay
passengers, make'it as tough as possible. I says, well, is there any
truth to this thing.

And he says, yes, sir, I can tell you, I got the same order to do the
same thing. And in the conversation I asked him, I said, did you
get anything in writing on this thing. And he says, no, it was all
verbal, and r passed it down to my chief inspector. And he says -this
happened about 2 or 3 months before the district director, Roland
Raymond, went to N~w York, was transferred to New York.

And-he expressed the opinion that this was deliberately kept verbal,
and the order was withdrawn within a week, was his remark. And I
asked him specifically, I said, was any narcotics mentioned in the
directive. And he said, no, narcotics was not mentioned, but the whole
thing was to slow down the clearance of passengers, overquestion
them' do everything you can to slow down the release of the passengers,
as well as any commercial shipments.

That is more or lesq the extent. And I got the same story- from his
chief inspector. He told me to talk to him.

I was just interested, out of the integrity of the Customs Service
and its image.

Now, that is really the extent of my knowledge of the Chilean
matter. Now, in connection with drugs, at this time-and it was back
some time,-I participated in a border operation on drugs. We were
all indoctrinated on drug interdiction from way back, even the special
program that took place on the Mexican border, we had some inspec-
tors that worked there. And when they came back, about a year before
the border operation along the Canadian border came into being, we
had organized the year before that, how we were going to handle this
drug problem.



So actually, it becomes a natural thing with a Customr ocer. He
didn't need any directives as to whether he should interdict drugs or
seize drugs when he sees them and so forth, in giving passengers their
examination. And also, if they have any suspicions, they will resort
to searches and so forth. They have a lot of border traffic coming
through by automobile, in which we follow certain techniques. We
are all aware that drugs are something we don't want in the country,
and we don't need any special directives to this effect.

Senator RIBICoFF. Are you still in the Service, the Customs Service?
Mr. GRUBACII. I'm still in'the Service, my 49th year.
Senator RiBICOFF. Your 49th year. But there was a general directive

nationwide at this time to do a slowdown on Chilean
Mr. GRUuACH. No; we did not receive that directive in Detroit.
Senator RIBICOFF. You did not receive it?
fr. GRUBACH. We did not.

Senator RIBICOFF. You were told there was such a directive in other
sections?

Mr. GRUBACH. That's right, through word of mouth and also the
newspaper clippings was the first I was aware that such a directive
was issued.

Senator RiBiCOFF. This was in 1971?
Mr. GRUBACT. 1971, right.
Senator RIBIcoFF. And it lasted for a week, and it was-
Mr. GUBACH. This is what I understand; lasted for a week, that'swhat I was told. And I was just curious as to whether such a directive

would be issued by our Bureau, because, I can tell you frankly, if an
order came to me of that kind, I don't care who issued it, I would
not follow it. I would say put it down in writing if you want us to
slow down the passengers, slow down the clearance of merchandise,
under that condition, I would say I would like to have this in writing.

And I. frankly say that if it did come down in writing, we would
do it.

Now, I want to make one thing clear on the drugs. We do get a lot
of information out of the Bureau on the various methods used in con-
cealing drugs in shipments, on the person and so forth. That is a
regular thing; it keeps us alert of the different methods that are used.

But, as to saying that you seize drugs when it comes in from Chile,
we don't get any directives like that, because it is a natural thing with
a customs officer. That is his duty.

Senator RiBIOFF. And you know from your experience from which
countries they are more apt to be coming in than other countries?

Mr. GRtBACH. That's right. We get intelligence information. The
communication is under file of intelligence, and we get these regularly.
It gives us the full picture of where the drugs are coming from, how v
they are going to be concealed, and so forth and so on. But customs
officers are on the lookout for drugs all the time, constantly, no matter
where they come from.

Senator HAsKELL. Suppose, sir, it-suddenly had been discovered that
Chile was % source of drugs. You know, all of a sudden somebody
found that there.is a ring operating from Chile to bring drugs into
the UTnitoil States. Would the Customs Service'alert its personnel, and
if so, in whatmannerI
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Mr. GRUBAUH. They would alert us in writing, in the form of a let-
ter. lihT y would give us all the details of how it might be conceg1ed,
whit kind of drugs, where it is Coming from, and so forth. -

1 Could-not conceive that our lBureau would not issue directives on
drugs in any other way than in writing.

'Senator RIBicorF. Did you ever work with ir. 3rowerI
Mr. GUBACH. Yes; I hired Mr. Brower at Detroit.
Senator RIBIcoiF. You hired him in Detroit.
Mr. GRUBACH. Yes, sir.
Senator RiBicoF. And was he a good employee?
Mr. GRUBACH. I would say he is one of the brightest I have run across

in the technical line.
Senator RIBICOFF. Mr. Magee, in your investigation, was there any

reason that you found that Mr. Brower would be biased in his charges
or would be trying to take it out on the Customs Service?

Mr. MAOEE. You mean in the entire investigation?
Senator RBiCOFT. Yes; your investigation as to this incident. Is

there any reason why you would believe that Mr. Brower would be out
to get the Service?

Mr. MAGEE. Yes; well, Mr. Brower was also the subject of investiara-
tion with the Office of Internal Affairs. And before the investigation
was completed, Mr. Brower chose to leave the Service.

Senator RIBICoFF. What were the circumstances involved?
Mr. MAGEn. It was reported to Customs through the Office of In-

vestigation. The Office of Investigation is clirged with conducting
inquiries, both foreign and domestic. on matters involving fraild by
importers, attemnts to defraud the Government out of duty. There
was an investigation underway of such a firm in Denver.

In calling at that firm, the owner or president. I don't have the title
exactly, indicated and in fact originally said that Mr. Brower had
forewarned him of the investigation by Customs.

Consequently. when our investigators arrived at the firm, the owner
of the firm had all of the necessary correct answers.

Senator RiBicorT. When was this; what was the date?
Mr. MAGEE. May I refer to my notes? This was June of 1974.
Senator RIBcOFF. June of 1974?
Mr. MAGFE. Yes.
Senator RIBcOFF. Was Mr. Brower aware of an investigation under-

way concerning himself
Mr. MAOEE. He was shortly thereafter. I do not have the exact day

like June the
Senator RmicorF. But in that time frame between June and Sep-

tember, he was aware (.f an investigation going on concerning himself
Mr. MAGEE. He was interviewed in connection with this very matter

I have been discussing.
Senator RIBIcor. Do your records show when he was interviewed
Mr. MAGrE. Just a moment. He was interviewed on July 12, 1974.
Senator RmicoF. Mr. Brewer, would you want to comment on the

connection between the investigation undertaken concerning yourself
and your resignation in September of 1974?

Mr, BRowER. Yes. I think that you need a little background, though,
to fill you in on the complete matter.
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Customs and I had been at odds, I guess you would say, not really
customs, Mr. Maier, who is now regional commissioner and was then
and myself had been at odds dating back then to early 1972. Immedi-
ately following the investigation or I think while it was still in prog-
ress, my claim is that employees, the public, people that provided
information for that-the 1971 investigation-were the later targets
of harassment by customs management. I feel that I was one of those
targets.

In February of 1972 I was ordered to make a lateral transfer from
Denver to Houston. At the time, I was on sick leave convalescing at
home for a period of 4 months. And Mr. Maier and the head of regional
personnel, Mr. John Biondi and Mr. Tipps, port director at Denver
asked if they could come to my house, which I thought was a social
call.

They arrived at my house and Mr. Maier presented me with a letter
stating that I would be transferred within a month, I think it was, to
Houston. And I asked Mr. Maier for a reason and he said he didn't
have to give me a reason, and his word was it, I was going to be in
Houston.

And I said well, you see the shape I am in. I am in a leg cast, a cast up
to the hip and I don't know when I will be able to travel and further-
more I have no intention of moving to Houston because I believe this is
retaliation against my efforts against the targets of this investigation,
that I am not happy with what is happening in Denver.

He stormed from my house and said nothing more. Within the next
year, approximately a year, customs repeatedly tried to force me to
make this lateral move to Houston.
. I always fought the move, they subjected me to medical examina-

tions, fitness for duty type thing, which I thought was an extreme
harassment, because of my physical condition at the time. I didn't know
if I would walk again.

And, so, from that time, 1972, Mr. Maier really didn't care to have
me in the Port of Denver. I think he thought I was a troublemaker
there. I was trying to get to the bottom of the hornets' nest and it would
be best if I was moved elsewhere.

One of the charges that Mr. Maier and Mr. Raymond made against
me at the time was that I could not cooperate with the public at Denver.
They said this would be a good reason for you to leave Denver.

I know that the Office of Security and Audit has asked me this ques-
tion numerous times: Why I had the contact that I did with the
importing public in Denver.

It began as a result of this charge against me that I could not
cooperate with the public. I began asking around if this were the case.
Ana it seems as if, and they were unsolicited, numerous letters came in
to the contrary saying that they had no problems with me as far as
public relations, you know, that I could get along with them.

From that point, Mr. Maier I think, chose to use any method that he
could to get me out of Denver. In January of 1973 it'finally reached a
head. Mr. Maier agreed to a personal conference with me regarding my
transfer. The reason for this was because in all of my communications
with our regional personnel office, including Mr. Biondi, who was the
head of the division, no one could give me an answer. In fact, Mr.
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Biondi told me very frankly, he said, Mr. Maier is handling it person-
ally. He is not going through the personnel division. We have no
chance to even make our suggestions or comments on it. I would-
suggest you have a conference with him.

I traveled to Houston in January of 1973 and presented, essentially,
some of the same facts that were brought out in those investigations
of I971 that you now have before you, and told him that I was not
happy with the situation, that I intended to continue to push to find
the real causes and get the mess cleaned up at Denver.

I talked with Mr. Maier for about 2 or 3 hours in his office. At the
conclusion of that meeting he decided that-well he left the office and
he came back and told me, he had decided due to financial restrictions
to temporarily rescind my transfer from Denver to Houston.

This was, like I say, in January of 1973. Approximately a year of
peace transpired then until March of 1974 when continued efforts were
made to transfer me to Houston.

I believe it was in April of 19744 again attempting to reach the bot-
tom of the problem of customs at Denver that I went to security and
audit myself and requested a reopening of the investigation of 1971
in which no conclusive results happened. "

I was interviewed extensively, interrogated, put on tapes, my allega-
tions were stated to security and audit people in April of 1974. And
then, shortly thereafter a rumor in Denver had it that I was being in-
vestigated.

I missed just one thing in the sequence of things here. Shortly after
I requested'the reopening of the investigation. I had another personal
conference with Mr. Maier. I had also, when T asked for the reopening
of customs investigations by security and audit, had written a letter to
Senator Haskell requesting that his office look into the matter.

I have in front of me a letter addresed March 11, 1974 to Senator
Taskell.

Senator RIBCOFF. You wrote to Senator TTaskell in March of 1974
and the investigation concerning yourself began in June 1974. Is that
right?

Mr. BROW June, I believe, yes, sir.
If I may j ust quote from the letter-
A copy of my complete file for the past 2 years has been made available to

your office. It will help explain in more detail that which is only briefly touched
upon in this letter. I am available at your convenience to elaborate upon and
explain the present customs picture in Denver.

In closing, I believe the entire customs operation in Denver is worthy of your
investigation. My case is only one small part of the whole complex problem com-
pounded by improper management.

I went to Senator Haskell. At the time I also wont to Senator Domi-
nick and Representative Brotzman of Colorado. That was in March of
1974. In April of 1974, Mr. Maier met with me in the customhouse
in Denver behind closed doors, he and I alone. And he immediately
set upon me for seeking, as he put it, congressional assistance.

He very frankly tore me apart with four-letter words for about 10
minutes. which T may add, is not like Mr. Maier. He completely tore
me apart for poing outside the customs service for seeking some sort
of solution to this problem.
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In that meeting with Mr. Maier he informed me again that I would
be transferred to Houston. I informed him I intended to stay in Den-
ver in any capacity necessary and continue to fight this matter and if I
may quote Mr. Maier, he said, "Mr. Brower, I will get you one way or
another."

OK, then after this meeting, the investigation continued, a rehashing
of the 1971 investigation. And, then as you stated, in June of 1971,
very tronieally, an investigation was opened on me. ...

Senator HASKELL. Thank you, Mr. Brower.
I think this aspect of the situation is pretty well laid on the record.

I would like to ask Mr. Grubach whether you have any klowledge
of the type of abuse that your Audit Division, I forget what the name
of it is now, the Security and Audit Division of the Customs, men-
tioned about the findings in Denver.

The findings in Denver, briefly, were improperly confiscating goods
and then using them; overtime; accepting of gratuities, primarily
gifts of liquor to speed up clearance; and, an incident when an in-
spector, whom Mr. Brower as identified as a Mr. Miller, grabbed
somebody and threw him against the wall.

Now are you at all familiar with the abuses that your own In-
ternal Security and Audit Division found in Denver? Are you familiar
with what happened?

Mr. GnUBACH. At Denver?
Senator HASKELL. Yes.
Mr. GRUBACH. NO; I don't.
Senator HASKELL. Have you heard of any abuses of overtime or any

other abuses existing within any region of the Customs Service?
Mr. GRUBACI. Any region of the Customs Service?
Senator HASKELL. Yes.
Mr. GRUBACH. No; I haven't. We have a lot of overtime in Detroit,

butwe have trouble getting men to work, so we haven't got that typeof
a problem.

Senator HASKELL [presiding]. So you have no knowledge of that l
Now Mr. Brower, do you have anything further? I think we have

covered the Chilean thing back and forth. I think that the investi-
gation of you, particularly the timing, is pretty well established on the
record. I think we have covered that aspect of the situation, but do you
have anything further you want to add?

I willask the same thing of the other gentlemen before we go on.
Mr. BROWER. Yes; regarding my investigation, personally I feel it

was a method employed by Customs to bring discredit on me because
of my actions, because I was trying to get to the bottom of the problem
and would not cease.
. 1.think that the-I am sure that the results of that investigation are

in front of you.
Senator HAK;LL. Yes; we have that investigation.
Mr. BROWER. And I have had a chance since my resignation, to read

that investigation myself, and I think there were no conclusive fid-
ings in that investigation, if I am correct.

Senator HASKELL. That is the way I read it.
I would like to ask you, Mr. Magee, is that correct I
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M. MAGIM' Well, if I may, just for the record the investigation
involving Mr. Brower actualIybegan September o? 1972 with a third
party, considerably in advance of the 1974 date.

Senator HAsxEL. Do you have a copy of that ?
Mr. MAOEL Yes, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Would you submit that for the record ?
Mr. MAoxv. I don't know if this is one that we ordinarily furnished

under the Freedom of Information Act or not.
Senator HASmZi. I am just asking if you could submit that one.
Mr. MAGIC. I would like to first check with U.S. attorney in Denver,

Colo., who has an interest in this particular matter, before submit-
tinl it.

Senator HASKELL. I am asking you. I will ask the chairman when
he gets back. We are investigating a rather serious matter concerning
the Customs Service. I am as ing you, you can refuse if you wish, but
I am asking you to submit that investigation for the record. Do you
see? I would like to verify the dates.

Mr. MAGE. Well, there are two 1974 investigations, one initiated
at Mr. Brower's request, that has been furnished. Now are you now
speaking of the one that involved, perhaps, the question of his own
pe-sonaI involvement.

Senator HABiKFLL That's right. I think you just said that began
in 1972.

Mr. MAGIE The investigation leading to that of the third party
importer began in 1972. In June of 1974, the importer volunteered'Mr.
Brower's name.

Senator HASKELL. So the investigation of Mr. Brower commenced
in June 1974?

Mr. MAoC. That is correct.
Senator HASKELL. That is all that is material for this record.

I".' Mk fAO E. Very good.
Senator HASKELL. Mr. Raymond, do you have anything further

that. you would like to add ? I .
'Mr. RAYMOND. No;, I have no further statements.
'Senator HASKELL. Mr. Grubach, do you have anything further?
Mr. GRUBACH. Well, I have some information here that may not

relate strictly to Denver, but it will depict conditions that we have in
the Detroit district that may respond to your request in a clipping
that. I found that out of the Denver Post and one out of the Rocky
Mountain News dated July 23.

1 noted that you were interested in knowing if a national investiga-
tion of the Customs Service should be initiated to see whether similar
activities are going on throughout the Custoins Service.

" Now, in line with your wishes, I would like to give a cross-section
account of imprprieties and illegal activities of various nature that
took place and is taking place in the Detroit district with the full
backing of the regional commissioner in Chicago and the district
director in Detroit, and I believe with some knowledge of the Com-
missioner of Customs although I am not certain of that.

Senator HASKELL. i think that would be very material to this hear-
ing, and I would appreciate it if you would proceed.

Mr. GRUBACH. NVe have a port at the Port of Muskegon. We hilre a
port director there by the name of Fred Peterson, a professional cus-
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'mS.oflcer that has many years of Government service, I think-a out
26 16of which was at Muskegon.

kow.I am very concerned aboutthe manner in which professional
customs officers are being treated. Mr, Lacy tile reginal CoQlig-

SIP.ex, saw fit to divest the port director of his authority and reduce
hitnto an inspector, based- on some allegations that were made.agiinst
his office.
" NW, tO give you the full run of events and how it happened, I have

a whole list of letters, the series of letters which were issued, whirh I
think will point the matter up and show exactly what happened.

The matter' started out on a letter from the regional commissioner
6n August 7 to Mr. Fred Peterson, port director. And he says:

In view of the serious nature of the allegations recently made against your
ofce 'involving improprieties in the clearance of goods through the Port of
Mi'skegon, I believe it is In your best Interest as well as that of the Customb
Service to be temporarily relieved of your port director's akuthority.

This action is being taken only for the time necessary to determine if there is.ail'-basis' to the allegations and will not involve any loss of your pay or lave.
!Effective Monday, August 11, 1975,.Mr. Thomas Blanchard is being*detitiled

t6 t've as acting Port Director. Until an investigation 1)y the Office of the Direc-
tor of Internal Affairs of these allegations can substantiate the facts invblyed,
ydti will serve as Port Inspector, under Mr. Blanchard's direction.
* :ANow, Mr. Peterson was quite shocked at this and waited to protect

hiself in every way possible. He had to engage an attorney because
thi' Was serious. And I can readily appreciate his plight.
.- So immediately, he wrote a letter to Congressman Vander Jagt ex-
plaining this in this manner. He had a conversation with him. lie said:

V",is Is, to add further to our conversationn on August the 8th. Thank you very

much for your consideration and interest In my case.
I have been advised tiat effective Monday, August 11th, 195. I have been sus-
enFd. as United States Customs Service Port Directorfor the Port off Muskegon,

Mkfliihgan, for alleged improprieties in the clearance of goods througki the Port.
The alleged improprletyInvolves a three oUr delay In releasing sample .swp-

iiint -of steel tubing for the Steel'Case Corporation'.of Grand Raplds, Michtgan.
Actually, the real issue is that I refused tO carry out anImproper order from

one. of -my superiors at regional headquarters.
The shipment In question, was an insignificant routine inspection and ,ws to

b exEamined sometime during the afternoon of August 7th.
'The officer who was to make the examination had had a conversation with rep-

resentatives of the Case Corporation late the previous afternoon and had-advised
hlm- exactly what was required and when the examination -would be made.

Either Intentionally or otherwise, disregarding our Instructions, dispatched a
man early on August 8th to Journey to Muskegon to pay the duty and pick up the
shipment.

At 9.:04 a.m., our office received a call from Steel Case stating a man was on
his,-way to pick up the shipment and had it been examined yet. Naturally it had
not been. At approximately 10:15 a.m. a man Identifying himself as a Steel Case
employee appeared at our office. Our examining ofl&fr had long since departed
for Grand Rapids. There was now no way that we could accommodate Steel Case.
I, explained the situation and he apparently was satisfied.

-However, he no doubt had had instructions from someone at Steel Case, if you
don't get the shipment, call me, because at approximately 10:35 a.m., I received
a. call from the aforementioned individual at our regional headquarters.

Ile stated, I have Just had a call from service headquarters regarding a ship-
ment for Steel Case Corporation, Orand Rapids. What is the deal?

I explained that I know about the circumstances. Actually, I had not been
involved in the transaction to this point, except for explaining to the individual
who had come to our office.

My superior then said, someone from Steel Case called Congressman Vander
Veen and in turn called the commissioner, that is Commissioner Acree's office,
who called us. And they want the shipment released.
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H*e then. directed, me to dispatch another inspector to ipake the examination.
told him that I could not do that because all of the paper work was with the

Inspector in Grand Rapids. Certain papers, invoices and packing lists are vital
to making a proper examination of imported merchandise. In this case they were
particularly so because we suspected possible undervaluation.

After a heated discussion where I emphasized the routineness and Insig-
nificance of the transaction and the Impropriety involved in circumventing our
regulations, my superior ordered me to send a man to examine and release this
shipment because service headquarters said so. I refused.

This suspension is harassment of the highest order and an attempt to get me.
in line: namely, follow orders whether they are right or wrong. Isn't this what
Watergate-was all about?

I respectfully ask that you intervene on my behalf and have my suspension
set aside until a proper investigation of this matter can be made.

Thank you very much. Thanks also for my appointment with you on
August 19th.

ow, Mr. Peterson went to an attorney to protect himself and the
attorney wrote a letter to Mr. Jack T. Lacy, Regional Commissioner
at Chicago. He said:

Dear Mr. Lacy, Mr. Peterson conferred with this office today regarding your
communication of August 7th, 1975. Inasmuch as the communication does not
explain the allegations involving improprieties, a request is herewith made
for specific and detailed statements thereof.

Also, be advised that we view your procedure as a violation of Mr. Peternls
rights and of such 4 nature as to create in him a right of action.. * , .. .

It Is our contention that any charges made must follow the established
grievanceprocedures. Further, we question the attempt to divest Mr. Peterson
of the duties and responsibilities granted to him by the Commissioner of
Customs and the Civil Se'rvice Commission.The course of relief which we will recommend to Mr. Peterson will be
dependent upon the promptness with which these matters may be resolved.

Since Mr. Peterson has been relieved of his position as Port Director, prior
to investigation and Without proper charge, he considers himself suspended
and unable to serve in an inferior capacity.

The statement of allegations and improprieties, therefore, should i" 5 b
return mail. In the interim, request is made to set. aside the order of Auguit 7th
until the Director of Internal Affairs makes an appropriate investigation.

Mr. Peterson holds himself ready to report for duty daily resuming the
position of Port Director and with full authority.

Then Mr. Peterson found that there was an organization, or rather
a unit in the Secretary's office which is heade[ by Mr. Wilbur R.

. Dezerne, Director of the Office of Audit. This was set up pursuant to
the President's concern about the abuse of the merit system.

So, Mr. Peterson directed a letter to him, which is, very vital and
very poignant. He said:

Dear Mr. Dezerne. Enclosed Is a copy of a letter from Mr. Jack T. Lacy,
Regional Commissioner of Customs in Chicago to me wherein I am relieved
of my authority as Port Director of Customs in the Port of Muskegon and
demoted to the rank of Inspector.

Suspension and demotion are a result of alleged Improprieties in clearing
merchandise through my Port. Through the present moment I have not,, P"4
advised of what the specific Improprieties are. There has been no Investigation.
There have been no specific charges filed, no hearing, and yet I am apparently
guilty of something and the punishment has been meted out.

I feel this is a gross violation of my rights and due process and violates all
of the principles of the merit system. The normal chain of command for our
service is, Port Director, District Director, Regional Commissioner, Commisiioqer
of customs. The proper procedure would seem th-'be that-alleged vloldtionq
reported to the region are relayed through the District Director to the Port
Director, then an investigation should be conducted.
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If the allegations are substantiated, charges are then filed and punishment
determined. The offender then has access to appeal procedure.

Regional Commissioner Iacy has violated all prOPer chains of command and
procedures In this Instance. I-have been denied my constitutional right of
being presumed innocent until proven guilty, also I have been deprived of
my rightswunder the merit system.

My authority as Port Director Is derived jointly' through the Civil Service
Commission and the United States Customs Service as described Jn my
position description.

Mr. Lacy has Illegally removed that authority from me.. I am holding myself
available for .immediate resuipption of my. duties as Port Director. I refuse
to accept 4 demotion to the inferior position of Inspector before I have been
proprly charged, tried and convicted.

The Actinig Port Director, with instructions from the Regional Commissioner
cs classified me as absent "without leave. Tis means that X will 'ot be In a

pay status during that time. Loss of my salary will soon biom.e an extreme
hardshippn me and my family.

In addition, Mr. LacY's action Is a defamation of my character. It Is destroy-
ifng my reputation, my integrity and my career. I have nearly 25 years of
honorable government service with an exemplary record..

Ten years ago I was awarded the first outstanding performance* award ever
given to a Customs employee In the Michigan district. Since then I have received
a sustained superior performance award.I respectfully ask you Initiate any action necessary to immediately restore
me to my proper position pending results of a proper Investigation by your office.

I welcome an impartial Investigation. The facts will readily establish that
the action taken by the Regional Commissioner was improper and illegal and
willprove my.Innocence beyond a doubt.

Then the attorney took upon himself to protdet Mr. P tersoi's
interests and he also wrote a letter to Mr. DeZerue. Hb said:

This office has been retained by Fred A. Petetson regarding the suspension of
his status as Port Director, of Customi for the; Port of .Muskegon. We have re-
viewed the matter'carefully with Mr, Peterson and we are convinced that he

-has been defied due, process of law not only in the manner In which his job
performance has been challenged, but also In the procedure employed.
* There" has been- no definite charges and no investigation of any alleged im-
proprieties. To" more fully explain this situation, Mr. Peterson has written the
enclosed letter to you with the attached letter from the Regional Commissioner

'which advises Mr. Petersof of his suspension.
I am also enclosing a copy of the letter which I have addressed to the Regional

Commissioner in response to his order. We deem it imperative that the matter
be resolved with hl promptness and dispatch.

It is highly probable that Mr. Lacy will forestall an investigation of the claimed
improprieties because there is no foundation to this claim.

Therefore, w6 urgently request that Mr. Peterson be reinstated to his position
as Port Director and that the matter be investigated to Its conclusion following
his reinstatement.

We will be pleased to furnish you with any further comments or information
you may' desire.

.Then he, received a telegram from.Mr. DZerue.
Senator HASKEU. Mr, Grubach, I wonder, is this all going to be

involving Mr., Peterson, all of these letters you have there I
Mr,. GRBAbH. Ybs, Well, no, I hve another preparation. 6f general

matters.
Senator HASIOLr. I wonder if you couldn't submit those letters for

"the redord involving Mr. Peterson. And then if you would go to your
description of general matters, I think that would be .more appropriate
for tel hearing. • . ". . ,;,.

2



30

[The inforffii&6tfi ib4i& d ft f611 l4:
%EPAaTMtNT OF THiz T asu y
. U.S. CuSTUMI 8nuvz,

(Jhk'too, ILL, Aujiveu 7j 96.
Rf t to ? ll-2 -1s -RO J'rI.

N~I.?zbidai A; 1Pkib,
P r =Pr U.S. Cetom8 service,

mae a#is poins, of toilivinIg Wotir16tl' d# itdib .
the f Mlfu PiIy it in Y~d* 1%hM tat. is *o ab hit Of

Dt ~ ft~r b tt * Tyijfr* tU.t. A116ou Of kd(V, f

is, any soa 'h r.a* ,6 "
EI ie ad h1ective Mo1da1 . Aougas t.,ai l, WI aed to

~rve~a~4chg PhVrt Diefo i ~iaildii Veffikdf tlXxltto O
Internal Mai O~t~s l&~~dU~ tuattehekc l1bed y6u, wil
serv asl e ak pot ins rt te r. otoinli8erd's Di f P

p inelegeiDl pyopt
jT tk i

DkAEI~T fTItio TAM1*0

Cong eBhas uxAV i J',

Longt O r l tutinfl r tB .d _ Waae., D.C.
DEA ei , t o0RS'MAN lVAN1DEN JAO Ta 1 1e 8 iu frthe r to our pnre oti Of

Adggtat 8thp Thnk ybu very much for Ains o n nt dera oti and Interest 1h m a thee.
I hAve befel ad ied that effdtive Mofidao, August 11 19 I have oieh
tuseded fa the U rted States Cusths Service Difector for the P t 6 m

kijbh$ Miclyigaf, fr -alleged apridwpretles in the clearance of goods through the

port. The Mtleerd imprelpriety invotteit it thrie hour delay In IreteAsing a sabiple
intent of Mt16s tublini sar thn Steelease dorioraspoft 0 Grand BoWdej Mlthi-
gn. Actuarlyi thM milsad Is th t I yefu t carry *then itoproyr otder from
01% o iy se lo s t f RgionaI.Heidaee rte r rt

The shipment In question was un insigniflchut roneinle tlkanstetko and
~was 0o be tichinlned ~Odnetime during the Oftirhoon of August Ith. The officer
Who wvas t6 MaRke the osainthattoft hA~i had a co)6veftatton with ia repr%.entative
of the Steelcase Corporation late the previous afteoo aid had advised him
exactly *1ikt *hs -ftquired aid wheb. the exatntliftioA would be Made. Eitther
Intentionally or otherwihb, d1sb09ardiit Our instrudtdons, Steelcase dispatched *a
milh euly on Aughst 8th 'to dournfy tfo Mftkfgon to play the duty atfti pick up
tile -sbioiit. 'At 9:04 a.~n., *our office retelved * call from Steelcase stating, "a
man was on his way to pick up the shipment and had it been examined yet?"
Naturally, it had not tbeen.

At approximately 10:15 a.m., a man identifying himself as a Steelcase employee
appeared at our office. Opr ox n iin oiMir had Iong slnce departed for Grand
Uap ds. There was now 106'O Y hat t(tMtd 'aWite Stetlm 66661.i "palned
the.ult/Mh hatd lbe aAahIft v WaM sAtWtMIO.d. *iv0eve, "he WO doubt bad 'had
instruetioh)s froi somuit1e 'lt StVdcke, "if $'ou iion't get the bhlpbent-, call me",

t'e th p" QAe, 1Id wba I New *bout the, elr4m ?I Pee.
TnWN1a atll eaquirt~s. H 0 htatd v%,A h Od 'a from
Service Headqu rters regarlng a shipmept for Steelcpse Corporation St Gtiktd
fth$4A. Tht% AIM1?'I f#9xP1h 'Mist I Icfiei abbbt "Ye ~ kiitf 6~aie.
AeittyJ V*s. tot.. .beh Invoivkd .i tbh tran1*tf tq this,90podt "eeept 'for

efrijpp~t~lu~i1i, ho~ amtoor omeMy i~i o hen "Ijd,
'e eonellrflom8flIcast w" 136 hi V911db =en Whi 't1tt

called the Commissioner (Commissioner Acres's office), who AlMlm #A.k 'IA Wiy
want the shipment released." He then directed me to diqttch, another Inspector
to make the examination. I told him that I could not do that because all the
paperwork was with the inspector in Grand Rapids. Certain paper Invoices
and packing lists, are vital to making a proper examination of imported mer-
chandise. In this case, they were particularly so because we suspected possible
undervaluation.
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After a heated discumson, where I emphasized the routineness and insign
cance of this transaction and the Impropriety involved In circumventing our
Regulations my superior ordered me to send a man to examine and release the
shipment, because Bervlee Headquarters said so. I refused.

This suspension Is harassment of th highest order apd an attempt to '*gt ue
In line", i.e. follow orders whether they are right or wrong. Isn't this what
Wategate was all about?

I respectfully ask that you intervene on my behalf and have my susponsop
set aide until a proper investigation of this matter can be made. Tbhak you
very much. Thanks also for my appointment with you on August 19th.

Sincerely yours,
FPRIWBOK A. PwrsuoM,

Port Director of Ouatonw.

COOHRAN, VANDER PLOEG, COLLINGE, SILKY & COLE,
ATTORNEYS AT 1AW,

Jha&'okp, Mick,, 44ui'. 1$p 1875.
Re: Frederlck A. Peterson, PER-2-18-RO JTL
Mr. JAux T. TMw',
Regional ormmsioner, U.S. Oustoms Servioe, Department of the TrOJ",rQ1$vogo, Iii.

DAX J, I49y: Mr. Petoron apnger .rjtwithls omee today yroupg voar
communication of August 7, 1975. Inasmuch as the communication does qqt
e~plaln the Idol~egatlApzs .. . luvolyng 1i prow.etWm~", rpqupst Is Iiei.wJ* made
for speJ lfe #W#0 10 ll W. t epite t0e8of.

Also be advised that we view your procejtre p it vjpAtion of M4r. Peteram's
rights and of such a nature as to create In him a right f ktolon, It Is our
contt:halL aMgt &F a Ws made must follow the established grievance proce-
dures. - rather, we question the attempt to divest Mr. Peterson of thl9 4#Ato i *d
responsibilities granted to him by the Commissioner of Customs and the Civil
Service Commission. Th course of r.ellef wliclh wP will recoirntepd to Mr,
Peterson will be dependent upon the promptness with which these matters may
be resolved.

Since Mr. Peterson has been relieved of his position as Port Dirotor prior to
investigation and without proper charge, he considers himself suspended and
unable to serve in an inferior capacity. The statement of allelatiu and im-
proprieties, therefore, should Ivsie by return ipail.

In the lt*rlm, reqpat W zAafle to st #side 44e Orer O f 7, -wVtU
the Director of lptemzal AfMvw pke#s . apul oJorK4 lntweotatJp. Mr. ,euio
lU4s h1aelt xexy -0 neort for duty di'iW to ess e t k psjon ofJ PPo
Director 4ad4 w~tl; 4ipl utaortty.Miuerply y# ru,

A4x.y 1. VoArpm FPz .

Mr. WiLautT R;DZERTE,
IJe$or, Oftvl0 v14t,

Department of Treasury,W O'Shinvftet D.O..

Ow .4j M&D , f v*.: F I.h-pd is a copy of I0ter 1o Mr. JVL* T. 4M.,
i pjA CoMnW stoper of C(*;us '~ X, C-kjejWf tco, p me wbV4Lr I pp

rol ,v#4 Of , ntn as Port PiCwOr o J$p f or tho Port of M mMteb , A 01't 4 to t~e 4 .4 qn Ths, .e/o T e 4ppe41$os) Pgd ,d~pt

W rewult ot'aJ~ep Am xPIloffees toC4rWPA n-4 0004p~bM ay04-To the present moment, I have not been apprised of what the sp Pa wprieties are. There has been no investigation. There has be no .wqc 41p 1Oarges
filed, -o lMprg and jpteto X am apparently guilty of something and a punishment
baa been meted out. I feel this i4 a gross violation of my rights of.due 9WX ,pPd
violates all principles of the t

The normal chain of command for our service Is Port Diootor, lst1D Ictd)xe-
tor. Regional Commissioner, Commissioner of Customs. The proper JOore
would seem to be that alleged violations reported to the Reglo.a iayedth |tscl) to te Port A~mp. $'1MP :MI ,itANetMP ) td
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be.,conducted. If the allegations are substantiated, charges are then filed and
punishment determined.. The offender then has access to the appeal procedure.
, Regional Commisioner Lacy has violated all proper chains of command and

procedures In this instance. I have been denied my constitutional right of being
presumed innocent until proven guilty. Also, [--have been deprived of my rights
under the merit system.

My authority as Port Director is derived Jointly through the Civil Service
C commission and the United States Custom Service as described In my position
description. Mr. Lacy has illegally removed that authority from me.

I am holding myself available for immediate resumption of my duties as Port
Director. I refuse to accept demotion to the inferior position of Inspector before
I have.,been properly charged, tried and convicted. The acting Port Director,
with Instructions from the Regional Commissioner, has classified me as AWOL
(absent without leave). This means that I will not be in a pay status during that
time. Loss of my salary will Noon become an extreme hardship on me and my
family.

In addjtion, Mr. Lacy's action is a defamation of my character, it Is destroying
my reputatioii my integrity and my career. I have nearly 25 years of honorable
government service with an exemplary record. Ten years ago, I was awarded the
first Outstanding Performance Award ever given to a customs employee in the
Michigau District. Since then, I have received a Sustained Superior PerformanceA~ard;., ..

I respectfully ask that you initiate whatever action necessary to immediately
restore ae to my proper position pending results of a proper investigations by yourdfflee., I
.!I welcome an impartial investigation. The facts will readily establish that the

action taken by the Regional Commissioner was improper and Illegal and will
Vrove niy'innocence beyond any doubt.

Sincerely yours,
.•FRmEmoR A. Perzso.

Enclosure.
AUGUST 18, 1975.

Re ederick A. Peterson, Port Director, Muskegon, Mich..
Mr. Wnanuu R. DzZzRNE,
Dirwtor, Offle of Audit,
Department of Treaaury,
Washlgtots, D.O.

DEAB M&.-DzZznzr: This office has been retained by Frederick A. Peterson
regarding the suspension of his status as Port Director of Customs for the Port
of Muskegon. We have reviewed the matter carefully with Mr. Peterson and
vW' r#.convinced that he has been denied due process of law not only In the
manner In which his Job performance has been challenged but also In the prO-
cedures employed. There has been no definite charges and no Investigation of
any "alleged Improprieties".

To more fully explain this situation, Mr. Peterson has written the enclosed
letter to you'with the attached letter from the Regional Qommissloner which
advises Mr. Peterson of his suspension.

I am also enclosing a copy of the letter which I have addr4sed to the Regional
Commissioner in response to his Order.

We deem it imperative that the matter be resolved with all promptness and
dispajehf, It is highly probable that Mr. Lacy will forestall Investigation of the
clalnied Improprieties because there is no foundation to his claim. Therefore, we
urg tly .request that Mr. Peterson be reinstated to his position as Port Director
and that the matter be Investigated to its conclusion following his reinstatement.

Wd, will be pleased to furnish you with any further conmments or Informationyou m a)'~e mtre." ' " ."•
8,nderely yours,

,Ueloanres. AiW E. VA*bE PO .

(Western Union maglgram]
Fraumizo A. Piradoxr,
MoWnua Road,
Whafehafl, Mioh.
lifelegtam received. Making prelmnary check on fact now. Will contact again
when enough Information available to decide course of action.

W. DE lzw%
Director, Ofle of Audit.
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From Acting Director, Personnel Management Division, U.S. Customs Service,
Washington, D.O.
Mr. FEmDoRCK A. PETERsoN,
Whitehall, Mich.

We have received your'teletyped message of August 18, 1975, to Mr. Wilbur
Dezerne In Treasury. Mr. Dezerne has requested that we look into this matter.

Ve will be in touch with you again as soon as possible.
(Signed) JAMES H. WAuKu.

C*CEAN, VANDE1, PL0O, COLNGE, SIXT & CoLE,
ATTORNEYS AT LAW,

Muskegon, Mich., August 15, 1975.
Re: Frederick A. Peterson
Mr. ROBERT E. COLIGAN,
Treasury Department,
U.S. Customer Service,
(hicago, II.

DEAR Ms. COLLOoAI: With reference to our conversation of a few minutes ago,
Mr. Peterson and I again request that you proceed with your investigation of the
matters referred to in the letter sent by Jack T. Lacy to Frederick A. Peterson
on August 7, 1975.

Mr. Peterson and Inspector Rodger B. Pietach were present with us and both
offered to confer with you and cooperate with you in conducting your investiga-
tion, including the answering of all questions, so that the incident referred to
in Mr. Lacy's letter could be clearly identified.

We are advised that your investigation consists of deposing both Mr. Peterson
and Mr. Pletsch, however, you refuse to do so with myself present as their
attorney. You further insist that your conversations with these men be private
but placed on your tape recorder. You will not, however, conduct these conversa-
tions if we likewise tape them.

I herewith repeat my request for any regulation or statutory citation upon
which you base your position, (1) that Mr. Peterson and Mr. Pletsch are not-
entitled to have counsel present during either the conferences or deposition, and
(2) that the conversations with you cannot be placed on our tape recorder while
you are at the same time placing the conversations on your tape recorder.

Mr. Peterson, Mr. Pletsech and myself personally present this letter to you
during the session in which you propose to commence your investigation so the
factual circumstances surrounding same may be clearly identified and docu-
mented. We stand ready, willing and desirous of the immediate commencement of
your investigation.

Although you have stated that the incident under investigation related to the
office of the Port of Muskegon rather than any personal involvement of Mr.
Peterson, you were unable to respond to our Inquiry as to any explanation of the
incident.

Request is further made for-reference to the pertinent sections of the Federal
Personnel Manual under which Mr. Lacy has taken action.

Sincerely yours,
AtTlAx B. VANDER PLOM.

P.S.: When I left you at the office of the U.S. Customs approximately-one hour
ago with the understanding that I would shortly return with this letter, I am
advised that you departed the office and checked out of your motel a few minutes
after I left you. This letter is, therefore, being mailed to your office.

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY,
U.S. CUSTOMS SERVICE,

R1hfcago, Ill., August 18, 1975.Refer to PER-2-13-O OLD

Mr. FREDERIx A. PETERSoN,
U.S. Customs Service,
Federal Bufiding,
Muskegon, Mich.

DEAR M. PETRsoN: This will advise that the preliminary investigation con-
cerning alleged improperties in the clearance of merchandise through the port of
Muskegon has been completed.
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The inquiries to ddte failed to substantiate the alleoittons received from the
Importing community. Accordingly, effective August 19, 1975, you will resume
the authorities of Port Director of the port of Muskegon.

Sincerely yours,
JAo T. LACY,

fte*0.A1U Cotmmeoner.

COoIAIts, VANDR PLOEG, COLLINGE, SIM & COLE,
ArrORNEYS AT LAW,

Attention: Mr. lames beFrancis - Meke~ont Mfoh, August 7, 1975.

Rb: e'relerick A. Peterson, Port Director, Port of Muskegon, Michigan
Senator ROBERT P. GR Mr,
Russell Otleoe Building, Washington, D.O.

D AR ML D.FROcts: I appreciate your telephone call and your expression
of concern regarding the suspension of Mr. Peterson from authority as Port
Director. As stated to -you In our telephone conversation, Mr. Peterson was sus-_.
pended by the Regional Commissioner under cover dated August 11, 1975 with
no further explanation- or detail other than what was stated In the letter. Al.
though Mr. Peterson made request for an explanation of the "allegations . . .
involving Improprieties" no general, much less specific, explanations or charges
were ever given to Mr. Peterson.

The fact ot *he matter is that the situation relates to an incident on August 7
and involves the inspection and release of a shipment (approximately $17.00 in
value) to Steelcase Corporation of Grand rapids. The shipment arrived at the
Muskegon County Airport and Steelcase representatives were advised no less
than three times in the morning of August 7 that the goods would be inspected
by midafternoon. Such scheduling received the assent of all persons who were
party to the conversation. By late morning Mr. Peterson received 'a call from the
office of the Regional Commissioner of Customs and was ordered to go to the air.
port Immediately to inspect the goods and release them. Mr. Peterson had reserva-
tions about the stated value of the goods -but could not inspect the shipment in
any event because the appropriate papers necessary for inspection were with the
inspector whose Itinerary for that day included inspection of the shipment ac-
cording to the planned schedule. Nevertheless, Mr. Peterson expedited the matter
and the goods were Inspected and released before 1:80 the same afternoon. This
Is our entire understanding of the fact circumstances. To Inspect the goods with-
out appropriate papers would have necessitated a circumvention of the regula-
tions. To Inspect the goods any earlier in the day would have been an
impossibility.

In a conference with Mr. Lac.v, the Regional Commissioner, on August 1A, 1975,
he stated that he felt the so-called improprieties were serious and constituted an
emergency. He never offered one scintilla of evidence to substantiate such "serl-

'ousness" much less such "emergency." and admitted that he acted on hearsay
without ever talking to the complaining parties. As a matter of fact, we do not
know If there were any complaining parties. Ile states, however, that he re-
ceived a call from the Office of Congrbssman Vander Veen.

We believe that Mr. Lacy acted irresponsibly and capriciously in Issuing the
'order of Angust 7, 1975. He did not follow the customary grievance procedures,
nor did he utilize the proper chain of command through the offie of the Dsfirict
Director. Mr. Lacy explains ls unothodox procedure by claiming an emergency
situation. However. as stated above, he is unable to explain how the incident In-
volved an emergency. A relevant reference Is taken from a Customs publication
which states: "Ptmergeny suspeaions are effected promptly and must be sup-
ported by conclusive evidence of record that a 'bona-fide' emergency situation
doe exit". 'flabrimsly there was no emergency and there was no conclusive
evidence of any sort. lNirther nertinent references In the sme publication reelde:
"Any proposed suspension should be Initiated by 'the immediate supervisor,
through the district director, who will discuss the case with the Regional Per-
sonnel Office to Insure that statutory and regulatory requirement* are observed".

lBecause the Regonal Commissioner took such harsh measures and imposed
-a dlsciplInary penalty without prior admonishments, reprimands or warnings,
and without any impportive evidence, Mr. Peterson -feels seriouly grieved. He has
distinmished himself in the service of the U.S. Customs Office for approximately
25 years. The Regional Commissioner attests to his "outstanding performance"
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as recently as October of last year as evidenced by his letter of commendation of

TWiis icdent has brought us into contact and communicatou .Vi ot r .,
sounel df U.. ( ust0 s, We .i that 04 to not an 4olatqd pcident of b1 rre
agtioas by the AReonal OommsbQuier. QOtler person have also be n the ctn,
of mr. Iacy's $.r iepp6nsloIe eler of power whe4 tey have been guilty of
ot!uig Age than fAtWiafigtly ,idc!rlpg t0 ies.dutt .
It Is our desire tbtt an impartial investigation be conducted by the Depqrtmentof T~psry with all poel~te dppJtc. Mr. Peterra, te znemOare oi 1e staf,

-4ad other persojanel under 0e J rlsQtctAoi of Mr. lp4ey cannot properly tkuctlon
under the threats and antics of the Regional Commissioner.

I will be happy to fur4,Wh you with otny further Information you may desire.
Copies of various communications are enclosed for your review and your tUrther
edification.

Sincerely yours, -" -E. V F PLOEo.

Mr. GRUBACH. I think I have one letter here that sums up the matter.
I would like to read that into the record, and that will sum it up.

Senator HASKELL. All right, sir. .
Mr. GRUBACH. Here is one that I think it very pertinent. It was after

the visit made to Chiago with his attorney, Mr. Peterson received
this letter from Mr. Lacy. It says--

Dear Mr. Peterson: This will advise that the preliminary Investigation con.
corning.4lleged improprieties In the clearance of merchandise through the port
of Muskegon has been completed.

The inquiries to date failed to substantiate the allegations received from the
importing community. Aceorlihgly, effective August 19, 195 , you will resume the
authorities of Port Director of the port of Muskegon.

Now, it is interesting to note that he calls it a preliminary investiga-
tion. The investigation lie is talking about is a post investigation, which
was subsequent to the penalties imposed.

Now, this letter was addressed to Senator Griffin, and also to Con-
gressman Vander Jagt, which sums the whole thing up, and gives a
complete picture. I'd like to read thst into the record.

Senator HASKELL. Do you think you could submit that for the
record I It will be reproduced in full. It looks rather lengthy. We will
read it. But we would like to get to the more general matters within
your knowledge.

Mr. GRUBACH. OK. This can be done.
Senator HARKEL. Fine.
Mr. GRUiACTi. I think we can do that if we have reproducing facili-

ties.
Snator HTASKELT. Right.
[The above mentioned letter was submitted by Mr. Grubach:]

DEPARTMENT Or TE TaiEAsTYRY,
U.S. CUSToMA C Rvc.

Aftskego"t, MAO., Ootaber 9, 1975.

Ttp: lred#orik A. Peterson. Port Director, Port of Muskegon, Michigan
Senator RonpT P. Q0TArri,
Rotiaell Offine Bullding,
Wafitpton, D...

DEARSrSATOR GRUIFrIn: This is in further reference to our earjier AiDeal to
yon for akpistance In rixhtine a terrible wrong. Tn my attorney's earlier letter
dated Aungst 27. 197I'1. he related how Mr. .Tack T. T~y. the qt1al ,Ci1s-
sloner of Custom. Region IX, nxed blatantly Illeval tactics ,to strip fle of I)y
anthority a, Port, Director of Mpskegon. in retaliation for ,my refusal .to cir-
eumvent Customs law. As you will recall, Mr. Lacy wanted me to depart from
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the regulations in order to placate a complainant by acquiescing to demands for"special" treatment.

Because Mr. Lacy's reprisal against me is not an isolated incident, but rather
Is exemplary of a continuous history of abuse of power, I requested that an
imparital investigation be initiated. As yet, there has been no indication that an
independent investigation is being conducted. I am writing to you again, because
i and so many of my contemporaries strongly believe that such an investigation
is vital to the very survival of a viable Customs Service in Region IX. I respect-
fully urge you you to use the auspices of your office for the good of our Service
and the public.

Since our earlier communication, I did find out, quite by accident, that Mr.
Lacy and his Assistant, Mr. Clarence L. Bingham, visited the Grand Rapids
office of Congressman VanderVeen on August 26th, 1975. It was through Congress.
mail VanderVeen's office that the original complaint was made by Steelcase
Corporation. The visit by Mr, Lacy and his assistant was made after I had been
reinstated to my position, but during the period that the Chicago Regional Cus-
toms Office of Internal Affairs was conducting their "independent" investigation,
and the Treasury Department's Office of Audit and the office of the Commissioner
of Customs were contemplating their own investigations. Such a surreptitious
and highly irregular visit by Mr. Lacy, made even while Internal Affairs, the
Treasury Department, and the Commissioner of Customs were supposedly con-
ducting their investigations, is a direct violation of our published Code of
Conduct rules. It is even a direct violation of his own Regonal directive which
was circulated to all Region IX Customs officers.

Further, it is additional evidence of Mr. Lacy's continuing practice of flaunting
proper procedure, of flagrantly substituting his personally ill-conceived rules
for those set out in the Code of Conduct-rules which specifically forbid
unauthorized investigations by superiors. I question the likelihood of an impartial
investigation by Internal Affairs when it is being conducted under the present
circumstances. The offices of the Regional Commissioner and the Director of
Internal Affairs are across the hall from one another.

There are several compelling reasons for a truly independent investigation.
(1) High management officials, even those not in adjacent offices, are apt to
feel protective of their counterparts and perhaps, even unknowingly, let this
influence their actions. (2) When Customs officers, who are not familiar with the
facts, hear of an errant act of a lower graded official, there is generally little
turmoil within the Service, but if the highest ranking official in the region were.
the offender, the consequences would be shattering. We all take pride in, and
have loyalty to, the Customs Service. None of us, Including Internal Affairs,
want to see our Service tarnished with a national scandal and thus it might
seem expedient for Internal Affairs to gloss over breaches by a high official in
order to keep the situation on a lower level. This approach would also negate
the possibilities of even more troublesome waves for our Headquarters office
in Washington, who are already having serious and related problems of their
own. (3) The most imperative reason by far for the independent investigation
is the very essence of the situation. The Internal Affairs report was requested
by Mr. Lacy and their report of investigation will be made directly to him.
Reports by Internal Affairs do not make conclusions or recommendations. All
subequent actions are administrative and therefore, beyond the scope of Internal
Affairs. Just what these administrative actions will be are at the discretion of
Mr. Lacy. The situation is incongruous. Mr. Lacy illegally ordered by suspension.
He ordered the investigation. Now he has the sole power to make the decisions.
The injustice of this situation is that the Internal Affairs will investigate only
what the victim has done and will not delve into the deliberate illegality and
violations committed and perpetrated by Mr. Lacy, for which disciplinary action
would be truly Justified.

Even granting, for the sake of this discussion, that the Internal Affairs re-
port were to be unbiased, there is nothing which would compel Mr. Lacy to base
his decisions on the facts set forth in the report. I submit that it-is simply not
feasible for Mr. Lacy to keep his personal vindictiveness and illegal intentions
out of any decision in which he is so personally involved. Mr. Lacy charged me
with a rash of "serious improprieties", but I have been totally unsuccessful in my
repeated attempts to learn the true nature of the alleged improprieties.

In the meeting my attorney and I had with Mr. Lacy in Chicago during the
week I was suspended, Mr. Lacy alluded to an earlier complaint which had been
made by a Mr. Jangda. Though I had not been apprised of the complaint before, It
seems that-Mr. Jangda had complained to Congressman Vander Veen that I had
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made an ethnic slur. There is no denying that there have been complaints from
citizens who become irritated in their dealings with Customs. This is not peculiar
to the Port of Muskegon, but happens at all ports throughout the country. The
Detroit District office is replete with such complaints. Regretfully for Customs,
some of the complaints are justified, but generally, they constitute a reflection of
an individual's misunderstanding of our mission. Ours is an enforcement agency,
with the added responsibility of enforcing the laws of numerous other Federal
Agencies. At times, complaints may be exaggerated because of the red tape and
the inconveniences caused. Perhaps there has been a misjudgment of the attitude
displayed by a Customs officer in discharging bis duties. In any event, I assure
you that any allegation of an ethnic slur on my part has absolutely no basis in
fact. Such remarks would be utterly contrary to my feelings and philosophy of
life. I consider ethnic slurs to be Unamerican. Further, it is not my way of con-
ducting a professional and heretofore successful Customs business with the pub-
lic, in and around Muskegon, for the past 13 years, and for three years prior to
my appointment to this port. I have a total of 25 years government service; 16
plus in the Customs Service.

I digress by grasping at straws. But is it any wonder? In determining whether
I have committed some act which is so serious as to warrant my removal, it
would seem necessary to establish what it was that was violated. And so I con-
sider whether it could be a complaint. Could it be the one referred to above?
Could it be the more familiar complaint lodged by Steelcase? Preposterous, but
according to Mr. Lacy, it was this "rash" of incidents which necessitated his
drastic action. We must recognize that complaints cannot be equated with "seri-
ous improprieties." Complaints must be investigated to determine whether they'
have any basis. But "serious improprieties" would have to involve a breach of
law or regulations involving some omission or commission which was to the detri-
ment of either an importer or the government. There have been no such viola-
tions, nor even any evidence of such violations at any time in Muskegon. The
nearest thing to such an occurrence was Mr. Lacy's oral request that we unlaw-
fully release the Steelcase shipment, which of course, we declined to do.

But, according to Mr. Lacy, it was this rash of complaints which precipitated
his drastic action. Mr. Jangda in July and Steelcase in August.'As indicated, I
was not even aware of the Jangda complaint until our meeting in Chicago on
August 18th. At any rate, two unrelated complaints hardly constitute a "rash"
of anything. Certainly such complaints can, in no way, constitute "serious im-
proprieties" such as Mr. Lacy falsely charged me with and used as a basis for
his arbitrary and illegal action. Mr. Lacy admitted that he acted on hearsay with-
out even first having the complaints checked out. We have never been shown any-
thing which could serve as a basis for the charges or what was used to support
his allegations of "serious improprieties." Further, it is by Understanding that
the complainants directed their charges against the port of Muskegon, the Cus-
toms laws and regulations controlling imports, but did not direct them against
me personally. If this is so, Mr. Iacy's retaliatory actions become even more
ludicrous.

If the allegations were of such a serious nature as to require my immediate
suspension and demotion, why is it that it took one full week before an investi-
gator appeared at this office? Mr. Lacy is fully aware that the law requires an
investigation of charges prior to any adverse action. He has the cart before the
horse when he takes the adverse action first and then has an allegation checked;
and after imposing an illegal sentence. When Mr. Lacy takes the law into his
own hands and flaunts it in anger by impulsively imposing pinitive action, he
should be held responsible for placing his victim in unwarranted jeopardy and
prolonged agony. It would be difficult to predict how long I would have been
illegally suspended had I not taken positive action on my own initiative. It was
only after I went to Chicago that the belated "investigation" actually com-
menced.

Unless you were to experience an ordeal similar to the one I have been sub-
Jected to, there is -no way that I could convey the extent or seriousness of the
damage which this has done to the Peterson family and to me personally, both
as an individual and as a Customs officer. I had to secure legal counsel and have
incurred a considerable debt. The financial loss, however, is inconsequential when
compared to the mental anguish we have experienced.

The ramification of this unfortunate incident is much larger than any per.
sonal grief. When the next Customs officer dares to enforce the law against
Mr. Lacy's wishes, will he too feel the wrath of Mr. Lacy? Mine is not an Iso-
lated incident. Other Customs officers and senior managers have also been the

62-088-15----4
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victims of Mr. Lacy's irresponsible exercise of power to the detriment of the
Customs organization, its image and mission, as well at the morale and integ.
rity of its officers. I believe that if this misuse of power is allowed to go un.
checked, it will seriously undermine the enforcement effort and credibility of
every Customs officer in the Region.

It clearly Is time to ask some pertinent questions directly of Mr. Lacy. Specifl-
cally and in detail. What were the reasons for his actions? Why were the Civil
Service and Customs personnel regulations not followed? Under what authority
did he administer a punishment without any supportive evidence, prior admon-
ishment, reprimand, or warning? Why is he permitted to flagrantly violate the
personnel laws, regulations, and the Code of Conduct without being subject to
disciplinary penalties? Why was the Investigation initiated after the imposi-
tion of penalties rather than before, and why, in any event, did it take seven days
before an investigator began his investigation?

Enclosed are pertinent sections of the Federal Personnel Manual. Note that
in every case, an employee against whom adverse action is sought is entitled
to written advance notice; stating any and all reasons, specifically and in detail,
for the proposed action. The employee is then entitled to a reasonable time for
answering such charges. It is clear that I was injured when I was denied due
process of law.

The ramification of Mr. Lacy's actions are so far reaching, affecting Customs
employees and the Service itself, that we feel it is'imperative to determine the
legality of such action. This matter, for the good of all Customs officers and
the public alike, cannot be swept under the rug or "stonewalled."

In the Interest of lawful government, we earnestly solicit your continued as-
sistance in securing a prompt investigation by some independent arm of the
government such as the Treasury Departments' Office of Audit or the Congress'
investigative arm, the General Accounting Office.

Sincerely yours,
FREDEBICK A. PETERSOIN.

Mr. GRUBACH. Now, this also refers, more or less, to the desire of the
committee to find out what else is going on.

Senator HASKELL. Go ahead, sir.
Mr. GIUBACH. All right.'
Senator RiBicoFF [presiding]. Sir, I have, personally, other engage-

ments, and I will have to leave. Senator Haskell will continue these
hearings.

In view of the personal charges made and the person being charged
not being present, in all fairness, we will witlihold the printing, formal
printing of these charges, until such time as those being charged will
have an opportunity to respond, to give the person whom you are
making these accusations against, to give him an opportunity. He
should-have the opportunity of responding, either in person or in a
written statement.

Mr. Acree, you will inform the people of what has transpired. Copies
of this will be made available to whomever is mentioned, and that
person should have reasonable time to respond to them, in all fairness.

Mr. AcrEE. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your thoughtfulness and
your fairness, and your desire to see equity administered. I am hearing
things I have never heard before.

Senator RmIcorF. I understand that.
Mr. ACRE. All right, sir.
Senator RIBICoFF. Before I leave, if you will pardon me for just one

second-Mr. Magee.
Mr. MAGEE. Yes, sir.

2 STAFF NOTE.-Speciflc allegations and responses by the parties mentioned may be
found in the subcommittee files. They are not included here because of their personal
nature and because of the pervasiveness of statements derogatory of personalities.
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Senator Ruico'F. In your investigation of the whole situation
around Denver, did you make any ascertainment of the-problems
of morale or supervision or the work habits in the Denver area

Mr. MAGEE. No, sir. I have some subjective opinions in that area,
but our investigation was limited to those areas that inferred mis-
conduct or impropriety on the part of our customs employees.

Senator RIBcOFF. Well, since you are the one who is in charge, I
would like to have your subjective opinions.

Mr. MAGEE. No, sir. The gentleman in charge is Regional Commis-
sion Cleburne Maier.

Senator RIBICoFF. But you made the investigation, and this is part
of your duty. What are your subjective feelings about Denver?

Mr. MAGEE. Well, subjective feelings-it would be for the record
for that, because I have no personal input. I have not been to Denver,
and my area of concern is definitely a morale problem. We have had
problems there. I think we are addressing those problems.

Senator RIBICOFF. In other words, there is a general morale problem
in the Denver area?

Mr. MAGEE. I cannot speak of, at the moment. My information and
awareness on this deals with the 1971 area, and somewhat in 1974.
I think we would be less than astute if we didn't realize we do have
some problems there. And I hope we will be able to address them.

Senattor RIBICOFF. Do you think there ought to be a shakeup in the
whole situation in Denver?

Mr. MAGEE. Again, I don't want to preempt the testimony of another
witness who might be here, but sir, we have made efforts to change
personnel there. But we had the limitations of the Civil Service Com-
mission, who appointed an independent examiner who precluded us
from moving these people from Denver. There are certain factors that
we have not been remiss in trying to address, but we do have certain
legal limitations imposed on us by the Civil Service Commission.

Senator HASKELL. What type of investigation did you make?
Mr. MAGEE. We made investigations strictly into the reported im-

proper and illegal acts of the customs employees there. That is our
charter for the Office of Internal Affairs.

Senator HASKELL. In other words, you followed ip your security
and audit. Are you part of the Security and Audit Oflice?

Mr. MAOEE. Security and Audit is the old terminology for the Office
of Internal Affairs. It was changed last year.

Senator HASKELL. Is that what you are?
Mr. MAGEE. I am Assistant Commissioner for Internal Affairs,

formerly Security and Audit.
Senator RmicoFr. Do you mean that Commissioner Acree doesn't

have the authority, when he comes across a problem in anv of the
district offices under his jurisdiction, to give it a good shaking tip, if
he thinks it is necessary for the good of the Service and the good of the
public?

Mr."MAGEE. Only within the limitations of the Civil Service process.
Mr. ACREE. Mr. Chairman, if I may, si
Senator Rinicorr. Yes, sir.
'Mr. ACIEF. I appreciate having to depart and I would like to give

you the benefit of my observations over the last couple of days since
1E have gotten personally involved in these matters.
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A have satisfied myself that every charge that the young gentleman

has indicated this morning has been thoroughly and exhaustively
inquired into. I am also satisfied that, under the Civil Service regula-
tions and the procedures involved in the taking of averse actions, that
every effort was made by the Customs Service, prior to my becoming
Commissioner, to effect some disciplinary actions in these cases.
Appeals. were undertaken. One, indeed, even got to the Treasury
Department on appeal, and the Customs Service was reversed in the
action that had been proposed.

So what we have, in short, right now, is the remnants of an admin-
istrative effort that has been going on for the last several years, to
effect some personnel changes, and we have done so, in terms of down-
grading, in terms of discipline, within the limits of the Civil Service
regulations that are applicable to allFederal employees.

Senator HASKELL. Commissioner, specifically, a Mr. Miller was one
who did all of these things that your own people found were wrong,
and he has been promoted-how did that happen?

Mr. Acnt.PJ. Mr. Miller was downgraded two grades, as I understand.
I'm sorry-I had another one in mind, another gentleman. You say,
why was ho promoted ?

Senator IASKELL [presiding]. That is my question. I guess my ques-
tion first is, ws he promoted?

Mr. ACRFE. He was administered, as I understand it, some discipline.
Senator tICSELL. But now, he occupies a higher position in 1975

than he did in 1971; am I correct in that?
Mr. MAOEE. May I try to put things in perspective? I don't believe

the Commissioner has-
Senator HASKEPLL. I just want to know, first, does he occupy a higher

position now?
Mr. A[AGEE. Disciplinary action was proposed against Mr. Miller,

because there was evidence in the investigation he acted improperly.
le appealed. He was a grade 11 at that time. He appealed. The totally
independent appeal examiner, all the way from-California, someplace
in California, recommended that the disciplinary action be withdrawn.
The Regional Commissioner conferred with his personnel people. They
advised him that when an independent examiner asks you, or suggests
to you, that the disciplinary action be withdrawn, that it is proper
to withdraw it, so therefore, the Regional Commissioner had to with-
draw it.

Then, a number-we are speaking of a considerable period of time
went by. Therefore, he, much like in any court of law, he had been
found innocent, and he cannot be forever denied promotional consid-
eration. iHe was later promoted titlewise.

Sel ntor IASKELL. It may be too big for the hearing record, but could
you submit for our files and inspection by staff, the examiner's finding
of innocence of behalf of Mr. Miller. Will you submit that for the
hearing record? -

Mr. AcnEE.. It will be submitted, Senator Haskell.2
Thank you. "
Senator IT.%sji ti,. T think it is important if, in fact, some examiner

within the system found the charges were not well taken. We want

* The material referred to was not provided.
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to know about it. And I emphasize, we are submitting it for our files.
We may put it in the hearing record, if it is not too bulky.

Let us see. Mr. Grubach, you have the balance of your statement.
How much more is there to be read ?

Mr. GRUBACH. Well, I go into specifics after this. This is just to
show what the climate is that existed.

Senator HASKELL. I think we want to hear the specifics, but I think,
bearing in mind Senator Ribicoff's statement that we will withhold
printing until there has been some opportunity for a response, we will
accept the statement in full. I would like to hear the specifics, though,
so why don't you go ito the specifics.

Mr. GRUBACH. All right. You're going to accept the statement in
full?

Senator HASKELL. Yes, the statement will be accepted in full, but
I would like to hear the specifics.

Mr. GRUBACII. Would you like me to continue?
Senator HASKELL. Yes, sir.
Mr. GRUBACIH. I have listed the specifics under 10 different cate-

gories;-and these categories are a part of the statement. I won't read
them, but I will give you the category, and then the specifics under each
category.3

Mr. Grubach, I understand the Commissioner has a luncheon at
12:30?

Mr. ACPEE. No, sir. We have a graduation ceremony over at our
Training Academy. A number of distinguished Members of the Con-
gress will be present.

Senator HASKELL. What time is it?
Mr. ACREE. That will be at 1:45, sir.
Senator HASKELL. 1:45. I've got to leave at 12:307 Mr. Grubach, if

you would not mind, I would like to have the Commissioner come
forward and you gentlemen can continue later. I really, basically,
will accept your statement for the record, Commissioner. I just have a
couple of questions to ask you. Can we do that?

Mr. GRUBACH. Sure.
Senator HASKELL. Then we will resume after lunch. If the Com-

missioner will come forward.
Mr. AcREE. Thank you.
Senator HASKELL. Commissioner, we will accept .your statement for

the record, as Well as others. We have Mr. Maier, who will be here, so
we can ask about the situation in Denver specifically.

I tell you what basically concerns me is the GAO report earlier this
year which alludes to the use of overtime all over the Nation by the
customs service. This is not just Denver where: overtime was used; for
example, apparently in Bangor, Maine, somebody who was getting a
salary of $17,000 a year during calendar 1973 piled up overtime of
$25,000. According to the synopsis of this GAO report, it would be
possible for Mr. Burton, who is now in charge in Denver, to be paid
$167 for less than 1 hour's overtime. This situation is documented in
the GAO report, and apparently stems from a law passed in 1911.

I would. like your reaction to this and what you, as the Commis.
sioner of Customs, feel ought to be done.

a STAFF NoTIM.-Speciflc allegations and responses by-the parties mentioned may be
found in the subcommittee files. They are not Included here because of their, personal
nature and because of the pervasiveness of statements derogatory of personalities.
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TESTIMONY OF VERNON D. ACREE, COMMISSIONER, U.S. CUSTOMS
SERVICE

Mr. AcRm. Thank you, Mr. Haskell.
We too received a copy of the GAO report that you had requested

the GAO to provide. The GAO did a very workmanlike job, in my
judgment, in compiling all of the data that is included in it. I think that
it is a fair, accurate representation as to the overtime laws under which
the inspectional services of the Federal Government operate. This
includes not only the customs service, the Immigration and Natural-
ization Service, the Public Health Service, the- Agricultural Inspec-
tors. And indeed, there may be a few others that also draw overtime
pa.Senator HASKeLL. But my understanding, if I may interrupt you,
is that those other services don't utilize this overtime pay nearly to
the extent of the customs service.

Mr. AC=B. This is correct, sir, and this is primarily due to the fact
that over the last years, as I understand it, the Public Health Service
and the Department of Agriculture and the other inspectional agen-
cies have gradually withdrawn from the picture, to the end that we
find the customs service taking over their inspectional responsibilities.

As a matter of fact, we now, Customs, find ourselves-this is one
of the dilemmas that we face, if you read some of the workload data
in my opening statement-

Senator HASKFL. I did.
Mr. AcRF . One of the dilemmas we face is that we currently are

enforcing over 400 laws for 40 other Federal agencies.
Senator HASKFLL. Let me ask you this. Apparently, you have some-

thing called WAE's,.which I gather stands -for "When Actually Em-
ployed?"

Mr. AcRe. That is correct, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Why are those people not utilized ? Why do you

use- your top management? Obviously overtime in top management
is a lot more expensive than overtime down the line.

Mr. AcREE. We also have a very active and aggressive, and properly
so, employee union, and as I have gotten into the overtime picture,
and I have our Assistant Chief Counsel, Mr. Kenneth Gubin, who
will be able to give you all of the legal details, that very, very frankly,
I am not conversant with.

Insofar as the application of the law as it would relate to overtime,
the usage of WAEs has historically not been a practice within the
customs service.

Senator HASKELL. My question is, Why not?
Mr. ACREE. I would have to get Mr. Gubin here to give you both

the legal reamns for it, as well, Senator, as the administrative reasons.
Senator HASKELL. Well, I think that is very desirable. It does not

seem quite right--there are other examples; apparently at Dulles an
inspector was paid $18,600 a year, and he piled up roughly $12,000 in
overtime. An inspector at the Seattle airport was paid $15,000 and
piled up $12,000 in overtime. Something is wrong.

Mr. ACREm I am not so sure, sir, that you can necessarily compare
Bangor, Maine, with the other two cities you mentioned. The inspec-
tors there are involved in a variety of duties; consequently, we have
inspecting cargo, and the like. Bangor, Maine, is singular in
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a larger inspectional force. By other duties, I mean releasing cargo,
that it does not have -any cargo. Therefore, it Would be imprudent,
we believe, to maintain a large permanent work force at Bahgor
which basically, clears only charter flights. They stop there for re-
fueling and then clearing Customs, Immigration, the other nispee-

,---tionuhu igavitiethat are involved in passenger clearance, and then
they are routed on to their ultimate part of destination.

Senator HAsizLL. Commissioner, Mr. Bruton in Denver apparently
can perform Sunday inspection work and is paid $167, often for less
than an hour's work. Does that seem right ?

Mr. AcRFx. It may seem inequitable, Senator, but working our em-
ployees as we do, in conformity with the overtime statutes that the
Congress enacted, and the tradition of the deployment of our per-
sonnel behind us, with the strong employee union orientation that
we have, I don't know, absent some congressional relief, that there
would be any way I could, as the head of that Agency, effect any
administrative change that would lessen the impact on the carriers.

Senator JIAsKELL. I think what I am asking you is, Would you rec-
ommend legislative changeI

Mr. Acnrm. The only way that this problem, Senator, can be ad.
dressed is through legislative change.

Senator HASKELL. Would you recommend it I
Mr. AcPmw. Well, I think I have a dual responsibility. I have a

responsibility, certainly, to the taxpayers, the carriers, in terms of
payment of overtime. I also have a responsibility to our employees.
And I can tell you, sir, that if I were to recommend that change, the
first union meeting that would be held would be depicting me and the
management of the Customs Service as antiemployee and very frankly,
sir, I don't like to be cast in that role.

Senator HASKIELL. Well, I can understand your reluctance, but it
seems to me you should have an opinion as to whether or not you
support such a change. I suppose you are torn. However, it does not
seem quite right to me to burden the taxpayers with this kind *of
situation.

Mr. AcP=z. Nor the carriers. They carry the great bulk of this
overtime.

Senator HARRELL. Nor the carriers. Nor the importers. And further-
more, one of the findings of your own Internal Affairs unit was that
the inspection of goods was purposefully delayed into the overtime
period. That does not seem right,

Air. ACREE. No, sir. That would be grossly improper.
Senator HIAszLL. And with this peculiar overtime law, it would

seem to me that every incentive in the world would exist to do that.
Would you not agree with that ?

Mr. AcrE. I would have to agree with you, sir. I think human
nature would certainly dictate this.

Senator HASKELL. That is just human nature.
Mr. AcREE. That's right.
SenatorHASKELL. I agree with you. Well, I think that is the basic

thing that I wanted to discuss with you.
Mr. ACREE. I might point out, Senator, in the conclusions and rec-

ommendations of the GAO report, as I recall it--I did read it some-
time back-there were some recommendations to the Congress that a
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review of the overtime statutes applicable not only to the Customs
........Set-tth6ter inspectional agencies as well be made. So I
think, sir, that would stand as a recommendation.

Senator HIsKELL. I think that is about to happen.
Mr. AciR. Sir?
Senator HASKELL. I think that is about to happen, Mr. Commis-

sioner.
Are you at all familiar with your Internal Affairs audit of the

Denver situation involving Mr. Miller?
Mr. AcRE. I am familiar f rom hearsay, from the hearsay standpoint

only, Senator Haskell.
Senator HASKELL. Are you aware that some independent examiner

reviewed this situation?
Mr. Acnm. I was-sowinformed the day before yesterday, I was in-

formed that an independent hearing examiner was called in because
the reg'onal commissioner, Mr. Maier, according to his words, as I
recall them, felt that he could not objectively review the appeal. He
then did call, as I recall the briefing I was given, through headquar-
ters, an independent hearing examiner into that particular case. And
I was told, as you heard Mr. Magee testify earlier, what the recom-
mendations of that hearing examiner were.

Senator HASKELL. Is that normal procedure ? When you have your
internal affairs unit make certain findings, I assume the employee then
has a right to request an independent examiner. Is that the normal
way things go?

Mr. AcR. Yes, sir. And I might, at this point, correct some mis-
conceptions that the young man on my left has conveyed this morn-
ing, that all reports of investigations made by our Office of Internal
Affairs come to the Commissioner. That is not a fact. I don't think I
have seen but one or twoperhaps, since I have been in that office in
3 years that I have been Commissioner of Customs. Those reports-
well, if you go again back to my opening statement, the CustomsService is comprised of a headquarters organization, nine regions,
each headed by a regional commissioner who operates in semiautono-
mous fashion. Under the regional commissioners, we have 48 district
directors, who, in turn, supervise and coordinate the activities of
approximately 300 ports of entry, each headed by a port director.

When the Office of Internal Affairs conducts an investigation or
makes an internal audit into the fiscal or managerial operations of a
given office, those reports go to the regional commissioner having
responsibility and authority to act in the geographical segment of our
country over which he presides, and it is up to him, then to take the
action.

If, in the circumstances you describe, sir, the action is to be one that
is deleterious to a given employee, that employee has full rights of
appeal. He has all of the internal appeal processes that he can utilize.

Senator HAsKELAL. I am concerned, Commissioner, with the
employee; I am also concerned with th,. public. Apparently, it was notust the employee but the public that was being harassed. Now, do you
exercise any oversight whatsoever to see that this does not happen?

Mr. AC RF.. I exercise oversight through the managerial structure of
the Customs Service, meaning the Assistant Commissioners, meaning
the regional commissioners, all of whom report to me.

*
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Senator HASKELL. What happens when you find that something is:
going on that should not go on at a given port? Do you just depend
upon the word of the Assistant Commissioner, or do you have any
mechanism to systematically review these wrongdoingsI

Mr. ACiEz. Have an independent mechanism, the Assistant Com-
missioner for Internal Affairs, who reports to me, who performs an
independent eyes and ears mission, if you will, for the Commissioner• of C-ustoms.I

Senator HASxEm.. That is just.right, and that is exactly what hap-
pened in Denver in 1971, and yet nobody in that region has noticed
much improvement. I just wonder what active part, if any, you took?
In other words, your independent eyes and ears reported to you that
things were going on that should not go on. Now, where do you go from
there

Mr. ACREE. I don't believe that my independent eyes and ears have
reported to me that things were going on that shouldn't have been go-
ing on. Individual reports were submitted as to specific--

Senator HASKFJJL. Now, just a minute. Your own independent eyes,
and ears reported that at least four customs inspectors at Stapleston.
have purposely delayed examining shipments of imported goods until
after 5 p.m. Now, that should not go on.

Mr. AMP,& That report, sir, was made to the regional commissioner
at Houston.

Senator HASKELL. I thought these were your eyes and ears.
Mr. AcREE. The individual complaint investigative reports go to the.

regional commissioner, if there is an employee accused ol an act of mis-
conduct, and it is up to him to assess that measure of discipline which
may be appropriate in the circumstances.

Senator HASKE . Is there nothing at your level that reviews that.
situation to see that the port is being operated correctly I This is all at,
the Assistant Commissioner level, is that correct I

Mr. AoREE. The Assistant Commissioner and the regional
commissioner.

Senator HAAXELL. So you do not have any check to see that your
Assistant Commissioners are operating the way they ought to?

Mr. AcRm& Other than to depend on their professionalism as career
customs officials and executives.

Senator HAskrEL. Thank you, Commissioner. I think that is all the
question I have of you.

Perhaps you could have the gentleman who is knowledgeable of this,
overtime, present this afternoon.

Mr. AcRP.& Yes, sir. I certainly shall.
Senator HASKELL. Thank you.
We will recess until 2 p.m.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Acree follows:]
PARED STATEMENTS Or VnqNoN D. Acans, CoMmissioNzfs OF Cvero s

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Vernon D. Acree, Commissioner
of Customs. I have with me today at your request, as specified in your letter of
October 8, 1975, the following Individuals: Mr. Jay Bruton, Port Director of
Customs in Denver; Mr. Cleburne M. Maler, Regional Commissioner of Customs,
in Houston; and Mr. Joseph Grubach, Deputy District Director in Detroit.

Also with me and possessing relevant knowledge of the issues at hand are the
Deputy Commissioner of Customs, Mr. Glenn R. Dickerson; the Asslstant Com-
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-'sidoner (0perotlons), MrRoland ftymon4; the A01tant ComMn.issoner (Ad-
iWistration), Mr. John A. 11urley; the Assistant Commisloier (Z#tj
Affairs), Mr. William A. Mages Jr- the Chief ot Qunsi , Toe W. 4Ws;
4d Mr. Robert fattgrdt formerly bitrict Director Of the 101 V*0 a rct i
which the port of Denver 0 located

We ae here at your request to answer any questions regaritUg the operations
of the U.S. Customs Service.

'Before addressing the questions of you and your coMnittee numbers, I fool
it would be extremely useful to provide you with back d o the n 1ssn and
organization Of the U.S. Customs Service. The Service, which was established in
1789 to enable our then young Republic to Impose and collect duties on imported
goods, today has the principal mission -of enforcing Customs and related laws
against, the smuggling of contraband; to assess, collect, and protect, the levy-
Ing of import duties and taxes; and to control carriers, persons, and articles en-
tering or departing the United States by enforcing the Tariff Act of 1000 and
administering and enforcing over 400 laws and regulations of over 40 government
agencies. During the past fiscal year, Customs cleared over 246 million persons;
75 million cars, trucks, and buses; 128,000 ships; and 8358,000 aircraft arriving
In the United States. This involved making 77 million baggage examinations
and processing 12 million Customs declarations. Additionaly there were 47.6
million foreign mail parcels processed requiring over 2 million informal mail
entries. In all, Customs collected a record $4.54 billion in duty and taxes and
processed $100.2 billion worth of imported goods. On the enforcement front, mer-
chandise seized was valued at over $500 million and there were over 21 thousand
drug seizures.

The present organizational structure of the Customs Service is a result of the
President's Reorjganization Plan No. 1, effective May 25, 1965. In accordance
with this plan, Customs today is a decentralized organization comprised of a
Headquarters and nine semi-autonomoud Regions headquartered in Boston, New
York, Baltimore, Miami, New Orleans, Houston, Los Angeles, San Francisco,
and Chicago with authority delegated to the Regional Commlssioners for the
-operation of their Regions. The Regions are further subdivided into 45 Districts
and 296 Ports of Entry. Regional Commissioners have further delegated to Dis-
trict Directors line authority to administer the operations of the Ports and Sta-
tions under their Jurisdiction.

The focus on Denver has already been constructive. In our recent review con-
ducted by the Region and Headquarters of Customs Service activities In Denver
we find that there has been a workload growth truly Just short of phenomenal.
As you know, Denver is an inland port and Its major cargo activity has been
and is the clearance of ln-lbnd shipments of merchandise delivered by air, rail,
and motor vehicles. Much of the workload growth-in numbers, in value, and in
complexity-has related directly to the changes in world travel and trade pat-
terns such as containerization. In addition, the Customs Service workload at
Denver includes the clearance of passengers from three daily air flights arriv-
ing from foreign, and numerous charters and private aircraft arrivals, pgain-all
from foreign.

The number of formal entries filed at the port of Denver has risen dramatic-
ally from 2,591 in FY 19(5 to 8,353 In FY 1975. Total Customs collections have
risen substantially in the same period from $3.1 million to $12.2 million. Air-
-craft arrivals have leaped from 358 to 1,340. Passengers cleared have soared
from 27,207 to 97,302. With all of this our total strength of full-time employees
has increased by only 7 from 1965 to 1975 at the port of Denver. The U.S. ustoms
Service total work force is and has been stretched to the maximum. Additionally,
Customs officers must perform a large nutuber of examinations on importers'
premises, particularly for containerized cargo. The cargo facilities at the airport
are only minimally adequate. The modifications which ire planned for the present
totally Inadequate Customs Service passenger facility at Stapleton Inter-a4tional
Airport do little to meet our needs for efficient, economical processing of the
fast growing passenger workload and due attention to our enforqemeqt respon-
sibilitles which we perform for numerous other Federal agencies.

This is of particular concern to us and, I am sure, to this Committee as the
.Customs Service does desire that the facilities which we utilize and which are
provided by the terminal operator are of quality which will reflect -fivorably
upon our Government to returning citizens and to our .visitors from other
nations.
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We welcome the committee's Interest and can assure you that any matters
'Whidh require resolution which are identified during the course of this hearing
will receive prompt and remedial attention.

This concludes my opening statement. My staff and I shall be glad to provide
you with further details on Customs mission and organisation and to answer
any other questions you or the members of the Committee may have regarding
the matter at hand.

[Whereupon, at 12:28 p.m., the subcommittee recessed to reconvene
at 2 p.m. the same day.]

AZEOON SESION

Senator HASKELL. The hearing of the Subcommittee on Interna-
tional Trade will continue.

Due to the need to catch airplanes, we will hear first from Mr.
Turrill. Then we will hear from Ms. Sorden.

Mr. Turrilf is with Ports of Call Travel Service in Denver, Colo.

STATEMENT OF LARRY TURRILL, EMPLOYEE, PORTS OF CALL
TRAVEL SERVICE, DENVER, 00I ., ACCOMPANIED BY HARLAN

AA N, ES

Ur. TUnRILUL Senator, I would like to thank you for this opportunity
to appear before you and the committee.

I do have a prepared text, very short. With me is Harlan Balaband,
who is one of our club directors and also our corporate attorney.

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this committee, as I
feel that changes in the law governing the entry of aircraft into the
United States are outdated and archaic. '

I appear before you with much reservation and deep concern for my
fear that testimony here will most assuredly result in additional cost
to our organization when clearing customs and immigration in Denver.
Our relations by and large have been good with the mandatory agen-
cies which are required and declared at Stapleton International Air-
port.

The statements and views that I shall make are not new, nor are
they stwrting. I.have previously written complaints to our legislative
representatives in Washington concerning the high cost of customs
and the arbitrary manner in which agents are assigned.

I was concerned this morning when I heard the Director of Customs
state that he would be afraid to suggest a change in the law, for fear
that he might be considered antfempoyee. It is this attitude that gives
u& great concern.

We are protd to say that we have a facility in Denver that exceeds
most facilities available in the United States today for cl-aring cus-
toms and immigration. It is efficient as well as functional. With four
customs agents we can clear 96 passengers and a crew in less than 40
minutes from the time the aircraft stops at the gate.

Our members have been trained in the proper procedure for clear-
ing customs and are advised on their departure from Denver what
they can and cannot bring back with them on their return. This helps
to expedite our clearing and greatly reduces the amount of time and
effort required by the customs officials.
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Our relations with the Customs Bureau over the years have been
both good and bad. Certain agents have taken advantage of their posi-
ti6n to make clearing as difficult as possible and lenghy, if it would
create additional income through overtime. On a return flight from
Alaska on July 19, 1973, we were required to make an unscheduled
stop at White Horse, Canada, for fuel, as Juneau was closed to traffic
at that time. White Horse, I might add, is the listed alternate airport
for Juneau, and the temporary landing of U.S. aircraft there is not
uncommon.

On arrival at White Horse, we were placed in a special impound
fueling area, and a Canadian customs agent boarded the aircraft. No --
one was allowed off the aircraft during the refueling operation, and a
general declaration stating all of the above was obtained from Cana-
dian Customs prior to departure from White Horse. The flight then
proceeded to Denver.

The following morning, I went to the customs office with I copy of
the general declaration and explained what had happened. I also
stated that I did not know if I should have advised them of our tech-
nical fuel stop or not, considering that no one got off the aircraft, and
it did not seem that they had, in -fact, been in a foreign country, as we
were returning from Alaska. Several of the agents on duty did not
know the regulations either, and so I left.

That afternoon I was called, properly chastised for-not notifying
customs of this technical fuel stop, and the aircraft was placed under
constructive seizure, and a fine of $1,000 was levied against the cluh
I have copies of these documents, if the committee so desires to have
them.,

[The following material was submitted by Mr. Turrill :] -

Ports of Call petitions for administrative relief from case number 74-2405-.
10008 on the following grounds.

1. Ports of Call was scheduled to depart Gustavo Airport Alaska and make a
fuel stop at Juneau, Alaska. At the time of departure we were advised that
Juneau was below landing minimums and that fuel was available at Whitehore,
Canada, which is the alternate airport for Juneau. On arrival at Whitehorse
none of the passengers were allowed off the aircraft during the fueling operation
and Canadian Customs were on board the entire time. On departure we received
a general declaration from Canada stating that the passengers were not allowed
off the aircraft. In view of this we thought that a customs inspection was not
required as this was an emergency stop for fuel only. The following morning
Denver Customs were advised of our stop and a copy of the general declaration
was given to them, copy enclosed. Thl general declaration clearly states that
the passengers were not off the aircraft and we felt In view of this that customs
inspection would not be required. Several Customs inspectors were also unaware
of whether or not we were in fact actually in violation of any regulation until
they checked.

We petition the administrator for relief from the fine on the grounds that
we were under the belief that what we di4 was right and proper. We would
also like to assure the administrator that Customs will be advised under all
future circumstances where an emergency landing is made in a foreign country.
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OURNAU of CUSTOMS C"bVS23.a *cL .u.. 7- , -t0,,

PuIk~t Wld CW,

NOTICE OF PENALTY OR LIQUIDATED DAMAGES INCURRED
AND DEMAND FOR PAYMENT

T; r M M E& D T CLUB -

STAPLETON AIR FIELD
3400 SYRACUSE STREET

L DENVER, COLORADO

DEMAND IS H16Y MADE FOR PAYMINT OF n1ia0.O. tsprQNiM 0 P0*WIft os r LIqutds Oa eoueud
egulam" hernaP imlee.. of I" ofte "9w orA 6oo befas NoU Perth ball.:

Failure to notify Customs of the arrival of aircraft N-6354C from
Canada on July 19, 1973, in violation of section 6.2(b) Customs
Regulations.

Failure to present to acustoms officer 97 passengersrs and crew)
who arrived this country from Canada and discharged at-the port of
*Denver, Colorado in violation of section 6.2(c) Customs Regulations,

LAW OR REGULATION VIOLATED $ONO @IEACHEO

Sec. 6.2(b) CR
Sec. 6.2(c) CR

DESCRIPT19N Of a, ANRsEW ...
fit a") 77Net Sad AI.o ,aes .S

Ndwa &W Afton of &MY ea Send &091 Iduntuiiato No.

U yo0 feel *we we ..weu-hIt' erisetonass. ye Ma As I" to pu0 s Pu1 1& nd rawg. So&n petition Wm be .masad 01
WIwbasmI io1 ms. simed be S Cmw.llme oh Dussomme . d a wo be Puwad .u on.rn

Room 1191 New Customhouse. D.nver. Colorado 80202
Upoe A wemut fiew N u1 kf a piesP" e e 0i a 1 lad "M i St t a n' O*nw"V ie CuuoOo "1" 60 4f * amae ,heeo hew ee.n -m be ieeoe aeoomoea~ 0* ye.. bed as AS moUt siN be rfemid oe AS tUnd bu Aneag.

Oiirn CA0WST-5OBE3&gT BATTARD

Co-wsFM WF0 01761 !y, -Ln.m.A-ETRnx
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VI-RC-30 BUREAU OF CUSTOMS
REGION Vi

23.!'(a), 23.23(6) C.R.

23.214a) CA.

5PEC!At RECEIPT

RECEIPT FOR IIERCHAND!IE RETAINED IN CUSTOMS CUSTODY AND NOTIFICATION OF

FINES, PENALTIES AND/OR DUTIES, IF ANY

District No. u-, Poet of- D=ve.. o.orado Date JPly 20_ 1973

Received from:
DOUGIAS E. UNDEBMOOD
PORTS 01 CALL TRAVEL CLUB

STAILTON AIR F1RLD
MOO40 SYRACUE TRRI DENVERLORADO

the following atfcles:

JA ZEZURE)

H=DSOZ Of -OUCWGMU.Jmt±3 fAnU 3 4lI ti t&d C48.

T ot !.__ --

Pie.-es

Vehicle detained (Sec 594 T.A. 1930).
fo, payment ojf penalty. Yes ( ) NO ( ) (gnature Custo nspy or

0 6 % ~* a %I, * * * #. 0 * ft a * * * * # 0 * * 4 * * * * * * * *

The tolowing FINE ( ) , PENAtTY ( ) and/nr DUTY ( ) is due the nov.ernment for
violations of the Customs Revenue ldws is stated hereon.

SEZIRE NO.D: o .j 4'-.4OO_ * - ) C VA lUE OF 14DSE:JjLO0.
rtNE OR

LAW VIOl AT ED: ig , ( )tc. . PENALTY INCURRED;_ _ _ _

DUTY DUE:---

If you fe!he 'e ae extenudting cir:tumstances. you have the right to petition
for adinigi~trdtive relief Insteuctions regarding the preparotion and filing
of petitl'on. are on the eevetse side of this form.

All petitions must be in writing, as an oral i'equest for relief is not acceptable.
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......... ..... ............................. ........ ..................... .......... .. , .
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- elarI tht aN statements ani particular contained in this General Oeclar-lJo. and in any supplementary forms required to
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Mr. TumuLL. Overtime charges and who gets the soft duty is a dis-
grace to our country and an affront to .our society. Sixteen hours' pay
for one 'hour's work cannot be justified by any other branch of our
Government. The law written about the time the Wright brothers were
.trying to fly is not relevant today. A law that legally permits a man to
make as much as 6 days' pay in 1 day should be examined-a law, we are
,told, that prohibits part-time employees, customs inspectors, from
.workiiig on Sunday but permits these same inspectors to work during
The week, when the rate of pay may be a paltry 4 hours for an hour's
work.

I have with me, Senator, a list of all of the customs flights made for
ithe first 9 months of 1975. We cleared 60 aircraft through customs in
this 9-month period. This represents 5 507 passengers, or an average
$of 92 passengers per flight. The cost or this service amounted to a
.stggerihg $19,558.02.

Senator HASKELL. Would you go over that again?
Mr. Tumuuu. We cleared at our facility at Stapleton in Denver

AO flights in the first 9 months of this year, an average of 92 passen-
gers per flight, 5,507 passengers. And we paid, for customs and im-.1milration, $19,558.02.

.Slenator HASKELL. How much of that was overtime?
Do you know?
Mr. TufiLL. That was all overtime.
Senator. HASKELL. Do you have a schedule of when those flights

landed?
Mr. TumwU.. Yes, I do.
Senator HASKELL. Would you leave with the committee a schedule

,of when those flights landed?
Wasyour $19,000-that -was your total. Was it all overtime.?
Mr. TumnL. It was just for the first 9 months of this year.
Senator HASKELL. Please leave a schedule of when the flights landed.
Mr. Tutnu. I will be happy to do so.
£The following material was submitted by Mr. Turrill:]
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Mr.! Tuwu1 . This avoraxes out, Seiiaqr,. $8.50 -pr persn Weh in
itself , 4und reasoable t -sorn 'e, not tbme. Wekday fiots"are
manned ,y four custois a &n immgra i and one agrcultur.
Sunday flights may require Inp to nive customs, two agrIcU ture, an4
two immgration inspectors or the same nmber of people on the
aircraft.

You maylgoy ak why nt schedule our lits to return dur.
ing normal port houma We have 'iscused this wit Mr. Miller, who

tiead of the airport customs. He has advised us that Man rights
during normal working hours cannot be approved, due to other com-
initments, The earliest that we can schedule a flight to Arriv in Denver
is 5 :15 p.m., which is the first period of overine on veekdays. How-
ever, Sinday seems to be no problem, even though the for e'rg car-
'iers-that is, Western and Mexicana-pperate 7 days a week.
To summarize, we feel that a law that is older than most of us,

written in an era of trolley cars and steamships, a law that favors
those in authority, who can assign as thy see fit to benefit themselves
and their friends, ilso leads to corruption.

In my opening statement, I expressed concern over reprisal in our
future flights requiring customs and immigration inspection in Denver.
I again state my concern for the future but have made these state-
ments today because of my belief in the American system of equality.

The law must be changed. The agents must be compwsated forover-
time work performed, but on a fair and an equitable b aSis, predicated
on 1975 values and not on those of a half-century ago.

STjjat is the end of my prepared text, Senator. I would like to add
that I do have some possible suggestions for the problem in Denver.

Denver is an international airport, and, ,as such, could conceivably
operate at the airport on a 1 p.m. to 9 p;m. schedule which would
eliminate much of the overtime. It shouldbe considered as a I-day-a-
week port, giving days off in the middle of the week, so that the port
coidd be manned on a regular basis I7 days a week from 1 to 9 p.m.

The Port of Newark, N.J., just recently opened for arriving foreign
aif~eraft, and they are operating from 1 in the afternoon to 9 p.m. as
regular working hours. This would eliminate much of the overtime.

Senator HASKILrI Thank you, Mr.Turrill.
First, if you experience any reprisals, I would like to be the first

o ito know.
.fr. TuPi.-I would be happy.to comply.
I was referring to the Commissioner xof Customs earlier today,

earlier in my speech.
Senator HASKELL. Right, I understand.
You were told, I gather, then, by Mr. Miller that your flights could

not arrive before 6o clock in the afternoon I



Mr. :Tvmuaa That is correct - .SSenator HISxK Would you also provide for the record a fist of
international flights arriving at the Denver airpoitt each day of the
week, so we can examine the workloid on weekd ys, as oppose to
weekends.

Mr. TURau. This information, Senator, would have to come from
either the Bureau of Customs or-the airlines involved. You have, tomy
knowledgee' two" international carriers Western that comes in-:oee a
day, sometimes twice a day, from Calgary; and you have Mexieana
that operates 7 days a wee from Mexico. Their exact schedule, I amsorry,I am not aware of.

Senator HAsxzL. I will ask staff to obtain that from the airlines. I
presume, the customs could find out as well, Mr. Magee?

Mr. RAYmOnD. Yes, sir, they could.
Senator HASKELL. Maybe, Mr. Raymond, you could provide that for

the record.
Mr. RAYmOND. We will do that, sir.
[The following material was submitted by Mr. Raymond:]

U.S. GOVERNMENT
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY,

U.S. CUSTOMS SERVICE,
November 11, 1,76.

File: P19R-15;O :I :R R
To: Assistant Commissioner, (Operations), Attn: Program Planning Staff
From: Acting Director, Inspection and Control Division
Subject: Requested Information on Denver

The following information on Denver is provided as requested:
1. The following is submitted as evidence of the substantial growth in numbers

of aircraft and passengers arriving in Denver since January 1, 1978, and con.
"tributhrrto staffing and scheduling difficulties for Customs.

Calendar year-
1973 1974 1975'

Aircraft ........------------------------------ -1,354 1,581 '1,797

Passengers ..... ----------------------------..... 77, 413 95,401 1 102,821

'Projected figures based on 1st 3 quarters 1975.

2. The report of total overtime earnings for CY 74, which is attached, provides
the overtime earnings of the Port Director, only, since March 3, 1974 when he was
assigned to Denver. The second attached report of overtime earnings is for CY
75 which includes the Port Director for- this year to September 27, 1975.

CHARLES C. GASKETT, Jr.,
(For John D. Robison).

Attachments.
U.S. GOVERNMENT,

DEPARTMENT OF THE TagASUiY,
UNITED STATES CUsTOMs SERVICE,

November 5, 1975.
MEMORANDUM

File: AIR 4-0:I:R RM
To: Assistant Commissioner (Operations) Attn: Program Planning Staff
Erom: Acting Director, Inspection and Control Division
Subject: Sebeduled Airline Arrivals in Denver for CY 1974 and 1975

The followhig information is furnished as requested on the scheduled airline
arrivals in Denver for CY 1974 and 1975.
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Airino " Fl~t No. Time of arrival Frequency

1974:
Western ...... ....... 1543 10:11 a.m .......... Daily.

D...... DO.
Do . 3:56 p.m............ Do.

Mecaua ............... ......... 916 Standard time Do.

1975: 1:40 p.m.
Western .......................... 4543 102 6 a.m .......... Do.

Do.......................... a481 4 p.m .............. Do.
Do .......................... '483 9p.m. Do.

Mexiana ....................... 916 Standard time Do.
1:40 p.m.'

D .......... 9 12:5p.m ... Saturday only.
Do ................... 918 1145 a.m....... Monday, Wednesday, and Saturday.

Effective Dec 2 1974 arriving 10:25 a.m. •
Fight canceled p 1-1974.

.i s time 4:40 p.m.Effective June 1975, srrivin$10:50 a.m.

I Effective June 1 INS arriving 3:55 p.m.
New flight effeciv June I to Sept. 9, 1975.
uDaylight savings time 2:40 p.m.
New flight effective July 1, 1975.
'New arrival time and 2 additional flights effective Nov 15, 1975. JOHN D. ROBIeON.

Senator HASKELmI. Has this situation that you describe been in
existence for some years?

Mr. TuRiriLL. As long as I have had knowledge of the customs rules,
and that is going back about 8 years.

Senator HASK.. Has it ameliorated in any way in the last fewyear ?
Mr. TURRILL. No. I think it is bad or about the same, as near as I

can tell. However, our activity in the last several years has increased
tremendously.

Senator HASKELL. Do you have any other com plaints about the
operation of the Customs Service in Denver, other than the overtime?

Mr. TuRRML. No; not really.
Senator HASKELL. All xight, sir.
Well, I thank you very much for appearing. I can understand why,

things being as they are, you were reluctant to appear. I want to
congratulate you and repeat again, if anything occurs that you con-
sider a reprisal, please let me know.

Thank you, gentlemen, very much indeed.
Mr. TURRIIJ. Thank you.
Senator HASKELL. Our next witness will be Ms. Frances Sorden,

with REA Express.
Mr. BRIoDY. Mr. Senator, first of all, let me introduce Ms. Sorden.

She is our broker at Denver.
I am Michael Briody, Director of Economic Regulation, REA, in

New York.
We have no prepared statement. Ms. Sorden's deposition Was taken

in this matter in 1971. I believe it is available to the committee. Ms.
Sorden received a letter asking her to appear here to add, anything
to that that may be germane.

She has primarily just two items of testimony. One has to do with
the use of overtime in the port, and the other one would have to do
with certain clerical practices of tie customs, which she feels might
have some deliberating effect on the public, such as occassional bro-
kers. And of course, she would answer any questions that she would

S have knowledge about.
Senator HMsKmu. Proceed, Ms. Sorden.
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STAT OP PRANCIS BORDEN, BROKER, REA EXP-, DEN.
VEI1 COLO., ACCOMP ANI BY MICHAEL BRIODY, ESQ.

Ms. Sowpz). As far as the overtime is concerned, in the 1971 investi-
gation we reported, not only were overtime requests, work delayed
past 5 o'clock so that it was on overtime, but I personally witnessed
one of the inspectors who had received an overtime request from REA
for a passenger coming in on Western Airlines in 1971. I went over
and asked if we could get the shipment cleared that he was hand-
carrying. And I was tola by Mr. Miller, yes, if you put in a request
for overtime, even though the freight would be at Western Airlines
at 4:30.

I immediately put in the request for overtime. The customer came
over to my office lrom the flight. He was trying to make a 6 o'clock
flight to Texas, and he was nervous. So I said, well, let us go up to
Western Airlines, and we will wait up there at their freight office,
and the minute the inspector walks in and releases the shipment, you
can leave.

We were there at 25 minutes to 5. At 20 minutes to 5, Inspector
Angelo walked in and released the merchandise. The overtime request
was not killed. We were subsequently sent a bill which we had to pay.
However, it was prorated to another overtime job that he did do
after 5 o'clock, so that we only had to pay half of the overtime for
our customer. But this was before 5 o'clock on an overtime.

Senator HAsxmLr. In other words, you know that you paid overtime?
You know this of your own knowledge?

Ms. SORDEN. Yes, sir.
Senator jHAswimm. And the inspection actually was made before 5

o'clock in the afternoon?
Ms. SORDN. At 20 minutes to 5.
Senator HASKELL. Has your company ever remitted any of the por-

tion of the overtime pay?
Ms. SoRDFJN. No.
Senator HASKM. This again was what date I
Ms. SoRDvN. August 16,1971.
Senator HASKELL. Thank you very much.
Ms. SonnmE. After the investigation, the overtime requests did close

off. There have been no more where they have deliberately waited
until after 5 o'clock. However, since the newspaper articles have come
out about the overtime, now when there is a necessity for having
overtime, it is hard to convince the inspectors that you have to have
it, that your customer requires it for some special reason.

Some of them are refusing to work overtime when it is something
that is immediately after 5 and there is no way to get it there before 5.
And it is right on the dock, the airport dock. It is not like going clear
across town or something. Now it is becoming hard to get overtime
after the publicity.

Senator HASKEL. Has any customs officer, to your knowledge, ever
asked for any special favor or gratuity ?

Is. SoRP,,,,x. Not to my exact knowledge, no.
Senator -IASHmL. Are there any other complaints, other than the

overtime, that you would have against the Customs ?
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Ms. SOaweN. Yes. Our office is right next door to Customs at the
airport. Consequently, we probably.are in Customs office more than the
other brokers, and we see more going on with the public who do not
use brokers.
. Also, because we are close, when Customs makes a request that a
customer go to a broker, sometimes we get them in our office because
of our proximity.

Now, there is a Customs regulation that states that. a customs officer
shall make an informal entry for an importer, which is a shipment
that is valued under $260, and a broker is not required, or a bond
is not required. At Denver, there are some inspectors who are helpful
and try to help the public. But those about which we complain all the
time, say, there are the tariff schedules, here is the form, now you fill
it out. And the importing public has no idea of how to use that book.

So they come back and it is wrong. So the inspectors says, well, you
just have to get a broker. And a lot of them do not come necessarily
to REA, but, some of them do. If I feel that it is a shipmentthat is not
worth charging a customer for, it is something simple I can do quick-
ly, I will rate the invoice for them. I will figure out the duty as in there
proper, prescribed form before applying to a Customs Form 5119A,
and say, now, you take this back to Customs and I am sure they will
take it. And they do.

Senator HASKELX. I wonder if there is anybody from the U.S. Cus-
toms Office who would be able to inform us as to what the duties of
a customs inspector are in helpingthe traveling public?

Mr. Raymond or Mr. Magee, would you be in a position to do that?
Mr. RAY3tONYD. Yes, I can respond.
Senator HASKL.L. You heard, Mr. Raymond, what Ms. Sorden

said about the casual traveler being handed a book and asked to fill
out a form. I have seen the books myself; they are rather formidable.

What is normally expected of a customs officer ?
Mr. R ITON. -there is no requirement that a customs officer pre-

pare the informal entry, which is one of the documents that Ms.
Sorden referred to. However,. as a matter of course, we provide in-
formation as to the-with commercial importer., it might be somewhat
different, bwause they would be expected, because of their routine in-
volvement in importation, to know more about, the tariff schedules.
But the occasional importer, we do make it a policy to assist them, in
terms of attempting to help them to classify.

Senator HASKILt,. I would certainly hope so, Mr. Raymond. And I
hope you take this information to heart and see that they be more
helpful. I have seen those books, and they are pretty thick.

Mr. RAYMOND. I admit they are very complicated.
Senator HARKPJ.L. Right.
Thank you, Mr. Raymond.
Is there anything further, Ms. Sorden f
Ms. SorDwzi. Not. other than the fact that the customs officials will

not help the importer with the 5110. It appears mostly that if the
cusoms inspector does not himself know where to put it, that he tells
them to go gt a broker or to do it themselves and hope that the im-
porter can figure it out enough on his own.

There ar cases-we had a person come in our office a couple of
weeks ago. They had a form that they were to fill out for Customs. She.
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,says, I am sorry, but Customs will not help, me fill out this form, so
they said get a broker. Will you help me?

And I looked at the form. For a broker, there was nothing to it, and
there was no reason to have a broker. So I finished typinglit for her,
the way-the information she gave to me, and sent her back.

Most of the problems in Denver are with the inspectors themselves
and not with the office personnel, so to speak.

Senator HASxFL. I gather that.
Ms. Somr.N. They are rough to their customers. We have a prac-

tice-it is all undercurrent, but we do keep a box of Kleenex rightiby
the door for a female customer that happens to come in, you know,
if they have had it. We get those all the time. We try to help them
out.

-And then, there are only females in my office. It is quite an abrupt
stop for some gentlemen coming in who are swearing at the top of
their lmgs when they walk in the door. Then we have to calm them
down.

We have also had trouble; we have been accused of being in ca-
hoots with customs, because customs said you had to get a broker.

These people, I say, well, if you feel that way, then, I am sorry,
but REA will not help you. You go find another broker. They usually
end up finding out that the broker had nothing to do with it. It is
just that customs will not help them.

Senator HAKLL. Thankoyou, Ms. Sorden.
I will repeat the same thing to you that I did to Mr. Turrill, that

if you find thing become difficult, please let me know.
Ms. SonRnEl. Thank you
Senator Hismm. Thank you very much, indeed.
Our next witness will be Mr. Cleburne M. Maier, regional commis-

sioner of customs for Houston. Mr. MaierI

STATEMENT OF CLEBURNE M. MAIER, REGIONAL COMMISSIONER
OF CUSTOMS FOR HOUSTON

Mr. MATE. Thank you, Senator.
I would like to make just a few remarks, if I may. First of all, I

am the regional commissioner, and there is a district director in E1
Paso in the management scheme between my office and the office at
Denver. However, certainly, I know that we have had some problems
at Denver, and I myself have tried to stay familiar with them, and
to provide what changes we could.

As It was pointed out to you this morning, sometimes a manager
wants to do some things that-sometimes a manager realizes things
need to be done. Sometimes he cannot do them, and certainly that
has been part of the problem at Denver. In addition to that, we
have-it has not been mentioned, but we do have what I think is a
strong Port Director at Denver, and I think that he is a good man-
ager, and I think we will be able to resolve the problems that now
exist. at Denver.

T do not know to what extent we will have to go to do that. But
I think that some of the things-I have had meetings at Denver,
and every year, som.e(Qne from our office goes to meet with the im-
porting public. And we met this year, as always, and we did not get
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marly co-mplaints. An. I sensd -that something must be *wrong, be-
cause people always have something to.air, about how. they: would
like to have chan .ges

Then the articles appeared in the Denver newspapers, and I my-
self went there-and conducted open-I do not guess they were hear-ings; not, certainly, in the sense that this is, but-gripe sessions, and
invited the press, invited your office and the other people to the office
to come. I invited the brkers, the importers, the press, and the car-
riers, and from that, certainly, we did gather that there was a feel-
ing that the attitude in Denver by the inspection group was less than
cooperative, and that overtime laws needed changing.

And my response to that. was, we will do what we can to change
the attitude, and had meetings with our employees. And I was hope-
ful, and still am hopeful, that they will be productive; and did tell
them that I believe that any substantial changes in what-happened in
overtime would need to be done through the legislative process.. Senator HASEMr.I Mr. Maier, let's go back to this 1971 investiga-
tion by your Office of Internal Affairs. You are familiar, I presume,
with the report that office made, are you not ?
° Mr. MAURt. Yes, I am.

Senator HASKELL. Upon receipt of that report, what steps, if any,
did you take in the Denver Port ?

Mr. MAvmL Well, first of all, we made various recommendations to
go up through the channels, and as a result, one of the people was
demoted, and his supervisory responsibilities were taken from him.
He was the principal problem in the port. That was Mr. Angelo. And
others were just handed admonitions or oral reprimands for various
reasons.

Senator HASKELL. Who wasthe inspector, for example, that grabbed
somebody by the shirt, ripped off a button, and threw the person
against the wall I

Mr. MA R. As I recall the report, that was the one who was reduced
two grades.

-Senitbr HASKELL. Say that again?
Mr. MAUER. That was the man that iwas reduced two grades, as I re-

call the report. I do not have before me, right at this moment-that
would be Mr. Angelo, yes.

Senator HASxELL. Did the report indicate that either Mr. Angelo or
Mr. Miller, who was the other one, intentionally delayed inspections
to an overtime period ?

Mr. MAUR. I believe the evidence was fairly strong that both prob-
ably did, but we were able to provethat Mr. Angelo did.

Senator HAiSKELT. Did the report indicate that Mr. Miller did?
Mr. MgEm. The report indicated strong evidence that he did. But

as I recall-the circumstances, in his reply, it revolved around whether
or not we could prove the allegations.

Senator HASKELL. Did either Mr. Miller or Mr. Angelo use seized
vehicles to commute to and from work?

Mr. MA R. Well, I think there is a step in between there. In many
of the activities of the Cudoms Service, 'we go to court or administra-
tively forfeit vessels vehicles, and automobiles that have been seized.
Then, the court would assign them to the Government for official use.
They would not be used in the interim period.

As far as I know, that did not happen in Denver. An automobile
would be seized from a violator of the law-perhaps a counterfeiter,
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*which would be a t ypoDenver easo. It would be a counterfeiter. The0ar W would be forfited to the Government, and be aligned for futureuse by a judicial body, depending on the value of it. But it wouldnot be used by the Government for official use in between that time.. Senator HMsxwz. Did the report of your internal investigating unitindicate that these automobiles were ised by either of these two men
prior to the time that t~h ey had been assigned to the Government

Mr. MAX. Senator, I do not recall that being the case. No; I do not
recall that.

Senator HASxELL. Another thing that apparently took place wasthat inspectors-that two agents designed a scheme whereby one wouldcover for the other while the other took days off. Is that covered in
the report ?

Mr. MAJmP Those were allegations in the report. As far as I know,thy were never proved.
Senator HAiSmEU. I think I will ask that the Customs Departmentfurnish copies of those reports for the hearing record.
Mr. MAuP. I believe you have them, sir.Senator HASwmii. Names are deleted. We want the full copes ofthose reports for the hearing. Maybe Mr. Magee can be of help.Mr. MG.cx. I think I can clarify. I do not believe, Senator Haskell,-that the isues that you are refering to at this moment were the sub-ject of the 1971 investigation. The deletions from the report that wesubmitted under the Freedom of Information Act did not delete ma-terial fact. It deleted only names.
Senator HASK.LL That- is true. But ].am really trying to find outwhat the report said about this individual that was subsequently pro-mooted. And- for that reason, I would like to have the report with the

names in it.
Mr. MAavx. Very good.Senator HASKELL. You will submit those for the record I I under-.stand they will be submitted for the record?
Mr. MAoEE. Well, yes. Do you want the complete report on it?Senator HASexLL. That is correct.
Mr. MAoGE. Not the version under the Freedom of Information

Act?
Senator HASKEL. That is correct.[The following material was submitted by Mr. Magee:]
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Investigation was based on information gained during a conduct Investlgation
of another Denver Oustoms employee. The information gained indicated that
Inspector Rowe had accepted gratuities and was improperly charging and collect-
ing for overtime arvcem.
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Treasury Personnel Manual, Chapter 78, paragraph 0.785-38, titled "Gifts
and Gratuities from Outside Sources."
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DETAML OF INVESTIGATION

On August 15, 1971 Gus W. Herrman, Regional Director of Security and Audit,
and I Interviewed Douglas Stanley, Customs Warehouse Officer, in Denver,
Colorado, in connection with our investigation into alleged misconduct on the
part of Supervisory Customs Inspector Tim Angelo. Mr. Stanley reported that
it was evident to him that several Customs employees at Denver were habitually
accepting gratuities, mainly in the form of liquor, from Customs brokers and
Customs bonded liquor warehouses. Mr. Stanley also related that he thought
several Customs inspectors had been improperly collecting overtime pay and
he had been Informed that Inspector Rowe was compiling information about
this fact.

On August 17, 1971 Mr. Kelly Tipps, Port Director, was interviewed to ascer-
tain If he was aware that several Denver Customs inspectors were collecting for
overtime services on assignments that had actually been performed during regu-
lar working hours or if he knew of an agreement between Customs inspectors and
brokers whereby the brokers consented to pay overtime for faster Customs clear-
ance of merchandise even though the work was actually performed during regular
working hours. Mr. Tipps stated that he was not aware of anything like this
occurring at the Denver port.

On the same date Customs Inspector Jack R. Rowe was interviewed and
freely admitted that he had accepted bottles of liquor from some of the liquor
warehouses and also from Charles M. Schayer, Customhouse broker. He also
related that as far as he knew, all of the other Inspectors did the same thing;
however, he did mention that this occurrence was generally at Christmas time.
Mr. Rowe was asked If he felt the other Customs Inspectors, including his
supervisors, were honest and he replied, "No," and indicated that he would
have something to report to Security in the near future.

On the same date Customs Inspector Lowell R. Anderson was interviewed and
when asked If he knew of any dishonesty onf the part bf Customs employees at
Denver he stated that on a few occasions he had completed assignments prior
to 5:00 p.m. and collected overtime pay as if the work had been done after
5:00 p.m. He also indicated that several other inspectors had done the same
thing.

On the same date Supervisory Customs Inspector Tim Angelo was interviewed
and In addition to admitting having accepted gratuities, he related that there
had been occasions when Customs brokers had sent in requests for overtime
for clearance of certain merchandise and if an Inspector was available prior
to 5:00 p.m. they actually made the clearance during regular working hours and
nevertheless collected overtime pay. According to Angelo, this was only done
when the broker who had requested the overtime told the inspector to go ahead
and clear the shipment prior to 5:00 p.m. and the broker would still pay the
overtime. Mr. Angelo stated that he had done this on several occasions and
personally knew that other inspectors had also.

On September 8, 1971 a sworn statement was taken from Customs Inspector
Robert J. Norton. Mr. Norton admitted that he had accepted gratuities, mostly
In the form of liquor from brokers and liquor warehouses in the past. He also,
stated that Mr. Rowe, Mrs. Lawson, Mr. Miller, Mr. Angelo and Mr. Anderson
had also accepted gratuities. A copy of Mr. Norton's statement is attached as
Exhibit A.

On September 7, 1971, a sworn statement was taken from Inspector Rowe. At
this time Inspector Rowe furnished us with a four-page, type-written voluntary
statement which he swore- to. This statement listed various Instances of mis-
conduct on the part of Inspectors Angelo and Miller and was made a part of his
formal statement. In addition, Mr, ItoWe related Instances where he had accepted
gratuities, mainly in the form of liquor, from different Individuals who conduct
business with U.S. Customs. Mr. Rowe stated that he had never knowingly col.
lected overtime pay for work that had been performed during regular working
hours; however, he did admit that there had been occasions when he had
"hidden out" or otherwise delayed clearing a shipment until after 5:00 p.m. so that
he could- collect the overtime pay. He further, stated that he understood that this
was the port policy and assumed that the instructions had come from either
Inspector Miller or Angelo. Mr. Rowe's statement is attached as Exhibit B.

On September 9, 1971 Mr. Bob Henry,' warehouse foreman for'Davis Brothers
liquor warehouse, was interviewed and stated that over the past several years at
Christmas he had given bottles of liquor to Inspectors Rowe and Norton.
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On September 10, 1971 Mr. Loui Pastor, warehouse foreman for Best Brands
liquor warehouse, was interviewed and stated that Inspectors Norton and Rowe
had accepted bottles of liquor from him over the past several years, mainly at
(Jhristmas time.

It should be noted that Inspector Rowe was very cooperative in this investi-
gation and, in fact, furnished us with information pertaining to the misconduct
of several other Customs employees at Denver. Mr. Rowe was, in fact, gathering
information regarding the improper charging of overtime by Customs, inspectors
and Intended to furnish the information to this office; however, he was inter-
rupted by our investigation.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

In addition to the exhibits that have been previously mentioned, copies of
two letters, one Bureau letter and one Regional letter, pertaining to the accept-
ance of gratuities by Customs employees, are attached as Exhibit C.

PERSONAL AND EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

The personnel file of Customs Inspector Jack R. Rowe shows that he is 53
years of age, married, the father of three children, presently resides at 12555
Albrook Drive, Apartment 3601, Denver, Colorado; he graduated from Central
High School, Grand Rapids, Michigan in 1935 and also has two years of college.
He also served in the U.S. Army from 1941 to 1946 and he receives a 10 per cent
disability pension from the Army which entitles him to a ten-point veterans
preference. Inspector Rowe entered the Customs Service as Customs Entry
Clerk, GS-4, at Denver, Colorado, on January 2,1957. On February 23, 1958 he was
promoted to GS-6 with the same title and on July 1, 1960 he was promoted to
Customs Inspector, GS:-7. On July 1, 1961 he was promoted to Customs Inspector,
GS-8, and on July 9, 1961 he was promoted to GS-9, in which grade he is pres-
ently serving. The personnel file reflects that lie has received satisfactory per-
formance ratings throughout his tenure with the Bureau of Customs. A favorable
qualifications and fitness investigation was completed on October 26, 1960, and
there is no indication of any prior disciplinary action in his file.

PERRY D. MARTIN,
Senior Special Agent (Security).

Approved.
ALEX L. HIODON, JR.,

Assistant Regional Director (Security).

BASIS FOR INVESTIGATION

Investigation was based on information gained during a conduct investiga-
tion of another Denver Customs employee. The information gained indicated
that Inspector Norton had accepted gratuities from various outside sources and
was improperly charging and collecting for overtime services.

STATUTE, REGULATION OR RULE OF CONDUCT

Treasury Personnel Manual, Chapter 735, paragraph 0.735-X3, titled "Gifts
or Gratuities from Outside Sources" and paragraph 0.735-54, titled "Falsifica-
tion of Official Records".

DETAILS OF INVESTIGATION

On August 15, 1971 Gus W. Herrman, Regional Director of Security and Audit,
and I interviewed Douglas Stanley, Customs Warehouse Officer, in Denver,
Colorado, in connection with our Investigation Into alleged misconduct on thef art of Supervisory Customs Inspector Tim Angelo, Mr. Stanley reported that

was evident to him that several Customs employees at Denver were habitually
accepting gratuities, mainly in the form of liquor, from Customs brokers and
Customs bonded Uiquord warehouses. Mr. Stanley also related that he thought
several Customs inspectors had been Improperly collecting overtime pay and he
had been informed that Inspector Rowe was compiling information about this
fact.

On August 17, 1971 Customs Inspector Jack R. Rowe was interviewed and
freely admitted that he had accepted bottles of liquor from some of the liquor
warehouses and also from Charles M. Schayer. Customhouse broker. He also
related that as far as he knew, all of the other inspectors did the same thing;
however, he did mention that this occurrence was generally at Christmas time.
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On September 8, 1971 a sworn statement was taken from Customs Inspector
Robert J. Norton. Mr. Norton admitted that he had accepted gratuities, mostly
in the form of liquor, from brokers and liquor warehouses in the past. He also
stated that Mr. Rowe, Mrs. Lawson, Mr. Miller, Mr. Angelo and Mr. Anderson
bad also accepted gratuities. Mr. Norton also stated that he had heard that
Inspector Angelo had performed assignments during regular working hours and
still collected overtime pay for the assignments. He also related that he had.
heard Mr. Angelo tell people that no inspectors were available to perform cer-
tain assignments until after 5:00 p.m. when actually there were inspectors not
doing anything at the time and they could have performed the assignment prior
to 5:00 p.m. therefore alleviating the overtime expense. Mr. Norton also related
instances of ride treatment of the general public by Inspectors Angelo and
Miller and stated that he had heard of occasions when liquor and cigars seized
at the airport had been converted to an employee's personal use. Mr. Norton's
statement is attached as Exhibit A.

On September 7, 1971 a sworn statement was taken from Customs Inspector
Jack R. Rowe. In his statement he indicated that he had possibly picked up
bottles of liquor from Charles M. Schayer's office and brought them to the
Customs office for Mr. Norton. A copy of Mr. Rowe's statement is attached as
Exhibit B.

On September-8, 1971 Field Auditor Ray D. Reynolds prepared a "spread
sheet" covering overtime that A. J. Fritz & Company has paid to Customs for
clearance of merchandise for Mobil Oil Company and Geophysical Services, Inc.
accounts. This spread sheet was for the period from January 1, 1971 to the
present and indicates the name of the inspector performing the service, the date,
the hours during which the service was performed, the amount of overtime paid,

the time the merchandise was transferred to another carrier, the Fritz flHQ
number. and the check numbers paid to Customs. A copy of this spread sheet
is attached as Exhibit C.

On September 9, 1971 Mr. Bob Henry, warehouse foreman for Davis Brothers
liquor warehouse, was interviewed and stated that over the past several years
at Christmas he had giv.n bottles of liquor to Inspectors Rowe and Norton.

On September 10, 1971 Mr. Loul Pastori, warehouse foreman for Best Brands
liquor warehouse, was interviewed and stated that Inspectors Norton and Rowe-
had accepted bottles of liquor from him over the past several years, mainly at
Christmas time.

DOUMENTARY EVIDENCE

In addition to the exhibits that have been previously mentioned, copies of two
letters, one Bureau letter and one Regional letter, pertaining to the acceptance
of gratuities by Customs employees, are attached as Exhibit D.

PERSONAL AND EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

The personnel file of Customs Inspector Robert J. Norton shows that he is 62
years old, married, the father of four children, presently resides at 501 South
University Boulevard, Denver, Colorado; Mr. Norton has a high school educa-
tion and is not a veteran of the armed services, therefore he has no veterans
preference. Inspector Norton entered the Customs Service as a Verifier-Opener-
Packer, CAF-8, at Denver, Colorado on August 81. 1945. He was promoted to
'CAF-4 on May 6, 1948, maintaining his same title. On February 25, 1954 he was
promoted to Customs Inspector, 08-7, and on February 25, 195 he was promoted
to 0S-8. On July 9, 1961 Mr. Norton was promoted to Customs Inspector, GS-9,
his present position. The personnel file reflects that he has received satisfactory
performance ratings throughout his tenure with the Bureau of Customs. A
favorable qualifications and fitness investigation was completed in August 1954,
and there is no indication of any prior disciplinary action in his file. (Statement
was taken before birth date and report was written after birth date.)

PERRY D. MAWrJN,
Senior Speetal Agent (Security).

Approved. ALEX L. HIODON, Jr.,

Assistant Regional Director (Security).
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Mr. l oG. Fine. They do not address that issue you are referring
to, this point of automobiles.

Senator HAsKELt. Then maybe I could ask you some of these
questions.

Mr. MNLoE. I will certainly try to answer.
Senator HA sKEL. Again, what is your understanding -f those

reports about who was the man that seized this individual by the shirt ?
Mr. MAGEE. Mr. Tim Angelo.
Senator HAsmxm. I see.
Does your report indicate that either of those men-Mr. Miller or

Mr. Angelo--took gratuities from importers?
Mr. MAop. They did, yes, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Both of them?
Mr. MLaopy. Both of them.
Senator IASKEJLL. Did the report indicate that either of them or

both had used seized vehicles in going to and from work ?
Mr. MAOF.E. That, was not an element of our investigation in 1971.

The first of our knowledge--that was the appearance in a newspaper
article just. recently.

Senator HASKELL. But that was not part of your investigation?
Mr. MAoEE. No, sir, it was not.
Senator HASKELL. How about improperly imported goods being

converted to officers' personal use? W as that part of the investigation?
Mr. MAGEE. Yes, sir. There were some seized Cuban cigars, I believe,

that were taken by either one or both.
Senator HASKELL. Do you recall which?
Mr. MAoEE. I believe Mr. Angelo admitted taking them. Mr. Miller

denied it. However, we had strong reason to believe that Mr. Miller
also participated in the cigars.

Senator HASKELL. Mr. Magee, did it ever occur to you that the
actions of these men, and maybe others for all I know, might have vio-
lated either the criminal laws of the State of Colorado or the United
States?

Mr. MfAoEE. Yes, sir, it did.
Senator HASKELL. Did you refer the situation to law enforcement

authorities, either State or Federal?
Mr. MAoEE. We did not make a formal submission for a prosecu-

torial opinion. The only element that was of perhaps enough concern
at the time was the question of overtime. As I recall the facts, that
which the U.S. attorney would have been interested in was, were we
able to prove that either one or both or others of these employees
actually submitted false overtime reports. We have indication, And
had strong belief at the time, they did.

Our sole evidence, however, in that case was the reliability of- one
clock which was used for the time-counting purposes. That clock dif-
fered from the clook in the official customs office. Therefore, we failed
to establish.the requisite intent to submit fraudulent overtime.

Senator HASKELL. You heard Ms. Sorden testify a minute ago?
Mr. MAGER. Yes, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Her deposition was taken in 1971. Did she refer

to the incident that she referred to here a moment ago?
Mr. MAoE.E. I believe she referred to the intentional delaying until

after 5 p.m.
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Senator HASxrLL. How about to the situation where they actually
told her that they would inspect it after 5, but inspected the goods at
20 minutes of 5?

Mr. MAGEE. As I recall; it would have to refer to the report again,
sir. I say, I would have to defer to my reports. I was trying to find it
while she was testifying, and could not put my finger on it.

Senator HASKELL. Could you do that ? We would like to know What
the policy of the U.S. Customs is when there is at least some evidence
that indicates some kind of criminal activity ? Do you have any policy
regarding that situation?

Mr. MAOEE. Yes, sir. Well, first let me point out-our office, internal
affairs; that is, security and audit, was only 5 months old at the time
this investigation originated. We admitted were in our infancy in
establishing our formalized procedures anT policy. We had the in-
vestigative expertise.. I think we did a good investigation. I believe
we pointed out serious misconduct on the part of our employees. Our
policy is now much more formalized.

However, even during that period of time, the policy was to refer
to the appropriate U.S. attorney for prosecutive opinion on substan-
tive-violations of the law, and these are often done-not formalized,
syllabus-type case reports, as you would one you were readily expect-
ing to go to trial on. They are often phone calls to the U.S. attorney
outlining a brief synopsis of what the case is. There will be an in-
formal decline, or they will express interest.

Let us look at it further. As best as I can reconstruct, we had such
an informal contact with the U.S. attorney in this case, and in sub-
sequent cases.

Senator HASKELL. How about the State or local enforcement author-
ities?

Mr. MAoGES. If the primary jurisdiction rests with the State courts,
we will refer it to the State court. We have such a matter pending.

Senator HARKFELLT. But you did not, in this particular instance?
Mr. MAGEE. We did not in that case. I think the primary jurisdic-

-tion rested in the Fedeial courts in the instances we have discussed
here. For example, removing merchandise from customs custody is a
violation of Federal law, and primary jurisdiction would be-

Senator HASKELL. What about grabbing somebody by the shirt, and
-throwing them up against the wall?

Mr. MAGEE. We would not refer that for prosecution. I think if an
individual is inclined to seek redress on it, it would be up to the indi-
vidual to file an assault charge.

Senator HASKELL. You mean to tell me that the U.S. Customs Serv-
ice will allow its customs officers to take-citizeins, throw them up
against the wall, throw them out, and then do nothing about it?

Mr. MAoFPE. We do not allow that, Senator.
Senator HASKELL. You allowed it in this case. You did not refer

it to the local Authorities.
Mr. MAGEE. If you are asking me as a matter of policy, I do not

believe that would be the type of offense we would refer. I do not
know the circumstances that well to discuss how much of assault
actually took place, whether it was just a pushing, a shoving, a temper
situation. Normally, I would say unless it is a Federal, prosecutable

- offense, we would not refer it.
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.-- Senator HASKELL. I would say that the customs service better re-
think. Assault and battery is not exactly a minor Offense, and par-
ticularly when it is done by a customs officer. I really think this is
incredible. y

Mr. MAoEE. Well again, we are talking a hypothetical situation.
_Senator HASKELL. Well, not a hypothetical situation. A gentleman

by the name of Angelo did it in 1971.
Mr. MAoEE. Well, I guess to be the most responsive to ou, Senator,

is that normally we would refer our matters to the U.S. attorney.
That is from whom we gather our guidance. If he would suggest-
and we have had them suggest that this be referred to the State level-
we would certainl do so. We have one in exactly that situation to this
day, but we would be most reluctant to run to another court without

-first touching base with the U.S. attorneys.
- Senator HASKELL. Mr. Maier, what is your region? You are based in
Houston. What is the geographical scope of your region,

Mr. MAER. Southwest, including Texas, Oklahoma, New Mexico,
Colorado, and parts of Louisiana.

Senator HASKELL. You know all is not well in Denver, obviously.
How about the rest of your region? Are you aware of any abuses
anyplace?

Mr. MATER. We have some problems other places--overtime abuses?
Senator HASKELL. That would be one.
Mr. MAIE . I have no knowledge of that. We try to keep on top of

that, especially since the Denver thing, and the source we rely on
most heavily for that is our meetings with the brokers and importers.
As far as I know, there are no other abuses of that.

In dealing with the public, with as many people as we have, when we
have in our region about 40 percent of the population of the United
States every year, or an equivalent number come in who have a con-
stant group of people who make complaints about the customs, all
of which are investigated.

Senator HAsX.ELL. But you are not aware of any situations of abuse
currently going on elsewhere in your district?.

Mr. MAIER. Well, overtime abuse ?
Senator HASKELL. Any type.
Mr. MAIER. Personal assault and overtime? I do not know of any

of those, Senator. We have some investigations by other investigative
agencies, including grand juries and whatever, going on in my region
at this time. But I do not believe that they involve any of the situa-
tions at Denver. They involve some conduct of people, of our people.

Senator HASKELL. What do you mean by that?
Mr. MAIER. We have same investigating misconduct, and I do-not

know all of the details, because before the grand jury-I will not
know before they get through. I have some people appearing before
the grand jury.Senator HASKrLJ. HOW about overtime? What steps do you take
to be sure there is'not abuse of overtime in your region?

Mr. MAIRm. Well, I guess the same thing you do about everything.
You ask the level above, the participants, to watch for abuses, listen
for abuses. But it is not that easy to catch them. I think the Com-
missioner said this morning z the system lends itelf to abuse. It has
to be watched by the supervisory, and that was our problem at Denver;
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was that' the supervisor was participating in it, you see, and that
makes it a little bit more dlifficult.

Senator HASkELL. Was the supervisor not meant to participate in
the overtime?

Mr. MAR.. No, no. They participate in overtime.
Senator HASKELL. Do you participate in overtime?
Mr. MAInEl. No, no, not I. No.
Senator HASKELL; You heard Mr. Brower talk about a conversation

that you and he had. Was his description of it accurate, in your
opinion?

Mr. MAEMR. The last one that I had, where he said that I said I
would get him--certainly I did not say that. And certainly, in my
relationship with Mr. Brower, it did not amount to harassment.
But in fact, as he assumed---and I think I must say, I think he really
believed that-I do not discredit his belief. I believe he believes that I
was harassing him, because he instigated a 1971 investigation. As a
matter of fact, I did not know he did that.

Senator HASKELL Who did instigate it? Who did start the 1971
investigation?

Mr. MAIER. Someone else, but not Mr. Brower. Now, the 1974 one,
certainly, he asked for, and we got it from him. But as I recall,
there was another employee involved in the 1971. Mr. Stanley, I
believe, was the one who did that.

Senator HASKELL. Was he an employee of the Customs Service?
Mr. MAIER. Yes, he was.
Senator HASKELL. Where is he now?
Mr. MAIER. InAlaska, on his-own.
Senator HASKELL. I was going to ask you-
Mr. MATR. No, no, on his own.
Senator HASKELL. Thank you very much, Mr. Maier.
Mr. MAEMR. Thank you so much.
Senator HASKELL. The next witness is Mr. Jay Bruton, who is port

director of customs for Denver.

STATEMENT OF 1AY BRUTON, PORT DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMS FOR
DENVER

Mr. BRUTON. Thank you for the opportunity of appearing. Senator,
I do not have a prepared statement. I have nothing to add. Of course,
I arrived in Denver in March of 1974, much after these events, which
are predominantly under investigation here. Our inquiry had little
to do with history, as far as I am concerned, and I personally know
nothing about these reports, any of those matters 1971 or 1974.

Senator HAsKELL. Where is your office physically located?
Mr. BnvUro. It is in the New Customs House, Denver, room 119.
Senator HASKELL. Are there other employees of the Customs Serv-

ice in with you in your office?
Mr. BRUTON. Yes, sir. The entire staff, other than inspection and

control, fQr the U.S. Custom Service in Denver is in the New Customs
House.
- Senator HASKELL. And where are the inspectors located?

Mr. BEUTON. At Stapleton International, sir.
Senator HASKELL. Do you participate in overtime?
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Mr. BnuTow. Not as a regular classified participant; no, sir. I have
worked overtime on an as-needed basis in emergency situations only.

Senator HASKELL. How much did you earn in 1974 in overtime?
Mr. BRUTON. I do not know, sir: I did not spend the entire year

there, but I would say around, as a maximum figure, and I am guessing,
$2,000.

Senator HASIKFLL. How much have you earned so far this year I
Mr. BRuTxT .$2,000.
Senator HAoxmi. Would you be able to supply the committee with

a schedule showing the overtime pay and to whom it it paid during
your tenure at the Port of Denver ?

Mr. RAY OND. Yes, sir, we could provide that.
(The following table was subsequently supplied for the record:)
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Senator HAs5.j. You heard importers at Denver, apparently fear
retaliation at the port. Do you have any comments on that I

Mr. BRuToxl. Yes sir. I would like to add my own to your comment.
If there is any retaliation against any of the witnesses that have ap-
peared here, if I hear of it, appropriate action will be taken at my
level. I would like to assure you of that.

Senator HAsRsL. Thank you. I have a newspaper report of October
1, 1975 about a man named Patrick Spence, who worked in your
office. he newspaper report says that he apparently attempted to get
information concerning the sources of supply of an organization called
"Celestial Seasoning." This is improper since he is going to go into
competition with them. Do you concur with that I

Mr. BRUToz. This was alleged, sir, and at the time it came to my
attention I immediately reported it to my superior, the district direc-
tor in ElPaso. I considered it to be improper and so reported it.

Senator HASRE L. Did you ask him to resign I
Mr. lRnuTo. No, sir, I did not.
Senator HASKELL. Did you indicate that an investigation would take

place?
Mr. BRuToN. I did not personally, no, sir.
Senator HASKELLJ. Is not an investigation taking place?
Mr. MAOEE. I believe I can address this.
Senator HASKELL. Yes, Mr. Magee, would you please?
Mr. MAoEE. There was an investigation, Senator. Briefly, it pointed

out that Mr. Spence did use inhouse information that he-took off en-
tries to further his own personal future interests. I do not believe he
actually got into the business. In essence, it was a spice importing firm
that had, perhaps, a favorable contract as a sole source in another
country. Because of Mr. Spence's duties, naturally he saw the docu-
mentation that pointed out this sole source, and on his own communi-
cated with them and indicated that he would like to be in the same
business, all of which was totally improper, totally illegal.

We conducted an investigation. Mr. Spence admitted it. We dis-
cussed it with the U.S. attorney on August 13 for the second time,
first an informal inquiry. He said lie would like to look at it a little bit
more. Subsequent to that, Mr. Spence resigned and, in view of his
resignation, the U.S. attorney's office did not choose to pursue it. any
further since it really had not quite materialized as an actual importing
venture on hispart, so we withdrew.

Senator HASKELL. Then it was the decision of the U.S. attorney not
to proceed, is that right ?

Mr. MAO.E. Yes, sir, it was.
Senator HARKELL. Thank you. Thank you gentlemen very .much in-

deed. At this time, I think to keep the hearing record from being over-
burdened, I am going to submit for the record two newspaper articles.
One deals with the national situation on overtime. It is an article ap-
pearing in the "Rocky Mountain News," August 14, 1975, referring
to a GAO report. I will ask staff to look at it and see if this adequately
summarizes the GAO report on overtime. If it does not they will
supplement it where necessary. ,

Then, similarly, I will introkluce for the record another article which
is undated .it i three pages, and it details the situation in Denver,
vis-a-vis, the 1971 investigation. 'When you submit the investigation
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record, Mr. Magee, I will ask staff to go through it and see if this
newspaper article is accurate. If it is, theu this will: apear in the
recor as a summunary, or if it contains inaccuracies, staff will supple-
meni t in any way possible,

[The articles referred to by Senator Haskell follow :]
(From the Rocky Mountain News, Aug. 14, 19751

CUMS OVERTIM PAY ExcEssrVZ NATIoWDU

(By Jack Olsen, Jr.)
The U.S. Customs Service, taking advantage of an antiquated federal law,charged importers and others more than $27 million in overtime Inspection fees

during fial19 .
Buthte Inspectors were paid an additional $0:6 million 1p overtime compen-

sation. About 4,700 customs inspectors to khome an average of $6,926 in overtime
during the year, most of them lnereihing their annual salaries by at least one-
third.

the-iih customs overtime rates paid at Dnver's Stapleton International Air-
port have become a matter of controversy in recent weeks. A handful of the'
highest Pikld Inspectors here haveo grabbed, the most lucrative overtime as-
signments.

As a result, some of them will come close to doubling their salaries this year.
And the money comes directly out of the public's pocket.

According to a report by the U.S. General Accounting Office (GAO) released
earlier this year, Denver isn't unique When it comes to the overtime situation,
however. The nationwide overtime figure Is enormous, and one Inspector in
Bangor, Maine, has done better for himself than any Inspector in Denver.

According to the GAO, his base salary was $17,000 a year. But during calendar
1978, this particular inspector piled up $25,000 in overtime for a total salary of
$42,400.

At Dulles International Airport outside Wishington, an inspector being paid
a base salary of $18,000 a year upped his Income to $80,000 with overtime. An
inspector at Seattle-Tacoma International Airport piled $12,500 in overtime on a
base salary of $15,800.

In Denver, customs officials have maintained they can do nothing about the
high overtime bills. The fees are a direct result of a 1911 law that requires cus-
toms inspectors to be paid a minimum of two days pay for certain overtime as-
signments that could require as little as five minutes.

But the GAO report reinforces the feasibility of one cost-saving measure that
local customs director Jay W. Bruton has steadfastly ignored: The use of part-
time Inspectors In overtime situationsUnder the present setup even Bruton has cut himself In on the lucrative over-
time work. He is an administrator in the downtown Denver customs office, yet
he has had lurcative Sunday inspection work at the airport, for which he must
be paid $167, often for less than one hour's work.

There are lower-ranked customs employees working with Bruton downtownwho wquld have to be paid less than one-half of Bruton's overtime fee. They
are trdfned and certified to do the work, and they have asked to be assigned to
it regularly.

But there also are part-time inspectors at the airport who want the overtime
work, and they too would be paid far less than Bruton or any regular airport
inspector.

Bruton and his bos, regional customs commissioner Cleburne Maler, stationed
in Houston, have stated that these part-timers, called WAEs ("when actually
employed"), are not permitted to work overtime. But neither official has been
able to cite the customs law or regulation to back up the assertion.

AcAording to the GAO report, WAEs can work the more lucrative overtime as.
signments, and they do in other parts of the country.

So far this year, the Denver port director has earned more than $1,400 in
overtime, and six other high ranking inspectors have been paid an average of at
least $7,9000 aPlee in extra fees. If the work that earned them this bonanza had
been divided among lower-paid WAs-who do inspection work regularly any-
way--the overtime tab would have been cut by at least one-third.
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The GAO's "Intent was to compare the overtime rates paid various federal
agecles dealing with the public at airports and seaportS, lncluding de customs
service, the U.S. Immigration and Naturaiation Service and the U.S. Depart-
meat of AVrtltr.

There are wide iscrepancies between agencies In overtime paid to employee
for the same amount of work. Customs employees generally seemed to hiye the
best setup, and the GAO concluded that it could only be changed-and the over-
time standards made uniform for all agencies-by federal legislation.

Maier during a recent tip to Denver had said that various lobbyists, Including
ones representing jvgjor airlines, had b9en attempting "all my lie" to change the
customs overtime law 1aisedIn 1911. But they bad ailedt6 geC the momentum
needed in Congress

The customs service, however, has resisted legislation that would reduce the
overtime bis. *ocordig to the GAO, "Custo emphasie the effect oq en-
Ployeq iorLo POf fny ubptaittal reduction in anpnua earnlpj!."

In criticizing the tA report,a top customs official noted: Ih epprt ip ent
with respect to Ival lm pt te alternative co ,4n4at1o methods" (# bht be
establajw y b_011ion) would hve op an eplOye's Ota ye~rJ overt; .e
earnlnp ... Toe report do 0 not even consider the effect 9 enpoe morale
If the earnings were to be less under the alternative methods."

The (40 xtudy also includes a letter of crlt|¢d fPoM the U.S. Cqvl Service
Cotmisoj, WhiCh Includes this stateent: "The commiswo .s ln be.n
Concerned *,put the ecessie overtime composition authorld Py lt for I-
spectors at ports-of-entry. "

The .cpspu**on recommend that the overtime fees to customs bg .reduced
gradually to ninlmize the Impact on the Inspectors.

[From the Rocky Mountain News]

HASKELL GETS SZCRET REPORTS- USTOMS SCANDALS DIscLosED

(By Jack Olsen Jr.)

U.S. Customs Service officers pride themselves in being courteous and firm
but most of all above reprosch in "prqtect~ng the revenq1e--tbat is, collecting
proper Import tariffs from International companies and travelers wbo bring
foreign goods into the country.

The agency is known for a level of Integrity and efficiency considered rare
in the federal bureaucracy. It Is widely thought to be the best customs service
in the world, and there never has been any reason to belleye Its operation in
the "port" of Denver has hurt that reputation-until now.

Sen. Floyd Hjaskell, D-Colo., recently pried loose from customs headquarters
in Washington a dozen previously secret investigation reports op the customs
operation here from June 1971 through last summer. Made available for Inspec-
tion last weeR, they detail serious wrongdoings by customs offlcf6ls 4t Stapleton
International Airport, including gross mistreatment of the public.

X=E SLAP ON WST

And there Is evidence that regional custo-s ot cials In 1Iouston An~t oreged
their feet and then merely slapped wrists. All the While, they claim, It was
none of the VblWc business.

First there vW a major Investigation in the summer of 1971 that lasted 'at
least three months and produced eight separate repits on Illicit conduct by
Denver customs officrs:

-Investigators front the service's Office of Security and Audit, whIch Is
answerable only to the U.S. commissioner of customs In Washington, reported
that at least four customs inspectors at Stapleton, Including the supervisory
Inspector, had pVp ly delayed examining shipments of lnapor~ed goods until
after 5 p.m. That way they could charge the owners overtime. The etra money,
hundreds of dollars, went into the Inspectors' pockets.

Improperly imported goods, iueldin' cigars, plants and possipAy liquor, had
been seized from International travelers and converted to 6cut0ns o.cqers' per-sonal use. This was possible becaUe recelpf$ often weren't issued to tbe owners
of the seized goods.

Seized vehicles had been used by customs inspectors to commute to and from
work.

I _. -, I
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Customs ofdfqers regularly had accept__ gratuities from Importers, primarilyliquor (€omnt)es, 'whO wanted their goods "cleared" through customs fast.
Despite being shorthanded, inspectors bad taken time off work but were paid

for it. TiWO agents devised a system whereby One Would "cover" for' the other
while he too entire days eff.

The public often had been treated rudelY. Grut statements as to the customs
inspectors' broad authority were made in threatening ways. In one case, an
irate person l rted the supervisory inspector at Stapleton, calling him a name.

,,v The inspector grabbed him by the shirt, ripping off a button, threw him~ against
___ a wall and then physically ejected him from the office. The inspector later

apoligized for his conduct.
FOUR INVE8TIGATIONS

There were four fliestlgations of the Denver office after 1971, including one
last summer that documented continued mistreatment of the public. But the

1971 scandal Still' hangs over the port of Denver, primarily because two key
inspectors implicated in the wrongdoing-C harles Miller and Tim Angelo--are
still at 8tapleton and still in positons of power in dealing With the public.

Miller subsequently was promoted to supeX~visory inspector.
Denver ctktoms operations currently are under the supervlion of, Jay W.

Bruton, port director, who was transferred here last March from Oklahoma.
He oversees frOm 25 to 80O inspectors and clerical personnel, some of whom are
stationed at Stapleton to check passengers, their luggage and shipments of Im-ported goods.
Other agents work in downtown offices examining lists of goods and calculat-ing what tariffs should be charged. There also are customs investigators in

Denver, not under Bruton, who watch for violations of customs gulations.
During fiscal 1975, which ended iune 30, the port of Denver collected about

$12 million in revenue and handled about 100,000 incoming passengers and
8,300 shipmentS of foreign goods.

The inspectors regularly deal with firms called customs brokers. Such com-
panies earn their fees helping importers complete paperwork and follow proper
procedures to clear customs. There are four major brokers in Denver-Charles
M. Schayer & Co., Rea Air Express, Arthur R. J. Fritz Co. of Colorado and
0. L. Oumbert O ).-"

Employee of several of these firms and their importing clients precipitated the1971 investition, testifying that inspectors had forced them to pay overtime
inspection rates when goods had been cleared before 5 p.m.

The illicit practice had, become so commonplace that some brokers came to
believe It was a port policy. One broker told investigators there had been so
many improper overtime bills that It would be imPossible to pull them all fromthe files.

The brokers were never questioned again or informed of the results of the
investigation.

"It was a whitewash," Schayer charged.
According to another customs investigation report filed last summer, Denver's

brokers vIewed the turn of events with "dismay and disgust " There was specula-
tion that Miller "had a direct line ro the district office *i El Paso (which is
between the port and regional offices)."

CONNECTIlONS "OBVIOUS""It wEs Obvious to everyone," charged Bruce Brower, a former customs officer i
Denver, "that Miller had connections that got him off the hook."

Brower of 12780 W. 1sth Place, Lakewood, was a veteran of 11 years in the
customs service, four of them at the port of Denver, when he resigned last year.

He claimed he pushed for a renewed investigation of customs operations in 1971
along with an investigation of Maler's long-delayed and "suspicious" handling ofthe situation. As a result, Brower claims, he was harassed and ordered to transfer
to iOuston.

An investigaton of grower's claim that he was being punitively transferred was
by the Office of Security and Audit, which failed to substantiate it.

Ratother te investigators found that Brower was unusually well qualified and
an ideal mn t i crucial opening in Houston.

Brewer dd't buy that explanation and he resigned from the service last Sep-
tember. Ho 12bsequently sought Sen. Laskell's assistance in determining what

ushad occurred in the port of Denver.
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Last April the Office of Security and Audit, prompted by more complaints
against Miller, came to the port of Denver for another investigation They took
testimony that Miller had abused his discretion and been impolite to the public.
Miller denied the specific allegations, saying he was following the rules in each
case.

GOODS TO OTHER PORTS

There was evidence that some Importers had been taking their goods to other
ports for customs clearance, rather than suffer the hassle in Denver. According to
the Investigation report, one broker described customs-public relations as "pa-
thetic," saying Miller "was determined to make things as difficult as possible."

Another broker at first refused to talk to the investigators. According to the
report, he "stated that he felt like Investigators were 'wasting their time' because
the last time he had talked to Security agents in 1971, Miller was promoted."'

Another broker "said his opinion was that' Customs in Denver attempted to
caused Inconveniences even though they were acting within the scope of the regula-
tions."

Miller told the investigators that problems revolved "around the fact that im-
porters and brokers in Denver had been allowed a great deal of freedom i the
past, and because, recent changes had been personally associated With him, a per-
sonal attack had been launched against him."

Miller, according to the report, "described his problem as basically the fact that
his mouth doesn't turn up in a smile When he talks and the public construes this
as hostility."

Last week Miller said he believed the investigation last summer was provoked
by brokers who thought "I was being retaliatory."

He attributed their paranoia to their professional shortcomings. Angelo agreed
that complaints were a result of the brokers' inability to perform their Jobs
properly. They are supposed to know the right forms and how to fill them out, he
said. but many times they come through with things done Improperly.

Miller said he enforced the customs laws uniformly and he Would continue to do
80.

Nevertheless, the regional commissioner, Maier, wasn't happy with last sum-mer's investigation report He filed a "letter of admonishment" in Miller's per-
sonnel record, Miller said. This time it didn't arrive until about eight months after
the conclusion of the investigation.

APPEAL REPEATED

In April or May, Miller said, he again appealed, and Maier finally arrived iu
Denver to hear what Miller had to say "a little over a month ago." Maler listened,
went back to Houston and rescinded the letter.

Miller said he got word of it the week before last.
"He said the letter was to be destroyed," the supervisory inspector said.
Maler refused to discuss any of these matters during a telephone interview last

week because, he said, they weren't the public's business. He repeatedly stated "no
comment" when asked to explain his reasoning for clearing Miller 'In 1972 and
1975.

He said customs personnel problems were internal matters.
Maier said-he would have publicly announced the problems-and would dis-

cuss them now-only if Miller and Angelo had been involved in illegal activities,
which he said they weren't.

Moreover, the regional commissioner said his long delay In dealing with the
problems In Denver and then in clearing Miller "was not significant."

It took Haskell six months to force the customs service to release reports of
what has been happening In Denver In recent years. At first, the commissioner
of customs in Washington, Vernon D. Acree, refused to release the records.

Then the new Freedom of Information Act became effective. Under its provi-
sions, Acree could no longer keep secret the reports of the Denver Investigations.

In March, Haskell requested them again. On April 18, Washington customs of-
ficials gave in and said the reports would be on their way within 80 days.

By the end of May they hadn't arrived at Haskell's office. Another Haskell
letter spurred them to release the lnformatioh last month.

Some of these complainants say now that they were foolish to have talked
with the Investigators. They say they have been paying for it ever since.

Brokers are, in essence, at the inspectors' mercy. It is generally agreed that an
unscrupulous Inspector could severely hurt a broker's business merely by being
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as tough as possible in the scores of daily procedures In which the inspector Is
,Permitted broad discretion.

RUNNING IN CIRoLES

An Inspector, who asked not to be named, said last week, "I could have them
(brokers) running In circles if I had a mind to. I've seen It done."

Said a former inspector: "You could tie them up for days by being petty."
One of the eight Investigation reports from 1971 notes that two brokers- in

their testimony to investigators "indicated that they were afraid to complain
-about the Customs operation at the Denver port because they felt that the Cus-
toms inspectors had them 'over a barrel' and that the Customs inspectors would
-only make it harder on them in the future.

"They also indicated that they had complained in the past; however, they had
,given up on this because no action had been taken."

The international manager of REA Air, Express, Mrs. F. L. Sdrden, said on
Friday that she feared being quoted in the newspaper would bring retribution
from the current supervisory inspector, Miller, at Stapleton.

"If he finds out I've said anything, he'd take revenge," she alleged.

CONVERSATION RELATED
A report issued last summer on an investigation of continued mistreatment of

the public by customs at Stapleton told of a conversation between Investigators
from the Office of Security and Audit and a broker.

"During the cor -%rsation," the investigators wrote, "a U.S. Customs inspector
In uniform walked ,. and (the broker) was visibly shaken' he inquired as to
whether the Customs inspector knew that the investigating officers were Security
agents and refused todiscuss the matter further."

The broker-inspector relationship has remained one of suspicion and fear
primarily because of what resulted from the 1971 scandal.

Mrs. Sorden's predecessor, Bob Thompson, who now works in another capacity
at REA Air Express, said he was one of the brokers who started the probe. He
.aid lie believed that the evidence was so overwhelming that the supervisory
inspector, Angelo, and his Immediate subordinate, Miller, who some said seemed
to do a lot of Angelo's decision-making, would be fired or transferred to a port in
"Siberia," that is, an obscure port along the Texas border with Mexico.

JOINED IN TUSTXFYINO

Other brokers and importers joined him in testifying because they believed
the customs service would at least have to remove the inspectors from the port
of Denver.

From July until October, the inquiry was 'conducted. The investigators pro.
duced a lengthy report that said Angelo and Miller indeed had delayed shipments
to collect overtime and had accepted gratuities. Moreover, the two were identified
as the primary culprits.

Nothing happened for more than eight months.
During an interview last week, Miller said more than one year elapsed before

the 'regional commissioner In Houston, Oleburne Maler,--informed him of tho.
-harges against him.

Then, after another nervous wait, Maier informed Miller and Angelo of the
intended punishment: according to Miller, demotion two pay grades and transfer
to an obscure'port.

In addition, Angelo was told that he would lose his supervisory inspector title.
(The investigators wrote that one of the two was initially informed that he
would be fired from the customs service.)

TJI0OUH THE GRAPVMNE

The brokers and Importers who deal at the Denver airport learned of these
punishments through the grapevine, they said, and were satisfied. Their waning
faith in the customs service was restored-temporarily.

According to Angelo, the regional customs commissioner changed his mind and
decided that punitive transfer weren't permitted. Angelo accepted the demotion
without a fight.

"I admitted I did those things," Angelo said last week. "I was honest about it,
that was the problem. Everyone was doing it."
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The demotion has amounted to a loss of about $2,000 to $3,000 annually in

salary ftr him.
As for Miller: He appealed the punishment. By that time it was more than

a year after the completion of the investigation, Miller said.
A personnel officer from Houston came to Denver, Miller said, and listened to

his side of the story, even though Miller in 1971 had made an extensive state-
mentto'investigators rebutting the allegations.

FINALLY GOT WXTTER
In the fall of 1972, Miller said, he finally received a letter from Maler clear-

ing him.
"All I ~know is he dropped the charges," Miller said.
He refused to discuss the substance of the allegations and wouldn't comment

when asked to rebut what the Office of Security and Audit investigators had
said in their report.

About one year later, in November 1973, Miller said, he applied for Angelo's
old Job as supervisory inspector and was accepted as a finalist by the regional
board reviewing applications. Then Maier chose Miller for the Job.

Last week one of Denver's leading brokers, Charles M. Schayer Jr., described
the chain of events as "science fiction. Yet it was real."

Senator HASKELL. Thank you gentlemen very much indeed.
Mr. MAoE. Thank you.
Senator HA slmL. Now we will turn to Mr. Grubach, Deputy Dis-

trict Director of Customs for Detroit.

TESTIMONY OF IOSESPH GRUBAOH-Resumed
Mr. GRjBACJH. I was proceeding on the various categories that I de-

lineated the specifics, which I think that the committee should know
about. It is happening in the Detroit district, of which Mr. Lacy is
regional commnissioner. It got down to specific number 11, and the
category is "Abusive practices and reprisals against certain district
managers and operational personnel."'

Senator HASKELL. Mr. Grubach, if you do not mind, I am going to
ask you to submit your statement for the record because it is very
lengthy. I am going to keep the hearing record open for 2 weeks, and I
would think it would be proper for the Commissioner's office to re-
spond since I did not know of this and presumably they did not know
of it. They are very detailed complaints that I think should be part
of the record.

I also think that it probably would be better to put them in the
record. They will be reproduced in full. The committee will look at
them; the staff will look at them. The Customs Service should analyze
them and have a chance to respond. But I think that would be the
better way of proceeding, and you might just want to summarize
your observations.

Mr. GRUBACH. Well, I have given copies; copies have been made.
Senator HASKF.LL. Yes; we have them.
Mr. GRUBACn. And are in the record.
Senator HASKELL. Yes; that would be sufficient. Why do you not just

surifhiir .hdt _ti havb becauSe we will study them. They will be
pti' of th record, and then the customs service can respond within
2 weeks$ Mr. Magee.

Mr. M~cp.. Yes, sir.

'4 TAF NoT9.-Speciflc allegations and responses by the parties mentioned may be
found in the subcommittee files. They are not Included here because of their personal
nature and because of the pervasiveness of statements derogatory of personalities.
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Mr.- GnooBAH; All right. I want to state to the committee here that
in connection with personnel matters, I wish to state that during all
of my management years, I have exerted every effort to build the
stature of Customs officers, not destroy them, to counsel and steer
them on a course of self-development in lawful professionalism, per-
sonal integrity, honesty, and respect for the law.

In connection with duty assessment and fraud and'during my whole
career, I have always operated under a cardinal principle that Customs
wants what is lawfully right, no more and no less, and that the
customhouse brokers and the importing community should pay what
is lawfully right, no more and no less. Under this concept, customs
officers have as much obligation to lawfully protect the importers'
interest as they do in lawfully protecting the Government's interest.

The regional commissioner at Chicago and the district director at
Detroit operate under a fallacioug principle that Customs wants what
is lawfully right and what is not lawfully right and the customhouse
brokers and the importing community should pay what is lawfully
right and what is not lawfully right. A whole-Iiog Customs grab,
like it or not.

And therein lies the conflict and breach between my thinking and
that of the Regional Commissioner and the District Director.

That concludes my presentation to this committee. I will be pleased
to answer any questions, if I can. Thank you.

Senator RASKELL. Thank you, Mr. Grubach. We appreciate very
much your coming here, nd the hearing record will stay open for
2 weeks, and may6e I will have additional questions to ask either
you or any other witness. Ma be Senator Ribicoff will. In any event,
the Customs will provide the documents they talked about in response
to your presentation. Thank you so very much indeed.

Mr. GRUBAOH. Thankyou.
Senator HAsWL. The hearing will be adjourned, subject to the

call of the Chair. Thank you.
[Whereupon, at 3:05 p.m., the hearing was recessed, subject to the

call of the Chair.)
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